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RN EH
YUEN MAN YING
F /& Chairman

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of EGL Holdings Company Limited and its subsidiaries,
| am pleased to present to you the annual results of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2023.

Benefiting from the lifting of both travelling restrictions and
pandemic prevention measures in Hong Kong, Japan and
other countries in the world, international passenger flights and
outbound travel markets are gradually recovering. Thus, the
Group has achieved an excellent turnaround performance from
loss to profit in the results in 2023. During the Year, the Group
recorded total revenue of approximately HK$1,366.0 million
(2022: HK$196.5 million), representing a significant increase of
595.2% compared with the corresponding period of last year.
Gross profit amounted to approximately HK$339.8 million (2022:
HK$38.9 million), representing a significant increase of 773.9%.
Profit attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$71.7 million (2022: loss HK$74.3 million), representing a
change of 196.4% from loss to profit. For the details of our
business performance, please refer to the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 15 to 31 of this
annual report.
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The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the Year (2022: HK$NIl). For the details of the special dividend of
7 Hong Kong cents per share declared on 14 December 2023,
please refer to Note 11 of the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Tourism began to revitalize in 2023 after the end of the COVID-19
pandemic. With the lifting of epidemic prevention measures for
international arrivals, tourists were able to travel again. Japan
has always been one of the most popular destinations for Hong
Kong people. According to data from the Japan National Tourism
Organization, visitors from Hong Kong to Japan in 2023 has
reached about 2.11 million, equivalent to 92.3% of the number of
visitors in 2019 before the pandemic. This shows that Hong Kong
people’s passion for Japan travel has remained high. In order
to cater to the demand of customers, the Group has launched
special flights to Takamatsu, Shikoku in Japan between the
Chinese New Year and Easter holidays, and special direct flights to
Yonago, Tottori in conjunction with Hong Kong Airlines during the
summer vacation.

The Group is confident about the future and expects that travel
demand will continue to rise. To face this challenge and attract
additional customers, the Group has opened branches in Kowloon
Bay, Tuen Mun and Tseung Kwan O in 2023, and also expanded
the branch in Macau. Currently, there are 9 branches in Hong
Kong and Macau to provide convenient services to customers.
To express our gratitude to customers for their support and to
celebrate the opening of the new branch in Tuen Mun, the “EGL
Travel Global Appreciation Festival” (EGLAR#ZE 2 EKRIATE) was
held in early September with a series of superb offers. Among
them, long-haul tour participants could enjoy discounts of up to
HK$2,000, and was well received by customers.

2023%4# Annual Report 2023 007
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For our brand promotion, the Group announced the new limited-
time sub-brand “Don’t " and decorated the Mongkok branch
as a limited-time themed store. The pop-up event “Flying the
Flag for Don't/m##!” (Don'tmFEFingsz FEHB2!) was organised in
various districts in Hong Kong with games and prizes such as
round-trip air tickets, which generated great response from the
market. Subsequently, the Group launched a variety of new tours
and FIT packages with global taste, such as “No PLAN No Worry
Summer Family Travel” (FBEPLANEE I E 23 FE), which
focuses on Southeast Asia and long-haul tours. For example,
suitable itineraries of family tours are planned for children, with
their meals, accommodations, sightseeing spots, tickets, and
transportation also taken care of. In addition, the Group also
invited Yeung Lok Ting, Rabeea, a Key Opinion Leader (KOL),
and her family of three generations to experience the Dubai family
tour. Further, the travel expert Leung Yin Chung, Chris led the
tour to East Africa, tracking the Great Migration of Animals and
Marine and Terrestrial tours, etc. The Group arranged these tour
destinations to take our customers in addition to Japan and also
to other parts of the world.

Traveling and tasting local delicacies have always been closely
intertwined. As such, the Group has specially launched the “EGL
Culinary Dining Tours” (Rim#E=EFERE) series, which offers
gourmet tours across Japan, Southeast Asia, China and long-haul
countries around the world, with specialists carefully searching for
authentic delicacies in each region, including low profile gourmet
restaurants, artisanal stores and popular eateries that have been
carried on through generations. Through the stories of the tongue,
we hope that our customers can thoroughly experience the charm
of the culinary tours. Meanwhile, as part of the series of gourmet
tour promotions, we have specially designed boxes for rice balls
with my cute avatar and organised the “EGL Free Rice Balls on
the Street” (EGLER B % B 55 (R B ARIEATBE)ES)) in various busy
districts in Kowloon and Hong Kong, the event has been very well
received by the public.
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With the ever-changing market and IT technology, FIT Products
are facing great challenges. Nevertheless, the Group still maintains
its pioneering spirit and continues to seek and capture business
opportunities in a timely manner. Innovating with various optimised
thematic FIT packages, including the FIM MotoGP™ World
Championship Grand Prix (tH 588 8 A4 E) in Japan, and the
Formula 1 Singapore Grand Prix GFrilEF1tER—4k AR K
%), for which the Group has been designated as the official
authorized agent. In addition, we have also secured participation
places for a number of marathons and successfully organised
relating travel packages for the Taipei City Tour Marathon, the
Taipei Taoyuan International Marathon and the Osaka Marathon.
We designed comprehensive and caring services to let our
customers enjoy whole heartedly these exciting and memorable
sports events.

Since late July 2023, the Group found over a hundred fake
Facebook pages disguising as the Group’s page. These Facebook
pages not only stole the company name and trademarks, but
also put in fake posts for fraudulent purposes. In this regard, the
Group has received more than 20,000 customer enquiries. In
order to stop this counterfeit company name in the early stage
of the incident, the Group has applied multiple times for the
official verification badge commonly known as “Blue Check” from
Facebook. Unfortunately, all the applications have been rejected
by Facebook. It was only until the media reported that the Group
intended to send a letter of counsel to Facebook Hong Kong
and the headquarters of Meta, then the Group’s Facebook page
was recognised with a “Blue Check” on the following day. This
courageous step taken by the Group has caused great positive
feedback from the market and has caused Meta to deal with the
seriousness of fake Facebook pages, thus minimising the risk of
consumers falling into the trap of fake pages and incurring losses.

For our hotel business, the two hotels of the Group situated in
Japan, which offer excellent locations and unique quality services,
performed well in 2023 in terms of occupancy rate and recorded
the highest sales since their opening. In addition, Osaka Hinode
Hotel was promoted by Korean social media and regarded as the
most popular hotel in Osaka-Shi among Koreans.

20234# Annual Report 2023 009
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT

In 2023, as the society gradually got back to normal after the
pandemic, global tourism business started to recover. The Group
has also stepped up its efforts in staff recruitment. Apart from the
large scale recruitment campaign held at the end of 2022, the
Group participated in 2023 internship programs held by different
tertiary institutions and other internship opportunities for students
majoring in tourism study. In addition, the Group also organised
recruitment campaigns targeting graduates interested in joining
the tourism industry. Recruited staff will receive systematic training
and promotion opportunities to develop their career in the tourism
industry.

After the removal of social distancing measures by the
Government, the Group resumed its normal staff training
courses. In February 2023, the Group organised a series of
multi-day training activities to boost staff morale and enhance
communication skills. Moreover, since April 2023, the Group has
once again sponsored its staff to study in Japan so that those
who aspire to become escort guides of Japanese tours will have
the opportunity to learn Japanese and local culture on the ground
level.
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The Group has always been committed to environmental
protection. In February 2023, the Group participated in the “Lai
See Reuse and Recycle Program” organised by “Greeners Action”
to encourage colleagues to recycle reusable red packets, and
successfully recycled more than 1,000 reusable red packets,
thus reducing wastage of resources. Moreover, in March 2023,
the Group participated in the “Earth Hour” campaign organised
by the “World Wide Fund for Nature”, encouraging our staff to
turn off non-essential lights and power-consuming products
for one hour to promote power management and reduce
energy consumption, and to contribute to the enhancement of
the ecological environment. The Group collaborated with the
“GREEN@COMMUNITY” under the Environmental Protection
Department to implement a recycling program by arranging
designated recycling contractors to collect materials such as
cardboard boxes, waste paper and plastics twice a month,
and at the same time disseminating environmental protection
information in our internal newsletters to strengthen the awareness
of environmental protection and waste reduction in the daily lives
of our staff. In July 2023, “GREEN@COMMUNITY” explained to
our staff on how to be environmentally friendly by reducing waste
and giving used items a second life through donation and reusing.
At the same time, staff were taught how to make cleaning soap
using materials such as coffee grounds and waste oil, so that
they not only could enjoy a fun craft class, but also learn practical
skills of waste utilisation. In addition, the Group has replaced its
photocopiers with new, more environmentally friendly toners and
arranged the recycling of used toner cartridges to contribute to
environmental protection.

Apart from caring for the protection of natural environment, the
Group is also committed to helping those in need. In February
2023, an earthquake of magnitude 7 struck Turkiye and there was
pressing need for disaster relief supplies. In response to the appeal
of the Consulate of Turkiye, the Group designated three branches
as collection centres, where the branches provided assistance in
supplies collections and transportation arrangements in order to
accept the supplies donation from the community. The Group’s
staff also volunteered to assist in the collection and arrangement
of supplies at the branches. Within three days, 3,000 boxes of
relief supplies were collected and transported successfully to the
logistics warehouse designated by the Consulate of Turkiye. At the
same time, the Group’s staff also spontaneously raised a donation
of over HK$70,000 to purchase more than 1,000 pieces of new
winter clothing for the victims in Turkiye.

2023%4# Annual Report 2023 011
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The Group pays close attention to the balance between work
and life of its staff. In addition to the newly added birthday
leave, the Group has also optimised its policies on marriage and
compassionate leaves, and at the same time implemented flexible
working hours to meet staff’s individual needs and enable them to
better balance work and family. Moreover, interest group activities
were also arranged for staff, such as Japanese light sculpture
art workshop held in June 2023, where staff completed their art
work with the guidance of a professional instructor in a pleasant
atmosphere, letting our staff relax in the midst of their busy
schedules. Apart from static interest group activities, we have also
arranged a variety of sports activities beneficial to the health and
mind of our staffs who like sports, which not only allowed our staff
to compete with contestants from other organisations and enjoy
the competition, but also allowed them to interact with colleagues
from different departments during their spare time, thus enhancing
the cohesiveness of the Group. In October 2023, the Group
participated in the “Corporate Games 2023 — Panasonic Distance
Run Competition” organised by the Leisure and Cultural Services
Department. In December 2023, we also formed a football team
and participated in the Fair Trade Charity Football Cup 2023.
Moreover, we have installed air purifiers in all meeting rooms to
ensure health and hygiene protection of staff and guests during

meetings.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

The Group is confident about the outlook of the travel business.
Through continuous innovation and quality services, as well as
the expansion of its sales network and the planning of specialised
tours, the Group will continue to strive to satisfy the growing
demands of customers and to bring them richer and more
diversified travel experiences and unforgettable travel memories.
Moreover, the Group will continue to increase human resources,
optimise sales management, book and contract aircraft seats to
maintain its competitive edge. At the same time, the Group will
explore strategic partnerships and development opportunities to
expand its business and broaden its sources of income. On the
other hand, with the financial support from banks and the related
company and the significant improvement in profitability, the Group
has ensured that it has adequate working capital for its operations
and future development.
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Despite the challenging business environment, | am confident that
with the Group’s good corporate image, the continued strong
support from our customers and business partners, and the
collective efforts and dedicated services of our staff, the Group’s
performance will continue to improve in the foreseeable future. |
would like to express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders,
customers and business partners, the management team and all
our staffs.

Yuen Man Ying
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 20 March 2024
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GROUP OVERVIEW

In the year of 2023, the COVID-19 pandemic aftermath was
diminishing. The economy and travel industry in Hong Kong have
gradually improved. With fully reopened borders between Hong
Kong and overseas, as well as Mainland China, Hong Kong has
entered a new phase of post-pandemic era. Most of the travel
restrictions have been lifted, and international flights have gradually
resumed. This has revitalized the Hong Kong outbound travel
market and propelled the strong recovery of the travel industry in
2023. The profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the
Year has shown a remarkable turnaround from a loss to a profit.
This positive performance indicates the Company’s resilience and
relentless efforts to recover and thrive despite the challenging
economic conditions brought by the pandemic.

During the Year, revenue of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$1,366.0 million (2022: HK$196.5 million), representing an
increase of 595.2%. Gross profit amounted to approximately
HK$339.8 million (2022: HK$38.9 million), representing an
increase of 773.9%.
Company amounted to approximately HK$71.7 million (2022:
loss attributable to owners of the Company HK$74.3 million),

Profit attributable to owners of the

representing a change of 196.4%.

Basic earnings per share for profit attributable to owners of the
Company for the Year was HK14.26 cents (2022: basic loss
per share HK14.79 cents).
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AEBTEEFOQERMRTE - BHETER 8B The principal activities of the Group comprise provision of package
MRITEEE R AR EE RIHE > URES %  tours, FIT Products, ancillary travel related products and services
T & RS 2T o and sale of merchandises as well as the ownership, development

mIT

and management of hotel business.
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FESXEBOENBRDERER, (B) #5/0TF :

Revenue and gross profit/(loss) from
for the years are set out as follows:

L

various

TH ANNIVERSARY
OF LISTING

business categories

2023 2022
E7

6 EH EFiES @e /(8) ERE

Gross Gross Gross

Gross profit profit/ profit

Revenue profit margin  Revenue® (loss) margin

THET TERT B FTAET FTAET Bt

HK$'000  HK$'000 % HK$'000  HK$'000 %

k1T E Package tours 1,176,082 229,620 19.5 109,530 28,863 26.4
BATER&EIERT FIT Products and ancillary travel

HERE R R R related products and services 88,765 58,839 66.3 19,691 8,951 45.5

HmiHE Sale of merchandises 7,368 2,828 384 20,936 6,215 29.7

HHBEERER Hotel room rental and

BN AR ancillary services 111,616 48,481 434 47853 (5,148) -10.8

tigi=fll Elimination'” (17,811) - - (1,531) - -

ezt Total 1,366,020 339,768 249 196,479 38,881 19.8

0O HEEEREEER ZRE DA Z W

@ WEMEBREFEREMIR UNEREENES]
F BERELE R ERRERH

M Elimination refers to inter-segment revenue of hotel business.

(

8

Comparative figures of revenue have been re-presented to conform

with current year’s presentation and the corresponding ratios were

re-calculated accordingly.
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BB 2023FE W) RCOVID-19t& E R a1 > i1 £ 3
RBIEZRS W ETE R RUBR L EREEN RS
KoBANLBRBEMSBREEERER AL &
EERTERY BB ABERELS AFEWT
%91,176,100,0003 7T (20224 : 109,500,000 7T) °
F1B73973.8% K 5 BA A4 & B Ui 2 42 2886.1% (2022
F155.7%) o EF#A229,600,00078 7T (20224 :
28,900,000/ 7T) > F+18#3695.6% ©

B 172 a0 K 8580 1L Ik 1T 16 R da K AR S

BERTERMEMERTEBERRBRBRTEES
HERR VAEEEE AHRBR -ETEREME B
ShAMIRITE  RBEAERBWARKRTREE BR
BRATUA

25 A B 2R i 25 B 5] R & BB iR 2 BR 1 ~ 182 2 PR B
BB EEREER BHRITE®RKEENEREH
BMEGRKRENUBEEETCEERS AFEEIW
5 #988,800,0003 75 (20224 : 19,700,000 70) » #+
18 73350.8% K ERA AL B N m48%86.5% (20224F !
10.0%) ° EF]4958,800,0007 7T (20224 : 9,000,000
HBIT) P 1B A557.3% °
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PACKAGE TOURS

The lifting of COVID-19 quarantine measures in Hong Kong was
in effect in early 2023, combining with the gradual reopening of
Japan’s borders to tourists and the backlog of travel demand
accumulated in recent years, the outbound travel market in Hong
Kong has become active again. As a result, the Group’s package
tours have shown significant improvement in terms of financial
performance. Revenue for the Year amounted to approximately
HK$1,176.1 million (2022: HK$109.5 million), representing an
increase of 973.8% and contributing 86.1% to the Group’s total
revenue (2022: 55.7%). Gross profit amounted to approximately
HK$229.6 million (2022: HK$28.9 million), representing an
increase of 695.6%.

FIT PRODUCTS AND ANCILLARY TRAVEL RELATED
PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Revenue from FIT Products and ancillary travel related products
and services mainly represents income from sale of air tickets,
hotel accommodation, public transportation tickets, theme park
admission tickets, local tours in overseas, transportation rental
services and commission income from travel insurance services.

Benefiting from an increasing number of countries and regions
lifting their travel restrictions, quarantine measures and vaccination
requirements, the financial performance of FIT Products and
ancillary travel related products and services has also significantly
improved. Revenue for the Year amounted to approximately
HK$88.8 million (2022: HK$19.7 million), representing an increase
of 350.8% and contributing 6.5% to the Group’s total revenue
(2022: 10.0%). Gross profit amounted to approximately HK$58.8
million (2022: HK$9.0 million), representing an increase of 557.3%.
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Hanti &

R2023F 10K AEBESHEKEE FABEAMA
FTEGL Market | BEREZEE  UEMBEAEEER
REEMENTHNTIAEERERENIREER F-BE
ERTEETEFT AKENIEEE LBEYTE
MEEENERK

KEFEWzmAI7,400,000% 75 (20224 : 20,900,000
BIT)  HIEA64.8% M EMAEE W mEEE0.5%
(20224 1 10.7%) ° EF]492,800,00078 7t (20224 :
6,200,00078 7T) * BB A54.5% © JAT » ER X £38.4%
(2022FF 1 29.7%) » B R8.7TEE D

I BE & R BB AR

BEBARRFZESHAREZTENRBSE B8R
REGEEBEANARSEMENETE IS EEE
BERRG R EEENBR TR R EA #E
AR -RIL  BAEXEBNMBEECAERE NS -

AEEBZBIE TAREOE AL R2017F11ARHEA
EiE AR REPREEENAISERE  BENE354
BEEABMNEIILEL I ERRAKRIE HEX
FEEFTHAERAEB0.0% (20224 : 33.1%) °

AEBE _SOBME THEROFRRERBAIE] 522020
F1I2RMBEE A2 RERIRMEGNEERTS-
BEANB0IEEEARM480BE L LHEHH I
BRRKMER BERFEEFIHAEEART5.5%
(20224 : 46.4%) ©
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SALE OF MERCHANDISES

At the end of October 2023, the Group made a strategic move by
closing all physical retail shops of “EGL Market” in order to regroup
and refocus the Group’s resources on what it excels in, the travel
business. Without the brick-and-mortar retail shops, the Group
still meets the needs of customers through the online shopping
platform.

Revenue for the Year amounted to approximately HK$7.4 million
(2022: HK$20.9 million), representing a decrease of 64.8% and
contributing 0.5% to the Group’s total revenue (2022: 10.7%).
Gross profit amounted to approximately HK$2.8 million (2022:
HK$6.2 million), representing a decrease of 54.5%. However, the
gross profit margin was 38.4% (2022: 29.7%), representing an
increase of 8.7 percentage points.

HOTEL ROOM RENTAL AND ANCILLARY SERVICES

Following the gradual reopening of borders by the Japanese
Government to inbound tourists and the welcoming of travellers
from most areas, including Hong Kong, to visit Japan with
unconstrained vaccination requirements and visa-free, the number
of tourists has rebounded. As a result, the financial performance of
the hotel business has considerably improved.

Osaka Hinode Hotel, the Group’s first hotel, commenced its
operation since November 2017. It provides quality hospitality
services for guests from all over the world and has a capacity of
354 rooms for 691 guests with a hot spring bath building adjacent
to it. The hotel’s average occupancy rate for the Year was 80.0%
(2022: 33.1%).

Okinawa Hinode Resort & Hot Spring Hotel, the Group’s second
hotel, commenced its operation since December 2020. It provides
quality hospitality services for guests from all over the world and
has a capacity of 201 rooms for 480 guests with the facilities
ranging from outdoor hot spring to swimming pool. The hotel’s
average occupancy rate for the Year was 75.5% (2022: 46.4%).
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BEEENRRTEABEBEREEMEEMNEA
AN E IR E£111,600,00078 75 (20224 © 47,900,000
BIt)  HIEA183.2% MR EE DR ZWEE
BREIINBEE Z W H 493,800,000 7t (2022£F

46,300,000/ 70) M BB A E B Wz 48 286.9% (2022
£ 123.6%) ° EF]448,500,00058 70 (20224 : Eh5

5,100,000 7T) > B & %1,041.7%

Revenue from hotel operation mainly represents income generated
from the letting of hotel rooms. The revenue for the Year amounted
to approximately HK$111.6 million (2022: HK$47.9 million),
representing an increase of 133.2%. Revenue from external
customers, which was net of inter-segment revenue, amounted
to approximately HK$93.8 million (2022: HK$46.3 million) and
contributing 6.9% to the Group’s total revenue (2022: 23.6%).
Gross profit amounted to approximately HK$48.5 million (2022:

gross loss HK$5.1 million), representing a change of 1,041.7%.

B4 %5 [olE FINANCIAL REVIEW
BRIFLE KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
2023 2022
EF= Gross profit margin 24.9% 19.8%
KSR = Operating profit margin® 8.4% -35.4%
= Net profit margin® 5.2% -37.8%
FEEEZRO Interest coverage ratio™ 4.9{Ztimes -3.1f&times
MEEDRER Return on total assets? 8.3% -8.2%
FN/NETEZZE DN Return on equity attributable to
JE ik 7 23 [O] 3R @ owners of the Company® 151.1% -321.7%
TMENEEE Current ratio 1.0&time 0.71Ftime
fﬁ’cl:l:;'*Z Gearing ratio
BEMBRUALEE Total borrowings over total assets 57.8% 75.1%
aaf*%“lﬂfuﬂxw%“ Net debts over equity 684.0% 2,234.2%

o GEABENEE LIERER A RRER R ER, B
B

@ EFEERFELIERATERS ANEGEER B
e

W REF] BT

B2 X TEEENRANT —EHHNE
ZK%IH&Z 1R ER, BBIET R

IDEE
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M Profit/loss in calculation refers to the profit/loss before finance costs
and taxation.

@ Profit/loss in calculation refers to the profit/loss attributable to
owners of the Company.

REVENUE AND GROSS PROFIT/LOSS

Please refer to the discussion on the Group’s revenue and gross
profit/loss in the sub-section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis — Business Overview” above.
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HEHZ

AARE T AR AEEHEERSINEZE D HE
B2 4970,000,00078 7T (20224 : 37,100,000 7T) °
FIEA88.5%  ILIBNMFERHNIREMIBEAREH
EBEELHIREL

TR~

BERA -ZEFZHI B2 EOLRBEEURYE-
BEREENITEENAEBITHRASZINEZS Do
17382 49159,400,0007 7T (20224F : 100,600,0007%
7T) ° FHIE458.4% o It 3 NN £ A5 o FE Ui 2 4 0 e B 5%
WMoEE—-

A=Y

AREBNESMEEREEET RBRANE BEKR
FETRRFEREFHEEEZIRTEINRAFE
EERE 493,600,000 7T (20224 : 4,100,0007%8
70) °©

ER B —XREEABARETHNERNBRRER
B RAFEEERMEMNA418,000,0008 7T (2022
£ 117,000,000 7T) - BEREBEASEHRBATH
Lo BRERARBRANE EAMSELM

KREERRMNEBETERSELF16RBEI MESE
BYRRES BY, 25 491,400,000 75 (20224 © 1,300,000
7T) ©

Friete (F%) ~#8%

EEWFTEM I 419,600,000 7T (20224 : Ff
BIIE 516,700,000 7T) - HEB F B Z2 A IEIL
RIBIR R EAEERIEFE S FrE -
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SELLING EXPENSES

Frontline staff costs contributed the majority of selling expenses of
the Group. Selling expenses amounted to approximately HK$70.0
million (2022: HK$37.1 million), representing an increase of 88.5%.
Such increase was primarily attributed to hiring of additional
frontline staff resulting from the substantial recovery of the travel
market.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Employee costs, directors’ remuneration, rent, rates and
management fee and depreciation on property, plant and
equipment contributed the majority of administrative expenses of
the Group. Administrative expenses amounted to approximately
HK$159.4 million (2022: HK$100.6 million), representing an
increase of 58.4%. The increase was in line with the increase in
revenue and the opening of new branch shops during the year.

FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs of approximately HK$3.6 million (2022:
HK$4.1 million) was incurred for the Year on the bank borrowings
which were used to finance the construction and decoration of
hotel buildings and hot spring bath building, acquisition of travel
buses and daily operations of travel related business.

Based on discounted cash flows of the loans from a related
company, Great Port, finance costs of approximately HK$18.0
million (2022: HK$17.0 million) were incurred for the Year. Although
the principal outstanding balances were reduced, finance costs
remained rising as a result of effective interest rate hike.

Finance costs resulting from HKFRS 16 “Leases” of approximately
HK$1.4 million (2022: HK$1.3 million) were incurred for the Year.

INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)/CREDIT

Income tax expense for the Year amounted to approximately
HK$19.6 million (2022: income tax credit HK$16.7 million). The
change was mainly attributable to the change from deferred tax
credit to deferred tax expense.
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R2023F 128140  EF QB EREAFESTR7E
R4S R B B > T 5H35,171,5005 7T (20224 : 4®) o G &
Bi2024FE1818H K& ©

ESETERRNEIEERMRE (2022F : H) -

FEBEE

AEENF BBEEXR4.918 (2022F -3.118) -HE
N FTBRRER2022F 8L AFERE AR
ERRERE AR ZEHEHNIRETSNEKNE
Pt 2 Wm REF KB

FEBEXERRBERARRER T, BRI
BB A o

FEFFAEE TR R FFE

EMENE GENBERINENED HSM L
XBitHT EE-

JRENEE

R2023F 12831 H  ZAEBEB R LEEA1.0F (B
2022F12831H : 0.71%) o mELEXRENMEZEHN
RITER R —REERQ BRI RENI 25 5l DA
182,500,000 75 52 30,000,00078 7T U M SR 1T R K
EFIRS I I04915,600,00078 7T ©
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DIVIDENDS

On 14 December 2023, the Board declared a special dividend
of 7 Hong Kong cents per share totalling HK$35,171,500 for
the Year (2022: Nil). The dividends have been distributed on
18 January 2024.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the Year (2022: Nil).

INTEREST COVERAGE RATIO

Interest coverage ratio for the Year was 4.9 times (2022: -3.1
times). The main factor of the change was the results before
finance costs and taxation turned from a loss to a profit for the
Year as compared to 2022. Such change was due to substantial
recovery of the travel market which caused the great increase in
revenue and gross profit.

Interest coverage ratio is defined to be dividing profit/loss before
finance costs and taxation by finance costs.

GROSS PROFIT MARGIN, OPERATING PROFIT MARGIN
AND NET PROFIT MARGIN

For the changes in gross profit margin, operating profit margin
and net profit margin, please refer to the factors already discussed
above.

CURRENT RATIO

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s current ratio was 1.0 time
(as at 31 December 2022: 0.7 time). The increase in current ratio
was mainly attributable to the decrease in current portion of bank
borrowings and loans from a related company of approximately
HK$182.5 million and HK$30.0 million respectively and the
increase in cash at banks and on hand of approximately HK$15.6
million.
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G2 GEARING RATIO
)1
(R
Increase/
2023 2022 (Decrease)
FHET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR — B ER Gearing ratio - Total borrowings
BEEE over total assets
RITER Bank borrowings 313,009 365,366 (52,357)
BENBER Loans from a related company 182,741 313,918 (131,177)
WBIETR (Hfata) Total borrowings (note a) 495,750 679,284 (183,534)
BEE Total assets 858,241 905,056 (46,815)
BB X Gearing ratio 57.8% 75.1% -17.3
EEPES
percentage
points
BRI R — B EFEMBRLURERERE  Gearing ratio - Net debts over equity
WBIETR (Hfata) Total borrowings (note a) 495,750 679,284 (183,534)
HEARE Lease liabilities 48,465 40,998 7,467
IR (ratp) Total debts (note b) 544,215 720,282 (176,067)
B RITIEA R ER RE Less: Cash at banks and on hand (219,940) (204,300) (15,640)
324,275 515,982 (191,707)
s (Hzte) Equity (note ¢) 47,408 23,095 24,313
BIRLEE Gearing ratio 684.0% 2,234.2% -1,550.2
(EEEpag
percentage
points
Vo= Notes:
(a) HERSERTERRBEEABDER (a)  Total borrowings comprise bank borrowings and loans from a related

() BEZFEFBRITER

BERTERKIEEAR-

© KRERDSEAABDES ABGITABERRE#HRE-

company.

Total debts comprise bank borrowings, loans from a related
company and lease liabilities.

Equity comprises all capital and reserves attributable to owners of
the Company.
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F2017FE10B B T TAREDOFBIE ME * 722023
F12H31HIRITERZREE492,663,600,000H
(FBE 7 49146,000,000787T) (F22022F12831H
2,838,500,000H Bl (B E 1 49167,400,000587T)) &

MEAR A AR 12ERNER -

F2019FSHAB T ARBERAKRIEMES » 7122023
F12831HIRITERZEREEA422,500,000H
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F2020F 10 TN MH4B R0 R R ERBE]
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The decreases in two gearing ratios were mainly attributable to
the decrease in total borrowings resulting from early repayments
of loans from the related party, Great Port, and the installment
repayments of bank borrowings.

RETURN ON TOTAL ASSETS AND RETURN ON EQUITY
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMFANY

Return on total assets and return on equity attributable to owners
of the Company for the Year were 8.3% (2022: -8.2%) and
151.1% (2022: -321.7%) respectively. The changes in two returns
were mainly due to the fact that the results attributable to owners
of the Company changed from a loss to a profit for the Year as
compared to 2022. Such change was due to substantial recovery
of travel market which caused the great increase in revenue and
gross profit.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

Regarding the construction of Osaka Hinode Hotel completed in
October 2017, the carrying amount of the bank borrowings as
at 31 December 2023 amounted to approximately JPY2,663.6
million (equivalent to approximately HK$146.0 million) (as
at 31 December 2022: JPY2,838.5 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$167.4 million)). The repayment term is payable
in 12 years.

For the construction of hot spring bath building in Osaka which
was completed in March 2019, the carrying amount of the bank
borrowings as at 31 December 2023 amounted to approximately
JPY422.5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$23.2 million)
(as at 31 December 2022: JPY447.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$26.4 million)). The repayment term is payable in
12 years.

With respect to the construction of Okinawa Hinode Resort & Hot
Spring Hotel completed in October 2020, the carrying amount
of the bank borrowings as at 31 December 2023 amounted to
approximately JPY2,572.7 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$141.0 million) (as at 31 December 2022: JPY2,686.7 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$158.5 million)). The repayment
term is payable in 26 years.
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With regard to the acquisition of five travel buses in 2017, the
carrying amount of the bank borrowings as at 31 December 2023
amounted to approximately JPY50.9 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$2.8 million) (as at 31 December 2022:
JPY52.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$3.1 million)). The
repayment term is payable in 5 years. The final repayment date
was postponed to 31 January 2024 and the balance was repaid in
full accordingly.

The bank borrowing in Hong Kong for the Group’s working capital
of its travel related business operation was fully repaid and no
outstanding balance remained as at 31 December 2023 (as at
31 December 2022: HK$10.0 million).

Regarding the financial support from the related company,
Great Port, the carrying amount of six loans withdrawn from
2020 to 2022 amounted to approximately HK$313.9 million
as at 31 December 2022. During the Year, the Group made
early repayments of a total principal amount of HK$150.0
million. The third, fourth and sixth loans were fully repaid. As at
31 December 2023, only the first, second and fifth loans were
outstanding with the total carrying amount of approximately
HK$182.7 million. All these three loans are unsecured and
repayable on 1 January 2026.

Other than the above, the Group financed its operation with its
own capital, with the total equity attributable to owners of the
Company as at 31 December 2023 amounted to approximately
HK$47.4 million (as at 31 December 2022: HK$23.1 million).
As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s cash at banks and
on hand amounted to approximately HK$219.9 million (as at
31 December 2022: HK$204.3 million). Cash at banks and on
hand were mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollar accounting
for approximately 62.1% (as at 31 December 2022: 77.9%),
Japanese Yen accounting for approximately 20.1% (as at
31 December 2022: 16.3%), Euro accounting for approximately
1.6% (as at 31 December 2022: 1.8%) and Macau Pataca
accounting for approximately 8.4% (as at 31 December 2022:
1.2%).
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023, property, plant and equipment of
Okinawa Hinode Resort & Hot Spring Hotel, Osaka Hinode
Hotel together with the hot spring bath building, travel buses,
and certain pledged bank balances in Japan of approximately
HK$399.4 million in total (as at 31 December 2022:
HK$432.7 million) were pledged for the bank borrowings in Japan
as mentioned in the sub-section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis — Financial Review — Capital Structure, Liquidity and
Finance Resources”.

Also, as at 31 December 2023, the Group had pledged
bank deposits of approximately HK$10.2 million (as at
31 December 2022: HK$8.1 million). Excluding those pledged
bank balances in Japan mentioned above, majority of the pledged
bank deposits were pledged to certain licensed banks in Hong
Kong and Macau to secure the bank borrowings withdrawn
in Hong Kong and letters of guarantees issued to certain
third parties on behalf of the Group. Together with corporate
guarantee provided by the Company and undertakings provided
by the certain executive Directors to maintain the control over
the management and business of the Group, the Group’s total
guarantees amounted to approximately HK$10.4 million (as at
31 December 2022: HK$7.3 million), which were mainly issued
to the Group’s branch shop landlords and suppliers, such as air
transport association, airlines and hotels in order to guarantee the
Group’s trade payable balances due to the suppliers.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other charge on
assets as at 31 December 2023 (as at 31 December 2022: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND FUTURE CAPITAL
EXPENDITURES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had capital commitments
of approximately HK$0.9 million (as at 31 December 2022:
HK$0.5 million) to acquire property, plant and equipment for its
travel related business.

The Group currently intends to finance future capital expenditures
by utilising existing internal resources.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Directors considered that there were no material contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2023 (as at 31 December 2022: Nil).
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

During the Year, the Group subscribed 40% equity interest
in Nissay Shoji (HK) Company Limited (“Nissay”) by a cash
consideration of HK$0.4 million. Nissay’s primary businesses are
(a) importing, wholesaling and retailing of food, personal care and
beauty products; and (b) food processing. In addition, the Group
advanced interest-bearing loans of HK$0.8 million to it. The Group
initially expected that the investment in Nissay would facilitate the
business of EGL Market, but as the Group scaled down the sale
of merchandises business segment in October 2023 mentioned
above, the initial reason for acquiring the investment is no
longer relevant. Also, the operation result was not performed as
expected. The Group fully wrote off the investment and the loans,
and the shareholders have agreed to wind up Nissay.

Save as disclosed above, there was no material acquisition or
disposal of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures of the Group
(2022: Nil).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

During the Year, there was no significant investment held by the
Group (2022: Nil).
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FOREIGN CURRENCY EXCHANGE RISK AND
TREASURY POLICIES

Foreign currency exchange risk exposure is encountered by the
Group to the extent that receipt from customers and payments
to suppliers may not be reconciled, subject to prevailing foreign
currency fluctuations. As at 31 December 2023, the floating to
fixed interest rate swap contract with a bank in Japan to hedge its
exposure to interest rate risk and cash flow changes of its floating-
rate bank borrowings was matured. Other than the aforesaid
swap contract, the Group did not rely on hedging arrangements.
The Group had implemented foreign exchange risk management
procedures to closely monitor the risk exposure. The procedures
were established to prevent carrying excessive cash balance in
foreign currencies, of which the purchase amounts were limited
to the corresponding costs of travel elements based on estimated
sales amount for one week, to cover the foreign exchange risk
exposure in connection. The objective of our foreign exchange
risk management procedures is to cover the foreign exchange
risk exposure in connection with those costs of travel elements
denominated in foreign currencies to be incurred for one week.
The procedures do not allow us to exercise any judgement over
the future direction of foreign exchange fluctuation and are strict
procedural steps for our operational staff to follow. The Group will
review the procedures from time to time and make appropriate
changes when necessary. Other than the transactional foreign
currency exchange risk, assets and liabilities of the group entities
are mainly denominated in its respective functional currency. The
Group’s treasury management policy is to place surplus cash into
bank deposits with licensed banks in mainly Hong Kong, Macau
and Japan. Also, working capital are centrally managed to ensure
proper and efficient collection and deployment of funds, and
sufficient funds to settle liabilities when they fall due. Net exchange
loss of approximately HK$1.8 million was recorded for the Year
(2022: HK$3.5 million).
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND EMPLOYEES'
REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total workforce of 419
employees (as at 31 December 2022: 294), of which 123 (as at
31 December 2022: 56) were full-time tour leaders and escort
guides. Employees’ remuneration packages are determined with
reference to the market information and individual performance
and will be reviewed on a regular basis. The remuneration policy
will be reviewed by the Board from time to time. Emoluments of
Directors are determined by the remuneration committee of the
Board after considering the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparing with market conditions. In addition to
basic remuneration, the Group also provides medical insurance,
provident funds and other benefits in kind to the employees.
To intensify personnel training and development, the Group
provides a series of employee training programmes, which aims
to accelerate professional growth and identify competences and
talents of diversified teams. High potential staff will be groomed
and developed intensively according to the promotion plan
towards the management level. To attract and retain the suitable
personnel for the development of the Group, the Group has
adopted a share option scheme since November 2014. Pursuant
to the share option scheme, share options may be granted to
eligible employees of the Group as a long-term incentive. No share
options were granted, cancelled, lapsed or exercised during
the Year (2022: Nil). During 2020, 2021 and 2022, due to the
adverse impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, no-pay leaves and
salary reductions have been arranged for employees. Manpower
has been re-structured. Other than that, there was no significant
change in the remuneration policies, bonus, share option scheme
and training scheme of the Group (2022: Nil).
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OUR STRATEGIES AND OUTLOOK

In 2023, Hong Kong entered into a new phase after years of
battling with the COVID-19 pandemic. International travel has
resumed and the economy of Hong Kong showed signs of
continued recovery and growth as various sectors regained
momentum. The Hong Kong Government plays a crucial role
in this regard, particular in promoting outbound travel. The
Hong Kong Government enacted various measures, incentives,
marketing campaigns, and airline partnerships, to stimulate
outbound travel demand and encourage travellers to explore
international destinations. The management of the Group remains
cautiously optimistic and anticipates Hong Kong’s economy to be
vibrant and lively. Improvement in the travel industry environment
is expected throughout 2024. The Group will explore new market
opportunities to expand, and at the same time experiment
with different strategies to accommodate the ever-changing
preferences of travellers.

In June 2023, the Group announced a new limited-time sub-brand
“Don’t just visit Japan, go travel around the world with us” (Don’t
Wi EHHHEHAESGERIK) . The sub-brand forms part of the
Group’s marketing strategy by introducing a variety of high-quality
international special tours and FIT packages to destinations aside
from Japan to meet the diverse customer demand. The Group
will continue to enhance brand awareness, expand the customer
base, and maintain sales growth by diversifying and launching
promotional activities.
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As part of the Group’s efforts to improve the flexibility of tour
schedules and secure flight availability, the Group will continue to
arrange charter flights to facilitate sales and reinforce brand image.

During the Year, the Group opened three new travel agency
branches in Kowloon Bay, Tuen Mun and Tseung Kwan O
respectively. Along with our existing branches, there were a total
of 8 branches in Hong Kong at the end of the Year. In July 2023,
the Macau branch was expanded to provide additional office
space, the expansion took place on the ground floor of the Macau
office building. Expanding the travel agency network enhances the
Group’s competitiveness in the travel industry, and in turn enables
us to establish a stronger brand presence and capture a larger
market share. The Group will continue to explore and consider all
feasible options to spread the branch network, expand employee
count, and diversify our sources of revenue.

At the end of October 2023, the Group closed all brick-and-mortar
retail shops of “EGL Market”. This strategic move was to regroup
and refocus of the Group’s resources on what it excels in, the
travel related business. With this strategy in place, the Group will
be able to gain a competitive advantage by utilizing its expertise,
resources, experience and industry knowledge.

In light of the Year’s financial performance and the ongoing
financial support from the related company, Great Port, the Group
anticipates there will be sufficient working capital to fund its future
operations, but will remain cautious on the cash position. Cash in
excess of working capital will be utilized in reducing the Group’s
gearing. The Group will explore additional sources of income to
expedite the above.

The Group is well positioned in the market to provide high-
quality services and products. The Group is confident in Hong
Kong’s economy and is committed to regaining momentum and
strengthening itself gradually. With a dedicated professional team
and management, the Group is well positioned to overcome
the challenges ahead and maintain its leading market position,
while creating long-term value for shareholders, customers, and
business partners.

2023%4# Annual Report 2023 031



2023[E]§E 2023 REVIEW

hFEHRHHE

Five Year Financial Summary

& (F#50)
Revenue (HK$’000)
2,000,000
1,800,000 1,728,328
||
1,600,000

1,400,000 1,366,020
1,200,000

1,000,000
800,000
600,000

400,000 249,771
2 196,479

200,000 i
44,578
; woo

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

=== %17 @ Package tours
B H1TERREBMERITERE SR RS

FIT Products and ancillary travel related products and services

w7 Y E Sale of merchandises

EH (8) F#7w

Gross Profit/(Loss) (HK$’000)

350,000
300,000
250,000
200,000
150,000
100,000

50,000

0

-50,000

m HIEEEEREB RS Hotel room rental and ancillary services

AR AEERT), (518) F50
Profit/(Loss) attributable to owners
of the Company (HK$’000)

100,000 71,657
50,000
14,001
0 mmm (108760) (155635)  (74,299)
-50,000
-100,000
-150,000
-200,000
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
sRERN, (R ew
Earnings/(Loss) per share (HK cents)
15 14.26
10
° =0 (21.65) (30.98) (14.79)
, W 2 : :
-5
-10
-15
-20
-25
-30
-35
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

032 =m=muEiRARAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

400,000
350,000
300,000
250,000
200,000
150,000
100,000

50,000

0

276,385

2019

350,577

2019

(12,795)
|

2020

252,583

2020

(29,177)

2021

TAFEE AE(E#RE T80
Equity attributable to owners
of the Company (HK$’000)

123,897

2021

38,881

2022

23,095

2022

339,768

2023

47,408

2023



| W

L

TH ANNIVERSARY
OF LISTING

[ |
AFERHFHRE
Five Year Financial Summary
HE12BNALEE
For the year ended 31 December
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
FTAT TAT TAR TAT TET
e Results HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
gl Revenue®
HEATE " Package tours 1,176,082 109,530 7,734 218,984 1,489,214
BATERREERT FIT Products and ancillary travel
TR E R R related products and services 88,765 19,691 5,234 17,096 193,175
EHmiiE \ Sale of merchandises 7,368 20,936 17,504 7,418 -
KA BE R B KB AR Hotel room rental and ancillary services 111,616 47,853 14,106 9,406 71,775
=Ll Elimination® (17,811) (1,531) - (3,133) (25,836)
1,366,020 196,479 44578 249,771 1,728,328
7/ (B) Gross profit/(loss)
JR1TE Package tours 229,620 28,863 1,549 13,583 191,656
BHTERREERT FIT Products and ancillary travel
BRI E B R AR related products and services 58,839 8,951 3,386 10,341 68,770
EEREEES Sale of merchandises 2,828 6,215 3,973 1,541 -
WA BL R B R B AR Hotel room rental and ancillary services 48,481 (5,148) (38,085) (38,260) 15,959
339,768 38,881 (29,177) (12,795) 276,385
HMWA -~ RE R B8 35 Other income, gains and losses, net 2,150 30,418 11,313 14,452 4,479
BIEBERFRE Share of results of associates 2,193 (238) (513) (1,053) 2,198
HitiSEm% Other operating expenses (55) (818) (33,452) (1,277) -
RE AR PSR AT Profit/(Loss) before finance costs
_ &R/ (658 and income tax 114,603 (69.538)  (184,479)  (142,607) 18,790
RREM A Finance costs (23,183) (22,658) (14,854) (6,992) (7,042)
Fifsin (%) /% Income tax (expense)/ credit (19,586) 16,697 42,908 39,925 2,877
FERA/ (58) Profit/(Loss) for the year 71,834 (75,499) (156,425) (109,674) 14,625
FERER (Profit)/Loss attributable to
1 (a7l /8518 non-controlling interests 77) 1,200 790 914 (624)
/NGIEZZ DN Profit/(Loss) attributable to
FEfiaF/ (8518) owners of the Company 71,657 (74,299) (155,635) (108,760) 14,001
gkEE Per share data
SRR/ (E518) Earnings/(Loss) per share
—EAREHE (B - Basic and diluted (HK cents) 14.26 (14.79) (30.98) (21.65) 2.79
BIFLE= Financial ratios
ERE Gross profit margin 24.9% 19.8% -65.5% -5.1% 16.0%
SR Operating profit margin® 8.4% -35.4% -413.8% -57.1% 1.1%
e Net profit margin® 5.2% -37.8% -349.1% -43.5% 0.8%
HEEEX0 Interest coverage ratio® 4.9f3times  -3.1f%tmes -12.4fGtimes  -20.4Btimes  2.7fZtimes
48 E DR Return on total assets® 8.3% -8.2% -17.2% -10.3% 1.3%
1 2 O] 3R = Return on equity® 151.1% -321.7% -125.6% -43.1% 4.0%
MEPLEE Current ratio 1.0fEtime 0.71&time 0.61Ztime 0.713time  1.1{3times
B = Gearing ratio
—RETBRUEEEC - Total borrowings over total assets® 57.8% 75.1% 76.6% 64.2% 34.1%
—FEBRURRERO - Net debts over equity® 684.0% 2,234.2% 493.0% 252.3% 66.9%
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Comparative figures of revenue have been re-presented to conform
with the presentation for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Elimination refers to inter-segment revenue of hotel business.

Operating profit/loss in calculation is defined to be profit/loss before
finance costs and taxation.

Profit/loss in calculation is defined to be profit/loss attributable to
owners of the Company.

Interest coverage ratio is defined to be dividing profit/loss before
finance costs and taxation by finance costs.

Gearing ratio:

Total borrowings comprise bank borrowings and loans from a
related company

- Net debts comprise bank borrowings, loans from a related
company and lease liabilities less cash at banks and on hand

- Equity comprises all capital and reserves attributable to
owners of the Company

Details of dividends attributable to owners of the Company for the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 are set out in note 11 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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As at 31 December
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
FTET FET FHET FET FHET
BEREE Assets and Liabilities HK’000 HK’'000 HK’000 HK’000 HK’'000
mEE Total assets 858,241 905,056 905,115 1,053,511 1,091,880
RN =RE Total liabilities (813,096)  (884,587)  (782,821)  (801,878)  (738,859)
T 4a%R Total equity 45,145 20,469 122,294 251,633 353,021
STABEEDN Bank borrowings included in
RITHER total liabilities (313,009)  (365,366)  (420,118)  (476,796)  (372,875)
FIEABIEM Loans from a related company (182,741)  (313,918)  (272,874) (200,000 -
HEiEEE Total equity
RABEB A Equity attributable to
FE(L owners of the Company 47,408 23,095 123,897 252,583 350,577
FEER Non-controlling interests (2,263) (2,626) (1,603) (950) 2,444

45,145 20,469 122,294 251,633 353,021
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The Directors submit herewith their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in
note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$110.2 million (2022: HK$145.3
million).

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year and the state of affairs of
the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2023 are set out
in the consolidated financial statements on pages 93 to 217 of
this annual report. On 14 December 2023, the Board declared a
special dividend of 7 Hong Kong cents per Share (2022: HK$NIil).
The special dividend has been paid on 18 January 2024 to the
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company at the close of business on 5 January 2024. The
Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
Year (2022: HK$NIil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Year and a
discussion of the Group’s future business development are set
out in the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 6 to 13 and the
sub-sections headed “Management Discussion and Analysis
- Business Overview” on pages 16 to 20 and “Management
Discussion and Analysis — Our Strategies and Outlook” on pages
30 to 31 of this annual report respectively.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Certain principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group may

affect its business, operating results and financial conditions,

including:

()

OCCURRENCE OF NATURAL DISASTERS,
ACTS OR THREATS OF TERRORISM, WARS,
TRAVEL RELATED ACCIDENTS, OUTBREAK
OF CONTAGIOUS DISEASES OR OTHER
CATASTROPHIC EVENTS

The demand for the Group’s travel related products, services
and hotel accommodations may be materially and adversely
affected by natural disasters, acts or threats of terrorism,
wars, travel related accidents, outbreak of contagious
diseases (including COVID-19) or other catastrophic events.
Such events may significantly and adversely affect customer
sentiments and demand for travel related products, services
and hotel accommodations to the affected destinations or
for travel activities in general. The occurrence and timing of
such events cannot be predicted or controlled by the Group
and may have significant and adverse impact on its assets,
business operations and operating results, particularly if the
Group is, or is perceived to be, not reacting appropriately in
the wake of any such event.
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(i)

(i)

(v)

CHANGE IN ECONOMIC CONDITIONS OF MAJOR
MARKETS

The Group’s business is based in Hong Kong and Macau
and its revenue is mainly derived from the sale of travel
related products and services in Hong Kong and Macau. Any
economic downturn or recession in Hong Kong or Macau
could lead to decline in demand for the Group’s products or
services and its overall business and operating results may
be materially and adversely affected.

CHANGE IN ECONOMIC, SOCIAL OR POLITICAL
CONDITIONS AND LAWS AND REGULATIONS
RELATED TO JAPAN

The business and operating results of the Group might be
adversely affected if there is any material adverse change in
the economic, social or political situations relating to Japan,
including its foreign relationship with other Asian countries,
or laws and regulations, including building regulations and
health and safety regulations or if there are any serious
natural disasters or disastrous accidents occurring in Japan,
which may adversely impact customer demand for travel
related products and services of the Group related to Japan
and as well as the hotel accommodations in Japan.

HIGHLY COMPETITIVE HOSPITALITY INDUSTRY IN
JAPAN

Osaka Hinode Hotel and Okinawa Hinode Resort &
Hot Spring Hotel, which are located in Osaka and
Okinawa respectively, might face competition from other
accommodation options in Japan currently existing or which
may come into operation in the future. The success of the
Group’s hotels operation will depend on its ability to compete
in aspects such as room rates, quality of accommodation,
service level and convenience of location.

Further description of possible capital risks and financial risks

facing by the Group are set out in note 37 and note 38 to the

consolidated financial statements respectively and the sub-section

headed “Management Discussion and Analysis — Foreign Currency

Exchange Risk and Treasury Policies” on page 28 of this annual

report.
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An analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year using
financial key performance indicators is set out in the “Five Year
Financial Summary” on pages 32 to 35 and the sub-section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis — Financial Review”
on pages 20 to 29 of this annual report respectively. Particulars
of important events affecting the Group that have occurred since
the end of the Year, if any, can also be found in the above sections
of this annual report and notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND COMPLIANCE
WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of the
environment and has implemented certain policies to minimise
the impact on the environment caused by its business activities.
The Group has implemented internal recycling program on a
continuous basis for consumables such as toner, cartridges and
paper to minimise the operation impact on the environment and
natural resources. Recycled papers have also been used as
printing materials. The Group also implemented energy saving
practices in offices and branch premises, where applicable. To the
extent practicable, the Group completed the upgrade of electricity
systems to achieve the energy saving to workplace. The Board is
of the opinion that the Group has complied with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group in all
material respects during the Year. The Group endeavours to refine
the approach to addressing its environmental, social and ethical
responsibilities along with improving its corporate governance and
should generate greater value for all of its stakeholders including
its shareholders, employees, customers, and suppliers as well as
the communities.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

The “Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2023” of the
Company prepared in accordance with Appendix C2 to the Listing
Rules to be published at the same time as this annual report.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that employees, customers and suppliers
are keys to its sustainable development. The Group is committed
to establishing a close and caring relationship with its employees,
providing quality services to its customers and enhancing
cooperation with its business partners. The Group provides a
fair and safe workplace, promotes diversity to its staff, provides
competitive remuneration and benefits and career development
opportunities based on their merits and performance. The Group
also puts ongoing efforts to provide adequate trainings and
development resources to the employees so that they can keep
abreast of the latest development of the market and the industry
and, at the same time, improve their performance and self
fulfillment in their positions.

The Group understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with customers and provide products and services
which satisfy the needs and requirements of the customers.
The Group enhances its customer relationship by continuous
interaction with customers to gain insight on the changing market
demand for different products and services so that the Group can
respond proactively. The Group has also established procedures
in handling customers’ feedbacks and complaints to ensure
customers’ opinions are dealt with in a prompt and timely manner.

The Group maintains sound business relationship with its
suppliers and service providers, including land, airlines and
hotel operators, globally. In order to have a better and close
monitoring of suppliers’ performance, the Group’s management
conducts performance review regularly targeting the Group’s major
suppliers and service providers, and communicates with them for

rectification and improvements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years are set out on pages
32 to 35 of this annual report.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

LIST OF PROPERTIES

As at 31 December 2023, details of the properties owned by the
Group are as follows:

A & BEE
i ESi BmE g
kY] fi & EHEDL AR (FEHK) (FHHK) RERR
Approximate Approximate
Percentage Aggregate Gross Floor
Interest in Available Site Area Area Existing
Name Location the Property Rooms (sq.m.) (sq.m.) Use
KIREDF BIE BARKRRFAARS 100% 354 1,602.07 9,883.83 B
REEEXER-—TH
2FE13/K%2E33
Osaka Hinode Hotel 2-13 and 2-33, Hotel
Ebisunishi, 1-Chome, Naniwa-Ku,
Osaka-Shi, Osaka-Fu, Japan
BROEFEABR BARKRRAARS 100% 16 266.01 1,008.33 RRA
REEEZERA—TE
%31 K 2E32
Hinode Deep-water Hot Spring 2-31 and 2-32, Hot spring bath
Ebisunishi, 1-Chome, Naniwa-Ku,
Osaka-Shi, Osaka-Fu, Japan
HBEOX BRERBE BAHEHE T 100% 201 2,327.89 6,296.21 BIE
WE=TH

Okinawa Hinode Resort &
Hot Spring Hotel

348-1+3463505:353-6
348-1, 346, 350 and 353-6,

3-Chome, Makishi,

Naha City, Okinawa, Japan

Hotel

Az 7s

ARBZRAREFEBHREALE

BE - LENBRIRAT Z EHES

REFEE> ARBHEEAMNBLARHEBE HE
HERIAAFEMF LEHES -

SHARE CAPITAL

There was no movement in the share capital of the Company
during the Year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to HK$27,000 (2022: HK$NIil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the aggregate amount of turnover attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers represent less than 30% of the
Group’s total turnover.

The percentages of purchases for the Year attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers are as follows:

AR
MBIRABEE
a2
Approximate
Percentage of
the Group’s Total

Purchases
RAMER The largest supplier 13.7%
hAREEEE T Five largest suppliers in aggregate 28.4%

MEZAA MEEF HEBBHBRANTAEES
FIMBEE A RBEHITRAESWU LZRER  REFE
BEAEAEREAERE R NHBEENEMRE
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As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors, their
close associates or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of
the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) has any interest during the Year in any of the Group’s five
largest customers or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors in office during the Year and up to the date of this
report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen Man Ying (Chairman)
Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen

Mr. Leung Shing Chiu

Ms. Lee Po Fun

Ms. Yuen Ho Yee

Mr. Cheang Chuen Hon

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kim Fai
Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric
Ms. Wong Lai Ming

Pursuant to Article 108 of the Articles of Association, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time
being or, if their number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every 3 years. Any Directors
to retire shall be those who have been the longest in office since
their last re-election or appointment but as between persons who
became or were last re-elected Directors on the same day, those
to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among themselves)
be determined by lot. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election. Accordingly, Ms. Yuen Ho Yee, Mr. Cheang Chuen Hon,
Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric and Ms. Wong Lai Ming will retire by
rotation at the 2024 AGM. Ms. Yuen Ho Yee, Mr. Cheang Chuen
Hon and Ms. Wong Lai Ming, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election at the 2024 AGM. Due to other business
commitments which require more of his dedications, Mr. Tang
Koon Hung Eric, though being eligible, will not offer himself for re-
election at the 2024 AGM.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group as at the date of this report are set out on pages 80 to
84 of this annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Company
has in force indemnity provisions as permitted under the relevant
statutes for the benefit of the Directors (including former Directors)
of the Company. The permitted indemnity provisions are provided
for in the Articles of Association and in the directors and officers
liability insurance maintained for the Group in respect of potential
liability and costs associated with legal proceedings that may be
brought against such Directors.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, other than employment contracts or appointment
letters, concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or subsisted during the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme as set out under the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” of this report, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Company that will or may
result in the Company issuing Shares or that require the Company
to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing Shares during the Year or subsisted at the end of
the Year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
2024 AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code were as follows:

() LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES OF THE COMFPANY

(kNS
5% R VN BE&TRE
RH#HE e EER BaEL

Approximate %

Number of Shares of the Issued

Held in Share Capital
Name of Director Capacity the Company Total Interests of the Company
=x&EEE (REE)) BmEBA 840,000 1,496,000 0.30%
Mr. Yuen Man Ying Beneficial owner
(“Mr. Yuen”) FofBR e m 656,000
Interest of spouse (Brz£1) (Note 1)
BE2EE ((BEL) BmEBA 500,000 17,228,000 3.43%
Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen Beneficial owner
(“Mr. Huen”) REEHZENER 16,728,000
Interest of a controlled (Bt522) (Note 2)
corporation
Rkl s (TREE) BaEEA 7,216,000 7,216,000 1.44%
Mr. Leung Shing Chiu Beneficial owner
(“Mr. Leung”)
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Approximate %
Number of Shares of the Issued
Held in Share Capital
Name of Director Capacity the Company Total Interests of the Company
FESZT (FEL+)) Bm#EBA 656,000 1,496,000 0.30%
Ms. Lee Po Fun Beneficial owner
(‘Ms. Lee") BRI R 840,000
Interest of spouse (#fz£3) (Note 3)
BEELRE BmEBA 6,000 6,000 0.00%
Mr. Cheang Chuen Hon Beneficial owner
HtaE - Notes:
1) REEAZTLCLIZEHE HIEEZEHERBERK (1) Mr. Yuen was deemed to be interested in 656,000 ordinary

B EXVES > E%&%‘ﬁﬁ%ﬁé UrtFEREEZ
656,0008% Z @R DB RER o

Shares beneficially owned by Ms. Lee by virtue of his being
the spouse of Ms. Lee for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

2) HERBLEEEE2EHHR) 5516,728,0008% (2)  The 16,728,000 Shares were held by Kwok Lai, which is
B&AR © wholly-owned by Mr. Huen directly.
B FTuTARKEZERMB WREFZERBER (8)  Ms. Lee was deemed to be interested in 840,000 Shares

BIEXVE  EWBRANRRLEFERERSZ
840,000/ B& 17 F#EB #E i o

beneficially owned by Mr. Yuen by virtue of her being the
spouse of Mr. Yuen for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.
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() B G LERG 2 E () LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES OF THE

ASSOCIATED CORPORATION OF THE COMPANY

REMEEE iEAEEEE S

BEEML HEEE S 8 R4 E S IER
Total Number of Approximate %

Name of Shares Held in of Interest in

Associated the Associated the Associated

Name of Director Corporation Capacity Corporation Corporation

RHE IBEEE KIS EFEMIIA 8,850 26.70%
Mr. Yuen Evergloss Founder of a discretionary trust (Wta#1) (Note 1)

|t IBEEE REEGEZEN#E R 7,650 23.08%
Mr. Huen Evergloss Interest of a controlled corporation (Htz22) (Note 2)

REHE IBEEE BmEAA 3,300 9.95%
Mr. Leung Evergloss Beneficial owner

&y ogun REEE MBEEHZSEAREREE A 9,450 28.51%
Ms. Lee Evergloss Beneficiary of a discretionary trust (H13#3) (Note 3)

& beneficial owner

RFELT REEE HEGEHEZREAREBERERA 9,450 28.51%
Ms. Yuen Ho Yee Evergloss Beneficiary of a discretionary trust (B1zt4) (Note 4)

& beneficial owner
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EER) 558,850 B EE R » Alpadis Trust (HK)
LimitedZThe Yuen Family 2014 TrustB9=5E A > MThe
Yuen Family 2014 TrustBRTEEUEEZEFETL T RL
BRAEBEZT BWARTENHEAN) 2HEZ R AR
IMEIEERE e

Bl (BBEEERL2ERR) A7 660RIEEEIER

e

9,450 12 BE B IR A 1D 7 » FIIEE (Alpadis Trust (HK)
Limitedz 2 &M B A 5] FH8,8508 1% > Alpadis
Trust (HK) LimitedZThe Yuen Family 2014 Trustf952 5
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9,450 12 BE B IR AL 1D 7 > FIIEE (Alpadis Trust (HK)
Limitedz 2 &M B2 5] 558,850 1% > Alpadis
Trust (HK) LimitedZThe Yuen Family 2014 Trustf952 5
AN R HBRTAZELTmAZ— i T600R 12
EERMBAREBL T FABRER AR

ff ECRREEEE SN > 120235128318 ifEEE 5]
RABRBITBRAEBRAATRETAABE EZE (E
EREBELHREEAIEXVE) ZkMm  BRERMDIEE
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Notes:

1. The 8,850 shares in Evergloss were held by Likang Limited
(“Likang”), which is wholly-owned by Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited
being the trustee of The Yuen Family 2014 Trust, which is a
discretionary trust set up by Mr. Yuen whose discretionary objects
are Ms. Lee and Ms. Yuen Ho Yee, wife and daughter of Mr. Yuen
respectively and both an associate of Mr. Yuen.

2. The 7,650 shares in Evergloss were held by Kwok Lai, which is
wholly-owned by Mr. Huen directly.

3. Out of the 9,450 shares in Evergloss, 8,850 shares were held by
Likang, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited
which is the trustee of The Yuen Family 2014 Trust. Ms. Lee is one of
the beneficiaries of the trust. The remaining 600 shares in Evergloss
were held by Ms. Lee as the beneficial owner.

4. Out of the 9,450 shares in Evergloss, 8,850 shares were held by
Likang, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited
which is the trustee of The Yuen Family 2014 Trust. Ms. Yuen Ho Yee
is one of the beneficiaries of the trust. The remaining 600 shares in
Evergloss were held by Ms. Yuen Ho Yee as the beneficial owner.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company, or any of its associated corporation (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, so far as is known to any Director or
chief executive of the Company, the following shareholders (other
than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company:

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES OF THE COMFANY

(=R NG
BEEXAT BEITRA
RRAD M B S I=Radan

Approximate %
Total Number of of the Issued

Shares Held Share Capital

Name of Shareholder Capacity in the Company of the Company

rERE B 1 BEmEREA 301,642,000 60.03%

Evergloss Beneficial owner

Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited ZEEA 340,018,000 67.67%
Trustee (H1&t) (Note)

Alpadis Group Holding AG NEESEBE N ER 340,018,000 67.67%
Interest of a controlled corporation (H1&t) (Note)

Alain ESSEIVASL & NREGFEENER 340,018,000 67.67%

Mr. Alain ESSEIVA Interest of a controlled corporation (H1&t) (Note)

Wei Lee TEOLZ + Interest of spouse 340,018,000 67.67%

Ms. Wei Lee TEO

FofBryEm

(#t52) (Note)

2023%4# Annual Report 2023 049



&3583R% GOVERNANCE REPORT

e

=
Report of the Directors

iy

o

TS

IH

2%340,018,000 R R1H BIE MK EREE 2

301,642,0008% i 15 » FIEEHFA 219,352,000 % 145
Yohki Ryokoh Limited ("Yohki 1) £ 2 19,024,0008& &
3 0 7220235128318 » 128 B 12 H I B K Yohki® Bl)
WA #926.70% K2 4923.53% © F| B K2 Yohki¥g FHAlpadis
Trust (HK) Limited2 & # A ° Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited
AMBERBEREEFENZEEA BI() The Yuen Family
2014 Trust BRAEDIUNEEZEFETZL LR LR RE
Bzt (AREEMNBEAN) ANEZEALRILHE
15155F 5 K(ii) The Happyyau Family Trust > 7 BB §% 5
FUEZFRBBASTNEL I RRE=RANIES
m ARIIMEIEE

720234128318 » Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited
Alpadis Group Holding AGZ 2 &g A5 > MAlpadis
Group Holding AGHAlain ESSEIVAZTE B 94% © A
It > R IE T H R EAE B S5XVER > Alpadis Trust (HK)
Limited ~ Alpadis Group Holding AG&Alain ESSEIVA%L
E AR A 12340,018,0008 e n (BIEREEIRERFE 2
301,642,0008% f& 15 ~ FIEEHFA 2.19,352,0008% i% 15 K
Yohkit¥ A 219,024,0008 i 153) R#EH #Ew o Wei Lee
TEOXZ T=%AAlain ESSEIVALAEZ M EEEAR
340,018,000/ B¢ 5 A #E B e ©

& ECFriR B S > 120235128318 » i EE T
ERBEHIAT (EETHAEABRRSTBAERIN BER
REROFAEBEDTEES BREBEES RAEGKRASE
XVEBHE2 3N B Z X A AT R B2 EE B
RN ARNBIRER S M EEAFEIBHEETER
2EREM REHNEARRB ZEARRZI RS o

050 =H=muERARAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

Note: These 340,018,000 Shares consist of 301,642,000 Shares held
by Evergloss, 19,352,000 Shares held by Likang and 19,024,000
Shares held by Yohki Ryokoh Limited (“Yohki”). As at 31 December
2023, Evergloss was owned as to approximately 26.70% by Likang
and approximately 23.53% by Yohki. Both Likang and Yohki are
wholly-owned by Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited, which is the trustee
of two discretionary family trusts, namely () The Yuen Family 2014
Trust, which is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Yuen whose
discretionary objects are Ms. Lee and Ms. Yuen Ho Yee, wife and
daughter of Mr. Yuen respectively and both an associate of Mr. Yuen;
and (i) The Happyyau Family Trust, which is a discretionary trust set
up by Mr. Yau Shui Fung whose discretionary objects are Ms. Li Siu
King, wife and an associate of Mr. Yau Shui Fung, and Tung Wah
Group of Hospitals.

As at 31 December 2023, Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited was a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Alpadis Group Holding AG which in turn was
owned as to 94% by Mr. Alain ESSEIVA. As such, Alpadis Trust (HK)
Limited, Alpadis Group Holding AG and Mr. Alain ESSEIVA were
deemed to be interested in 340,018,000 Shares (which comprised
301,642,000 Shares held by Evergloss, 19,352,000 Shares held by
Likang and 19,024,000 Shares held by Yohki) by virtue of Part XV of
the SFO. Ms. Wei Lee TEO is a spouse of Mr. Alain ESSEIVA who
has a deemed interest of 340,018,000 Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, there was no
other substantial shareholders or persons (other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company) who had any interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the option as disclosed under the section headed
“Share Option Scheme” below, none of the Company, any of its
holding company, its subsidiaries and its fellow subsidiaries was
a party to any arrangements which would enable the Directors or
any of their spouses or children under the age of 18 to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate at the end of the Year
or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2023, the Directors, other than independent
non-executive Directors, had an interest in any business apart from
the Group’s business, which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business that need to
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules were as
follows:

EEME

Nature of Interest

e Next81 Limited ENS BE (BT 2023510526 A #E43%)

Mr. Huen Online shop Director (resigned with effect from
26 October 2023)

2L Next81 Limited HENES WL BREES (BFf L 520237F
10526 H#E434)

Mr. Leung Online shop Alternate director to Mr. Huen (resigned with
effect from 26 October 2023)

RMELT HEEHE (§H) BEm EARBERESE E5

BIRAE mZEOMERTE
Ms. Yuen Ho Yee Nissay Shoji (HK) Importation, wholesaling  Director

Company Limited

and retailing of food,

personal care and

beauty products
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As the Board is independent of the board of the above mentioned
company, the Group is capable of carrying on its business
independently of, and at arm’s length, from the business of that
company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors was interested in
any business (apart from the Group’s business) which competed
or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group during the Year.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Board on the basis of their performance, qualifications,
competence and job nature. The remuneration of the Directors is
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and is decided
by the Board, having regard to the financial results of the Group,
Directors’ background, qualification, experience, duties and
responsibilities within the Group and comparing with market
conditions. The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme
as an incentive arrangement for eligible employees.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the retirement scheme of the Group are set out in note
31 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
report, at least 25% of the Company'’s total issued share capital is
held by the public under the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual written confirmation of
independence pursuant to the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent.
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GENERAL DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULES
13.18 AND 13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

As at 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this report, the
Group entered the following facility letters containing covenants

relating to specific performance obligations on the controlling

shareholder of the Company which were subject to announcement

disclosure under Rule 13.18 of the Listing Rules and requirements
of disclosure in this annual report under Rule 13.21 of the Listing
Rules, the details of which are set out below:

(0

On 23 May 2023, EGL Tours (as borrower) and the
Company, as guarantor or security provider, accepted a
revised offer from a bank in respect of the general banking
facilities previously granted to, and accepted by, EGL Tours
in May 2018. Under the revised facility letter (the “2023
Facility Letter”), the general banking facilities including but
not limited to a revolving loan facility (the “2023 Revolving
Loan Facility”) and corporate credit card(s) (the “2023 CCD”)
in the aggregate amount of HK$35,600,000 (collectively,
the “2023 Facilities”) were granted to EGL Tours. The 2023
Revolving Loan Facility has no fixed term and is subject to
periodic review of the bank and the 2023 CCD is subject to
the terms and conditions issued by the bank’s card centre to
EGL Tours.

Under the 2023 Facility Letter, each of EGL Tours and the
Company has undertaken to the bank, among others, the
following:

(@ EGL Tours shall ensure that Mr. Yuen, Mr. Huen,
Mr. Leung or Ms. Lee any one shall remain chairman or
director(s) of EGL Tours and the Company and maintain
control over the management and business of EGL
Tours and the Company;

(b) EGL Tours shall ensure that Mr. Yuen, Mr. Huen,
Mr. Leung or Ms. Lee, shall at all times collectively
maintain, directly or indirectly, not less than 45%
beneficial shareholding in EGL Tours and the Company;
and
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(it

(c) the major operating account to be maintained in the
bank with new average bank balance of the companies
which includes EGL Tours, Great Port (being a
company controlled as to approximately 60.63% by
Mr. Yuen, Mr. Huen, Mr. Leung and Ms. Lee collectively
as at the date of this report) and the Company of not
less than HK$50,000,000.

The 2023 Facilities are subject to the bank’s overriding
right of repayment on demand and the bank’s unrestricted
discretion to cancel or suspend, or determine whether or not
to permit drawings in relation to the 2023 Facilities.

On 23 February 2024, EGL Tours (as borrower) accepted
the further renewed and revised offer from a bank in respect
of the general banking facilities previously granted to,
and accepted by, EGL Tours in October 2018. Under the
renewed facility letter (the “2024 Facility Letter”), the general
banking facilities (being an invoice financing loan, bank
guarantee and a revolving loan of up to HK$45,000,000
and corporate credit card of up to HK$1,500,000) in the
aggregate amount of HK$46,500,000 (collectively, the “2024
Facilities”) were renewed. The 2024 Facility Letter was
countersigned by the Company as a guarantor or security
provider.

Under the 2024 Facility Letter, EGL Tours has undertaken to
the bank, among others, the following:

(@) any one of Mr. Yuen, Mr. Huen, Mr. Leung and Ms. Lee
shall remain chairman or directors of EGL Tours and
maintain control over the management and business of
the group;

(b)  Mr. Yuen, Ms. Lee and their family members, Mr. Huen
and his family members, Mr. Leung and his family
members shall at all times collectively maintain, directly
or indirectly, not less than 45% beneficial shareholding
of EGL Tours; and

(c) Evergloss shall at all times maintain, directly or
indirectly, not less than 51% beneficial shareholding in
the Company.
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Pursuant to the 2024 Facility Letter, the bank has the
overriding right at any time to require EGL Tours to
immediately make payment and/or cash collateralisation of
all or any sums actually or contingently owing to the bank
under the 2024 Facilities.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme pursuant to an
ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders on 13 November
2014 which shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
from the date of listing of the Shares (i.e. 28 November 2014),
subject to early termination by the Company in a general meeting
or by the Board. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is
to provide incentives to Eligible Person (as defined below) and
is established to recognise and acknowledge the contributions
the Eligible Person have had or may have made to the Group.
Under the Share Option Scheme, the Board may offer to grant
an option to any employee, or any secondee, consultant, agent,
representative, adviser, customer, contractor of the Group or
any affiliates; or any business partner/ally/alliance, joint venture
partner, supplier of goods or services to the Group or any affiliates
or any employee thereof (the “Eligible Person”). The remuneration
committee of the Board shall review and/or approve the matters
relating to the Share Option Scheme.

The number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the Shares in
issue from time to time. The maximum number of shares available
for issue under options which may be granted under the Share
Option Scheme or other share option scheme adopted by the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in
issue immediately following completion of the initial public offering
of the Company (but taking no account of any shares which may
be allotted or issued pursuant to the exercise of the over-allotment
option (as defined in the prospectus of the Company dated
18 November 2014)), being 50,000,000 shares. The total number
of shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme to each
Eligible Person in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
number of shares in issue as at the date of grant unless approved
by the shareholders of the Company in general meeting.

20234# Annual Report 2023 055



&3583R% GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEGRE
Report of the Directors

REEREAIRUZEMRERRIEZRDDEE
AHEFEEE WATLIRTIESE (()IRNEE
HE (ERAREER) BMIXFAEAREIIERMERZ
BAn W fE 5 (i S h B HART 82 3 3 B3 PR
SHMEIIRARZBROFHERHE ; Ki)khZE
Be

REMERER  ARABAORRBD XM EBITESR
ERBREZNE BRETRBRESS ZHFEM
BRESSEROITERMEBEEZHES +5E
mA AR T BREZTEHRERTI 2 RN
BEE ETSBRRHETF-

7202341 51 H K2023%F 128318 » XA S E B
BIRETEREBRE -NAEE ) BT ERE
RIBEREAEIIRE 176 sk T k-

BEAKS O REBRESEIHEFETZRMNDE
#17350,000,0008% » (5 A&~ B B #ITRAAI9.95% °

056 =HmisEiRARAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be determined
by the Board provided that it shall not be less than the highest
of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant, which must
be a business day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (i) the
nominal value of a share.

Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1 to
the Company by way of consideration for the grant. An option
may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the option
is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry
of 10 years from that date. The period during which an option
may be exercised will be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than 10
years after it has been granted.

No option was granted by the Company under the Share Option
Scheme as at 1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023. No share
option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the
Year under the Share Option Scheme.

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available
for issue under the Share Option Scheme was 50,000,000 shares
representing approximately 9.95% of the issued share capital of
the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Details of the connected transactions entered into by, and/or
subsisted between, the Group and the connected persons of the
Company during the Year and which are not exempted under Rule
14A.73 of the Listing Rules are set out below:

(1) 2023 Tenancy Agreements

Given that the five tenancy agreements all dated
26 November 2021 entered into between the Group (as
tenant) and Great Port (as landlord) in relation to the granting
of tenancies to the Group for the use of certain premises, car
park spaces and advertising areas expired on 31 December
2022, on 25 November 2022, the Group entered into the
following five tenancy agreements (collectively, the “2023
Tenancy Agreements”) with Great Port to renew the former
tenancies, each with a term commencing from 1 January
2023 to 31 December 2023 (both days inclusive):
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Approximate
Parties to the relevant Gross Floor Area
2023 Tenancy Agreements Premises (sq.ft.) Monthly Rental ~ Use
LA =2 ils
No.  Landlord Tenant
1 REf BRBMRTH ERNBEESS R R AL ER 1018 45,816 5630008  HE GEUREEES
ARCE 121828 1522/ 1612 (FEEFEMR RHE
28 2i8P15 PIBZP2BRES MR EHE RHEE)
Great Port EGL Tours Units A and C on 10/F, the whole of 12/F, (excluding car parking HK$563,000 Head office, car park
the whole of 15/F, the whole of 16/F, spaces and signage spaces and for rental
Car Parking Spaces Nos. P15, P18 to P23 areas) of signage areas for
on 2/F and Signage Areas, EGL Tower, advertising
No.83 Hung To Road, Kowloon,
Hong Kong
2 REf BRBIKITH EENREEESSSR 2,300 21,0008
RREER0EBE
Great Port EGL Tours Unit B on 10/F, EGL Tower, HK$27,000  Head office
No.83 Hung To Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong
3 RET RRERTH BENERRERS-SEETAESE 5,531 8700087  ATMERR/ ALY
N2 3 4 BR6E BEE
Great Port EGL Tours Unit Nos.1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6 on 5/F, HK$87,000  Branch office and/or
Chevalier House, multi-function room
Nos.45-51 Chatham Road South,
Kowloon, Hong Kong
4, REf BRBIKITH BEANERRERLS-51RE T AE5IEAE 835 13,0008 ATHEE
Great Port EGL Tours Unit No.6A on 5/F, Chevalier House, HK$13,000  Branch office
Nos.45-51 Chatham Road South,
Kowloon, Hong Kong
5 REf BRBMRTH APIAEIE A 5 H2-6B% 3,460 38B00RMT  EMHMEERR
(2F9) BRAE BE A B8 730-8043510EME BHEBERL
Great Port EGL Tours (Macau) ~ Unit M, 10/F, Nos.730-804 Avenida MOP38,800  Macau office
Company Limited da Praia Grande, Nos.2-6B Avenida and call centre

de D Joao IV, Macau
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As at the date of the 2023 Tenancy Agreements, Great
Port is a majority-controlled company owned by Mr. Yuen
as to approximately 26.70%, Mr. Huen as to approximately
23.08%, Mr. Leung as to approximately 9.95% and
Ms. Lee as to approximately 0.90%, all being the Executive
Directors. The above-mentioned Executive Directors
together controlled approximately 60.63% voting power
of Great Port, and therefore Great Port is an associate of
the said Executive Directors and thus a connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
the transactions contemplated under the 2023 Tenancy
Agreements constituted connected transactions for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and are
subject to the reporting and announcement requirements
under the Listing Rules, but are exempt from the circular and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements. Details
of the 2023 Tenancy Agreements and the transactions
contemplated thereunder were set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 25 November 2022.
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2024 Tenancy Agreements

Given that each of (i) the 2023 Tenancy Agreements; and
(i) the tenancy agreement dated 26 June 2023 and entered
into between Great Port (as landlord) and EGL Tours (Macau)
Company Limited (as tenant) in relation to the tenancy of the
premises of the Macau branch office of the Group, which
re-opened in July 2023, expired on 31 December 2023. On
24 November 2023, the Group (as landlord) entered into
the following six tenancy agreements (collectively, the “2024
Tenancy Agreements”) with Great Port to renew the former
tenancies, each with a term commencing from 1 January
2024 to 31 December 2024 (both days inclusive):

12024 F B BRI 7 BREER B B#&
Parties to the relevant Approximate Monthly
2024 Tenancy Agreements Gross Floor Area Rental ~ Use
B% %z il LS (FAR)
No.  Landlord Tenant Premises (sq. ft.)
1 RET RRBIRITH BENEBEESSER R EEFI0BARCE 1212 45,816 658,000  MEFEK
2E 15B2E 161E2E  218P15°P1BEP23 (FREFET EEEERAR
REEUREAE RRHE)
Great Port EGL Tours Units A .and C on 10/F, the whole of 12/F, (excluding car HK$658,000  Head office, car park
the whole of 15/F, the whole of 16/F, parking spaces spaces and for rental
Car Parking Spaces Nos. P15, P18 to and signage of signage areas for
P23 on 2/F and Signage Areas, areas) advertising
EGL Tower, No.83 Hung To Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong
2. AET RRERTH HENEEEESERRBRES0EBE 2,300 20008 23
Great Port EGL Tours Unit B on 10/F, EGL Tower, No.83 Hung To Road, HK$32,000  Head office
Kowloon, Hong Kong
3 RET RRERTH BENREARERLOOIRHTAEEE 22344 5,531 10200088 ATHEER/
5K6ZE AEPEE
Great Port EGL Tours Unit Nos.1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6 on 5/F, Chevalier House, HK$102,000  Branch office and/or
Nos.45-51 Chatham Road South, Kowloon, Hong multi-function room
Kong
4, RET RRERTH ERNERHER-HIFETAESEAE 835 15,0008 ATHSE
Great Port EGL Tours Unit No.6A on 5/F, Chevalier House, Nos.45-51 HK$15,000  Branch office
Chatham Road South, Kowloon, Hong Kong
5 RE REERITI (2P RFAHLY A EH2-685 2 A B H730-8045 3,460 BBOORMT  RMMEER
BRAE 108MZE BEHETDL
Great Port EGL Tours (Macau) Unit M, 10/F, Nos.730-804 Avenida da Praia Grande, MOP38,800  Macau office and call
Company Limited Nos.2-6B Avenida de D Joao IV, Macau centre
6 KEf BREMRTA (B  EPIABNE A ER-6B5 @8 A B H730-8045% 1,159 580002Mx  BFIDITIER
ERAS B
Great Port EGL Tours (Macau) Shop B, G/F, Nos.730-804 Avenida da Praia Grande, MOP58,500  Macau branch office
Company Limited Nos.2-68 Avenida de D Joao IV, Macau

060 =@yl ARAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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As at the date of the 2024 Tenancy Agreements, Great
Port is a majority-controlled company owned by Mr. Yuen
as to approximately 26.70%, Mr. Huen as to approximately
23.08%, Mr. Leung as to approximately 9.95% and Ms. Lee
as to approximately 0.90%, all being the executive Directors.
The above-mentioned executive Directors together controlled
approximately 60.63% voting power of Great Port, and
therefore Great Port is an associate of the said executive
Directors and thus a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions
contemplated under the 2024 Tenancy Agreements
constituted connected transactions for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and are subject to the
reporting and announcement requirements under the Listing
Rules, but are exempt from the circular and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements. Details of the 2024
Tenancy Agreements and the transactions contemplated
thereunder were set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 24 November 2023.

Save as disclosed above, no other related party transactions
conducted in the Year as disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements constitute a connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction which is required to be disclosed
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Save as disclosed above,
no transaction, arrangement or contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company, its holding
company or any of their respective subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director or an entity connected with the Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the Year or at any time during the Year.

Save as disclosed above, (i) no contract of significance was
entered into by, and/or subsisted between, the Company or
any of its subsidiaries with the controlling shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries during the Year; and (i) there is no contract
of significance in relation to the provision of services by the
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Group.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors confirm that the Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the Year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance practices. Details of the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 63 to 79 of this annual
report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

As at the date of this report, there was no significant event of the
Group after the reporting date.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been
audited by BDO Limited who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment
of BDO Limited as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at
the 2024 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Yuen Man Ying
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 20 March 2024



| W

TEER/RS

TH ANNIVERSARY
OF LISTING

Corporate Governance Report

EFEMAREFRAFFENEEE LGRS -

EEERER

RRBRAEEZRAERESHENEZE A AT
REHEZERSKITNEERELRRR  TEBAEMNE

FERREFFELEENSEFNEEREFEFET
R o
REEE ERR/AAEEEALHRAMERC
Fﬁ%zzm%étn Al Z [RAJ I8 <F PR A B A <7 R %
7o

ERNRESFRS

KRB EHRM ETHRBMERCIFT BRI R ETAIFS
HEGMEFETESXENTATRI - KOESF
HEREH 2REFHIANEFRAFERZERBR
HEBTRETRIFTENRERE-

ESEHNRERRERS

EFXFEaEAEEEBHNESE B RRBRR I
EEHUBXRR -EEeRTEERREAEEAR
HENEEZENESD

FR AT,

BIEEERERTRINTRMFEXEC.2. 115 EFEEITI
MENBERAMED  TAEH - ABRRE R
FEE FEBERRXAELERT MARFTH
ME—BABE - ESTRFEINRRIAEEEE
BRERBZ HYEINEFBEENH  REMERN
NE > ARBRBAEBEREFEZELIRMBZRAL

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report
of the Company for the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of corporate
transparency and accountability. The Company is committed in
achieving a high standard of corporate governance and leading
the Group to attain better results and improve its corporate image
with effective corporate governance procedures.

During the Year, the Board is of opinion that the Company has
applied the principles and complied with all the applicable code
provisions of the CG Code as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
C8 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors. Having made specific
enquiry of the Directors, all the Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the Year.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF AND DELEGATION BY THE
BOARD

The Board provides leadership, guidance and strategic decisions
to the Group’s activities and oversees its financial performances.
The Board has delegated its powers to the management for the
Group’s daily management and operations.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

According to code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
the chairman and the chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. During the
Year, the role of the Chairman is performed by Mr. Yuen Man Ying
while the office of the chief executive officer of the Company is
vacated. The Board will keep reviewing the current structure of
the Group’s management from time to time and should candidate
with suitable knowledge, skills and experience be identified, the
Company will make appointment to fill the post as appropriate.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises six Executive
Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors. At least
one of the Independent Non-executive Directors possesses the
appropriate professional accounting qualifications and financial
management expertise, which complies with the requirements of
the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with Rules 3.10
and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. During the Year, the number of
Independent Non-executive Directors represents not less than
one-third of the Board. As such, there exists a strong independent
element in the Board, which can effectively exercise independent
judgement. The Board comprises the following Directors:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen Man Ying (Chairman)
Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen

Mr. Leung Shing Chiu

Ms. Lee Po Fun

Ms. Yuen Ho Yee

Mr. Cheang Chuen Hon

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kim Fai
Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric
Ms. Wong Lai Ming

Mr. Yuen Man Ying, the Chairman and Executive Director, is the
spouse of Ms. Lee Po Fun, an Executive Director. Ms. Yuen Ho
Yee, the Executive Director, is the daughter of Mr. Yuen Man
Ying and Ms. Lee Po Fun, both are the Executive Directors.
Five of the Executive Directors, namely Mr. Yuen Man Ying,
Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu, Ms. Lee Po Fun
and Ms. Yuen Ho Yee, are interested in the Company’s shares
through their interest in Evergloss, a substantial shareholder of
the Company. As at 31 December 2023, four of the Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen,
Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms. Lee Po Fun, also have interests in
the shares of Great Port, which has certain transactions with the
Group which constituted connected transactions. Please refer to
the “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
on pages 80 to 84, “Report of the Directors — Directors’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures”
on pages 45 to 48 and “Report of the Directors — Connected
Transactions and Directors’ Interests in Contracts” on pages 57 to
61 of this annual report for more details. Save as disclosed above,
the Directors have no other financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with one another.
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INDEPENDENCE OF
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

INDEPENDENT NON-

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual written confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to the relevant guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development courses and seminars to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. During the Year, each of the
Directors (namely Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen,
Mr. Leung Shing Chiu, Ms. Lee Po Fun, Ms. Yuen Ho VYee,
Mr. Cheang Chuen Hon, Mr. Chan Kim Fai, Mr. Tang Koon Hung
Eric and Ms. Wong Lai Ming) has participated in appropriate
continuous professional development activities by ways of
attending seminars, reading training materials and updates
relevant to () the Group’s businesses; (i) regulatory updates; (iii)
the Listing Rules; (iv) anti-corruption; or (v) Environmental, Social &
Governance (“ESG”) Practices.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors has entered into a service contract or a letter of
appointment with the Company for a specific term of three
years. Such term is subject to his/her retirement by rotation
and re-election at an annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Articles of Association.
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The procedures and process of appointment, re-election
and removal of the Directors are governed by the Articles of
Association. The Articles of Association provides that any director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
only until the first general meeting of the Company after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company (“AGM”) and shall then be eligible for re-
election.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, at each AGM, one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not
3 or a multiple of 3, then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at least once every
3 years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. Any
Director who has not been subject to retirement by rotation in
the three years preceding an AGM shall retire by rotation at such
meeting. Any further Directors so to retire shall be those who have
been longest in office since their last re-election or appointment
and so that as between persons who became or were last re-
elected Directors on the same day those to retire shall (unless they
otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by lot.

Accordingly, Ms. Yuen Ho Yee, Mr. Cheang Chuen Hon, Mr. Tang
Koon Hung Eric and Ms. Wong Lai Ming shall retire at the 2024
AGM. Ms. Yuen Ho Yee, Mr. Cheang Chuen Hon and Ms. Wong
Lai Ming, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
2024 AGM. Due to other business commitments which require
more of his dedications, Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric, though being
eligible, will not offer himself for re-election at the 2024 AGM.

BOARD MEETING

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall
strategy as well as the operation and financial performance of
the Group. Directors may participate either in person or through
electronic means of communications.

Pursuant to code provision C.5.1 of the CG Code, the Board
should meet regularly and board meetings should be held at least
four times a year.
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If a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the
Director shall abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions and
he/she shall not be counted as a quorum in the Board meeting
discussing the matter concerned.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF MEETINGS

Set out below are details of the attendance record of each Director
at the Board meetings, committee meetings and general meeting
of the Company held during the Year:

LT
HE/ AERERE
Number of meetings
attended/eligible to attend

EiZ Hﬁﬁmﬁ &4 |
RRBFEAE EEg83 ZEggE ZEgER ZEgEH ZRggx3
Risk
Annual Audit  Management Nomination  Remuneration
General Board Committee Committee Committee Committee
Meeting Meetings Meetings Meetings Meeting Meeting
HITEZE Executive Directors
RNEEE Mr. Yuen Man Ying 1/1 4/4 - - 1/ 1/1
BE2EE Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen 11 4/4 - - - -
2RIRE Mr. Leung Shing Chiu 1/1 4/4 - 3/3 - -
FERFUL Ms. Lee Po Fun 11 4/4 - - 17 il
mEBxT Ms. Yuen Ho Yee 1/1 4/4 - - - -
HEERE Mr. Cheang Chuen Hon 11 4/4 - - - -
BUFHTEE Independent Non-executive Directors
BRRIELE Mr. Chan Kim Fai 11 4/4 3/3 3/3 11 1/
PEErE Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric 11 4/4 3/3 3/3 17 il
BRELT Ms. Wong Lai Ming 1/1 4/4 3/3 3/3 1/ 1/1
RERBFERG ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

KRNBIREBERGALNDEEBEKRRETEE
HNEEFE AABRTHAPKREEF KNG EH20235F
58313217 (T2023FEREBEKRG]) o

JR2023FERRBEAREG L RNAGHPEEINEZRES
(BREEFEIRLREFLZETNAEEIERME) &
FlEREEEMINBIZHENITE HFE KRG ° 1220235F
%%@Eﬁ%t»ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁuﬁ%um%kﬁ:tu
BREARETRR RENBRERRAINBEERBE
BRERRIIER

REBERBIN AR R B3 PRABYL

The AGM of the Company is an important forum in which the
management of the Company can engage with the Shareholders.
The most recent AGM of the Company was held on 31 May 2023
(2023 AGM”).

At the 2023 AGM, all Directors in office on the meeting date,
including the Chairman of the Board and all the chairmen and
members of the Board Committees, attended the meeting along
with senior management and the external auditor. At the 2023
AGM, separate resolutions were proposed for each issue and
were voted on by poll. The procedures for conducting a poll were
explained at the meeting prior to the polls being taken.

The voting results are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

20234E#  Annual Report 2023 067



&8%RE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEEBRS
Corporate Governance Report

EEXZET

EFgUMUERZES AREEZET RHE
BERHNEZEE - FMEEFZEERREENHE
HEBRTHEARE HBEEEHNERT B
PR R ER - EFZE e B RERERBITH
HoUREAEER RBEBRTHABLEXR
B> BERBAARQTAE-

BEE

%Héa R2014FE11B13B A WIRE R XS
ATRIFHEEE T EAREERESERE BZE8
EHERE=-"AREAN BEEHEABIIENTE
= BIRGIEAE (EF) Bt REEEL -

ERZZEENIERES EHPFERE (1BZEFAEEN
MFBER S ()EER AL E EE SN B L BET IR % ; (i) 5
EXRBMBRERS ABREERNIBEIZERS
RivFIERERBREZRREERER EHREBEE
NEERERBERKRBER -

ey = o

RAFE BREZEGRT I =ZREH NEFE"
ERZEEE()BRAEE D NN E E2022412831
HIEFENZRIZPTFIRTZURE E2023F6830H
IEARBEANREEZT TR (i) B RINEZ BB
HEHE2022F12831HIEFENMBREFHZ
EEBR RN ERE E2023F6830H BB A
Y BEREZBUBFRAEZZEGRINKRE ;
(i) B REINEZ BN £2023F128331HIEEED
Bz E (VRN AEBNMBRERMA ; RVILE
ISNREZMEMMEESEHIEBR RS UK EINE
ZEEm 2 BEE o

068 =mmusElARAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Risk
Management Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. All the Board Committees perform
their distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of
reference which are available to Shareholders on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Board Committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 13 November 2014
with specific written terms of reference in accordance with
the provisions set out in the CG Code. The Audit Committee
comprises a total of three members, all being Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kim Fai (Chairman), Mr. Tang
Koon Hung Eric and Ms. Wong Lai Ming.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee include,
among others, (i) reviewing financial information of the Group; (i)
monitoring of the relationship between the Group and its external
auditor; (i) overseeing the Company’s financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control systems; and (iv) developing
and reviewing the policies and practices on corporate governance
with legal and regulatory requirements and requirements under the
Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the Year. During
the Year, the Audit Committee () reviewed the Group’s audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 and
the unaudited financial statements for the six months ended
30 June 2023 respectively; (ii) reviewed the external auditor’s
reports to the Audit Committee on their statutory audit of financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 and their
independent review of the interim financial statements for the
six months ended 30 June 2023; (iii) reviewed the audit plan of
the external auditor for the year ended 31 December 2023; (iv)
reviewed the Group’s financial reporting system; and (v) made
recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of external
auditor and approval of the engagement letter of the external
auditor.



| W

TEERRS
Corporate Governance Report

P FE EVRBIEE
EFEEZAERZEGRITEXE Rk -BLKEE
EREEREARENSEHNERZEGHNRELE

N-MEFE BEREZEERTARATNEEELRH
RERER - EFhSREEBNEIIREEEXERE
Uk A RBETTRNER URRALEELRRS
Y 88 o

/7/)74\'/::—@31',5 =

ﬂl”ﬁiég BH2014F11B13H I WHIETHA
EEEEHE -RiREEEEgHEENRMER
&’%¢—%%ﬂﬁ§$>wmm%%iy—%%%i
FHTES IMRERELE (EF) BEBLERE
BEAZ L HIt REAEBDEABIIIFNTES-

EREEZEENTIEREAERN AR EERR
EERE - BERTEREREENIES - BRRERF
it mR B EINBERY A UL

REFE BREEZEERT T =ZREZ -NEF
B RREEZEGERTAEENANBEZRG
KEER S EAE R R R K I 22 R R o DR LR
ZERBEBRNEERFAERENERRSEE

TH ANNIVERSARY
OF LISTING

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Audit Committee has been appointed by the Board to perform
the corporate governance function. The responsibilities of the
Audit Committee on corporate governance function are set out in
the terms of reference of the Audit Committee. During the Year, the
Audit Committee reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and the senior management and
the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee was established on
13 November 2014 with specific written terms of reference. The
Risk Management Committee comprises a total of four members,
being one Executive Director, namely Mr. Leung Shing Chiu, and
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kim
Fai (Chairman), Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric and Ms. Wong Lai Ming.
Accordingly, a majority of the members are Independent Non-
executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee
include reviewing the Company’s enterprise risk management
framework, and the guidelines, policies and procedures for risk
assessment and risk management and reviewing the effectiveness
of the risk management function.

The Risk Management Committee held three meetings during the
Year. During the Year, the Risk Management Committee reviewed
the internal control system of the Group, the Group’s high-level
related risks and key emerging risks and the controls in place to
mitigate such risks and the Group’s surplus cash management.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 13 November
2014 with specific written terms of reference in accordance with
the provisions set out in the CG Code. The Nomination Committee
comprises a total of five members, being two Executive Directors,
namely Mr. Yuen Man Ying (Chairman) and Ms. Lee Po Fun, and
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan
Kim Fai, Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric and Ms. Wong Lai Ming.
Accordingly, a majority of the members are Independent Non-
executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity) of the Board, making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy and assessing the
independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the VYear.
During the Year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge, experience
and diversity) of the Board, assessed the independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors and recommended to the
Board on relevant matters relating to the re-election of all retiring
Directors at the 2023 AGM.

As the nomination policy of the Company, the Nomination
Committee will (a) review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge, experience and diversity) of
the Board at least annually based on objective criteria with
due regard to the benefits of diversity as set out in the Board’s
diversity policy and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy; (b) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships; and (c)
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular the chairman and the managing director (if applicable).
Please refer to the sub-section headed “Board Diversity” of this
Corporate Governance Report for details of the Board’s policy on
board diversity.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 13 November
2014 with specific written terms of reference in accordance
with the provisions set out in the CG Code. The Remuneration
Committee comprises a total of five members, being two Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Yuen Man Ying and Ms. Lee Po Fun, and
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Tang Koon
Hung Eric (Chairman), Mr. Chan Kim Fai and Ms. Wong Lai Ming.
Accordingly, a majority of the members are Independent Non-
executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include, among others, (i) making recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of all
the Directors and senior management and on the establishment
of a set of formal and transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy; (i) reviewing and approving the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to
the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; and (iii) making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
all the Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Year.
During the Year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the
remuneration policy of the Group, reviewed the terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee, reviewed the remuneration
package of the individual Executive Directors and senior
management as well as reviewed the remuneration of Independent

Non-executive Directors for submission to the Board for approval.

REMUNERATION OF THE MEMBERS OF THE
SENIOR MANAGEMENT BY BAND

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the

NEERTETNSREEBIZBREDHNEEFHFME  annual remuneration of the senior management of the Company
=g then in office by band for the Year are as follows:
A&
Number of
BN AR B Remuneration band individuals
F 21,000,000 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 1
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BOARD DIVERSITY

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.
The Board has established a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) and has set measurable objectives (including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service) to
implement the Board Diversity Policy. All the Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against appropriate criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. The Board will review such objectives from
time to time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the
progress made towards achieving those objectives.

As at 31 December 2023, the Board consists of six male members
and three female members. Having taken into account the
measurable objectives as set out in the Board Diversity Policy, the
Nomination Committee considered that the Board had achieved
gender diversity and possessed skill and expertise and a diverse
mix appropriate for the business of the Company and will review
the composition and diversity of the Board on a regular basis to
ensure its continued effectiveness.

As at 31 December 2023, approximately 52.27% of the Group’s
employee (including senior management) of the Group’s total
workforce are female and approximately 40% of the Group’s senior
management roles are held by women. The Board is satisfied that
the Company has achieved gender diversity in its workforce.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Each of Evergloss, Likang, Kwok Lai, Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen
Kwok Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms. Lee Po Fun has
provided annual confirmations in respect of the compliance with
non-competition undertakings (the “Undertakings”) given by them
in favour of the Company pursuant to a deed of non-competition
undertakings dated 13 November 2014. The Independent Non-
executive Directors have also reviewed the compliance by each
of Evergloss, Likang, Kwok Lai, Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen
Kwok Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms. Lee Po Fun with the
Undertakings during the Year. The Independent Non-executive
Directors have confirmed that, as far as they can ascertain, there
is no breach by any of Evergloss, Likang, Kwok Lai, Mr. Yuen Man
Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms. Lee
Po Fun of the Undertakings given by them.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION AND
AUDITOR RELATED MATTERS

For the Year, the remunerations paid or payable to the external
auditor in respect of its audit services and non-audit services
provided to the Group were approximately HK$2.2 million and
approximately HK$0.4 million, respectively.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company and of the Group for the Year.
The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 85 to 92 of this
annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The Board recognises that the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems play a key role in the identification,
evaluation and management of risks faced by the Group, the
assurance of continued compliance with laws and regulations
by the Group, and the provision of reasonable assurance on
the Group against material misstatement, error, loss or fraud.
The Board appreciates that the Group is exposed to risks in
achieving its business objectives and strives to maintain such
risks at acceptable level through the design, implementation
and monitoring of effective risk management and internal control
systems.

The risk management and internal control systems are established
within the Company and its subsidiaries for facilitating effective
and efficient operations, for safeguarding assets against
unauthorised use, for maintaining proper accounting records, for
ensuring the reliability of financial reporting and information, and
for ensuring compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
These systems are designed to meet the Group’s particular
needs and to minimise the risks to which the Group is exposed,
and are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risks
to achieve business objectives and by their nature, can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatements or losses.

The key elements of the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems include the establishment of a risk register to
keep track, record and report identified risks, the assessment and
evaluation of risks, the development and continuous updating of
responsive procedures, and the ongoing testing of internal control
procedures to ensure their effectiveness.

An ongoing risk management approach is also adopted by the
Company for identifying and assessing the key inherent risks that
affect the achievements of its objectives. A risk matrix is adopted
to determine risk rating (L = low risk, M = medium risk, H = high
risk) after evaluation of the risk by the likelihood and the impact of
the risk event. The risk ratings reflect the level of managements,
attention and risk treatment effort required.
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During the process of risk assessment, each risk owner is
required to capture and identify the key inherent risks that affect
the achievement of its objectives. Each inherent risk is evaluated
according to the risk matrix. After taking into consideration the
risk response, such as control measures in place to mitigate the
risk, the residual risk of each inherent risk is evaluated again. The
risk register with the risk responses and residual risks is reported
to the Risk Management Committee. The Risk Management
Committee evaluates the effectiveness of the systems and reports
to the Board. The highest category of residual risks is subject to
the Board’s oversight.

During the Year, the Board, through the Risk Management
Committee, reviewed the continued effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems covering all
material aspect of controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls. The review covered the foreign exchange risk
management and the Group’s surplus cash management.

During the Year, the Company also engaged an independent
professional consultant to conduct an annual review on the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The review covered the following items within the Group:

- Financial Reporting

Hotel Management
- Branch Operations
- IT General Controls

Relevant applicable recommendations made by the consultant
during the Year have already been implemented in stages by the
Group to further enhance its internal control policies, procedures
and practices.

As a result of the above review, the Board is satisfied that the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
adequate and effective and have complied with the CG Code
provisions on internal control throughout the Year and the
Company has an internal audit function.

20234# Annual Report 2023 075



&8%RE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEEBRS
Corporate Governance Report

%ﬁ&?ﬁﬁ%}um&r&W%%Eﬁ

RREREREMRNEHE ZREF KA EER > &
EEFRESBERETES RN ERM K LHRER
HARHEZRE - BEFEhSREEBEEEEEW
BEHRRREANRERURGERBRAAERNA
BEHERE -KRETRN—YGERER BRAEH
FRERBGENHEIER UMERBRAEEAVE
BRE URBFRREBRAZRERERBFIFLIKE
R/FHEAS - NZEERTERENARA ®E
AEREBERE -EFTHRNIBFRASHREMNE
MAEEREMEENFENEBEERIARE M
KRERREFEZNETEMEEMRIERE N &
B LUBH RIFFR AN 24 -

RS EER

RER HPEE CEXE - REARMBRT K
EREAAFR-TD &E%J%%E REEBMBRS
ZERAHIKM G EEERMRBRIERRE
%E(@?Eﬁyﬂ;%i%f@)&%% DA RN EMEAR
B EFENERRIERRE

BEFELHRAZRE R ARABDERFNDONRAEERRR
B EHmA0% N FERE FRE ~EAKRER
RipeERROHEEUBTEIRK BERBRUBT
INEFARE -HMDIK WA RUEFEIREGE
ANFRATHEAD VK FRE - EAFEFER
EDIKBY A 3 ks F) Bl R B U R B F E K © 6 it
FERRED K BB SN AT ARAER
EEBRKEA

076 =H=miEiRARAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR
THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information, the Group
conducts its affairs with close attention to the inside information
provisions under the SFO and the Listing Rules. The Directors and
senior management are responsible for determining whether any
particular information is inside information and overseeing and
coordinating disclosure of inside information of the Group. They
are also responsible for taking reasonable measures to ensure
that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure
requirement in relation to the Group from time to time and that
disclosures are made and/or announcements are published
on a timely basis in accordance with the applicable laws and
regulations, and before such information is fully disclosed to the
public, they shall ensure the same is kept strictly confidential. The
Directors are also committed to ensure that information contained
in announcements are not false or misleading as to a material fact,
or false or misleading through the omission of a material fact in
view of presenting information in a clear and balanced way.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board may propose or declare the payment of dividends
after taking into account, among other things, the results of
operations, cash flows and financial condition, operating and
capital requirements, the amount of distributable profits, reserves
available for distribution based on HKFRSs,
Association, applicable laws and regulations (including the laws

the Articles of

of Cayman Islands) and other factors which the Directors deem
relevant.

The Company, subject to the factors and considerations above,
pay annual dividends of not less than 50% of the Group’s
consolidated profit attributable to the Shareholders. Any dividends
declared will be in Hong Kong dollars with respect to the Shares
on a per Share basis, and the Company will pay such dividends
in Hong Kong dollars. Other distributions, if any, will be paid to
the Shareholders by any means which the Directors consider
legal, fair and practicable. Any distributable profits that are not
distributed in any given year may be retained and be made
available for distribution in subsequent years. To the extent profits
are distributed as dividends, such portion of profits will not be
available for reinvestment in the Group’s operations.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The role of the company secretary of the Company (“Company
Secretary”) is performed by Ms. Wong Cheuk Yee Kathy. The
Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and is
appointed by the Board. The Company Secretary is responsible
for facilitating the Board’s processes and communications among
Board members, with Shareholders and with management.
The Company Secretary received at least 15 hours of relevant
professional training to update her skills and knowledge during the
Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communications between the Shareholders and the Board.
An AGM shall be held in each year and at the place as may be
determined by the Board.

SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY
GENERAL MEETING ("EGM”)

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association, an EGM
shall be convened on the requisition of one or more Shareholders
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right
of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in
writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at the head office
of the Company in Hong Kong, which is presently situated at 15/F,
EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong,
for the purpose of requiring an EGM to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business or resolutions specified in such
requisition and signed by the requisitionist(s). If within 21 days of
such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may convene a physical
meeting at one location, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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PUTTING ENQUIRIES BY SHAREHOLDERS TO THE
BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the
attention of the Company Secretary at the Company’s head office
in Hong Kong.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS
BY SHAREHOLDERS AT SHAREHOLDERS™ MEETING

Shareholders are requested to follow Article 64 of the Articles
of Association for putting forward a resolution at an EGM. The
requirements and procedures are set out above in the paragraph
headed “Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General
Meeting”.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
facilitating understanding of the Shareholders and potential
investors on the Group’s business, performance and strategies.

Information shall be communicated to Shareholders and the
investment community mainly through the Company’s financial
reports (interim and annual reports), annual general meetings
and other general meetings that may be convened, as well as by
making available all the disclosures posted on the website of the
Stock Exchange and the Company’s corporate communications
and other corporate publications on the Company’s website.

Shareholders may, at any time, direct questions, request for
publicly available information and provide comments and
suggestions to Directors or management of the Company. Such
questions, requests and comments can be addressed to the
Company Secretary by mail to the Company’s head office in Hong
Kong.

To promote effective communication, the Company has
established a shareholders’ communication policy (the
“Shareholders’ Communication Policy”) and the Board shall review
it on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness. Shareholders can
refer to the “Shareholders’ Communication Policy” posted on the
Company’s website for more details.
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The Board has reviewed the Shareholders’ Communication Policy
and considered that the Shareholders’ Communication Policy was
appropriate and effective during the Year.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, the second amended and restated memorandum
and articles of association of the Company was adopted by
the Shareholders at the 2023 AGM in order to () reflect certain
amendments in the Listing Rules and the applicable laws of Hong
Kong and the Cayman Islands (including amendments to conform
with the Core Shareholders Protection Standards as set out in the
amended Appendix A1 to the Listing Rules); (ii) provide flexibility
to the Company in relation to the conduct of general meetings
(including amendments to enable the Company to have general
meetings to be held in physical form, hybrid form or electronic
form); and (iii) make other consequential and housekeeping
amendments.

A copy of the second amended and restated memorandum
and articles of association of the Company is available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

Save as disclosed above, during the Year, there were no significant
change in the Company’s constitutional documents.

On behalf of the Board

Yuen Man Ying
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 20 March 2024
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen Man Ying (“Mr. Yuen”), aged 72, is the founder of the
Group and has been the Chairman and an Executive Director of
the Company since 24 July 2014. Mr. Yuen initiated the creation
of the Group in 1987. He is also the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee of
the Board. Mr. Yuen serves as the managing director of EGL
Tours and as a director of EGL Tours, EGL Management Group
Company Limited (“EGL Management”), i-Evertravel Company
Limited (“i-Evertravel”), EGL Tours (Macau) Company Limited (“EGL
Macau”), EGL Tours (Japan) Company Limited (‘EGL Japan”), EGL
Holdings (Nippon) Limited (“EGL Nippon”), EGL Holdings (Asia)
Limited (‘EGL Asia”), EGL Investment Group Company Limited
(“EGL Investment”), EGL Market Company Limited (“‘EGL Market”)
and other subsidiaries of the Company. He is also a director
of Evergloss Management Group Company Limited which is a
substantial shareholder of the Company. He is responsible for
important decision making of the Group, overseeing both tours
and hotel operation development, promoting the Japanese market,
planning for tour itinerary in Japan, supervising and training tour
escorts, and strategic planning air charter of the Group. Mr. Yuen
has over 39 years of extensive knowledge and experience in the
tourism industry. Mr. Yuen is the spouse of Ms. Lee Po Fun who is
an Executive Director of the Company, and the father of Ms. Yuen
Ho Yee who is an Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen (“Mr. Huen”), aged 66, has been
an Executive Director of the Company since 24 July 2014.
Mr. Huen joined the Group in 1987. Mr. Huen also serves as
a director of EGL Tours, EGL Management, i-Evertravel, EGL
Macau, EGL Japan, EGL Nippon, EGL Asia, EGL Investment,
EGL Market and other subsidiaries of the Company. He is also
a director of Evergloss Management Group Company Limited
which is a substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Huen is
the spokesman of the Group. He is responsible for overseeing
development of the Group, public relations, specialised gourmet
tourism, hotel operation and the subsidiaries of the Company
incorporated in Macau and Shenzhen respectively. Mr. Huen
has over 39 years of extensive knowledge and experience in the
tourism industry.
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Mr. Leung Shing Chiu (“Mr. Leung”), aged 69, has been an
Executive Director of the Company since 24 July 2014. He is
a member of the Risk Management Committee of the Board.
Mr. Leung joined the Group in 1988. Mr. Leung serves as a
director of EGL Tours, EGL Management, i-Evertravel, EGL Macau,
EGL Japan, EGL Nippon, EGL Asia, EGL Investment, EGL Market
and other subsidiaries of the Company. He is also a director
of Evergloss Management Group Company Limited which is a
substantial shareholder of the Company. He is responsible for
managing the receiving services for outbound tourism in Japan,
frontline sales and accounting matters of the Group. Mr. Leung
has over 39 years of extensive knowledge and experience in the
tourism industry.

Ms. Lee Po Fun (“Mrs. Yuen”), aged 65, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 24 July 2014. She is a member of
both the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee
of the Board. Mrs. Yuen joined the Group in 1987. She also serves
as a director of EGL Tours, EGL Management, i-Evertravel, EGL
Macau, EGL Japan, EGL Nippon, EGL Asia, EGL Investment,
EGL Market and other subsidiaries of the Company. She is also a
director of Evergloss Management Group Company Limited which
is a substantial shareholder of the Company. She is responsible
for overseeing the overall tour operations, the human resources
development and administration matters of the Group. Mrs. Yuen
has over 39 years of extensive knowledge and experience in the
tourism industry. Mrs. Yuen is the spouse of Mr. Yuen Man Ying
who is the Chairman and an Executive Director of the Company,
and the mother of Ms. Yuen Ho Yee who is an Executive Director
of the Company.
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Ms. Yuen Ho Yee (“Ms. Yuen”), aged 35, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 28 May 2021. Ms. Yuen joined
the Group in November 2011. She serves as a director of EGL
Tours and subsidiaries of the Company. She is responsible for
overseeing the operations in the marketing and public relations
department, product development department, information
technology department, FIT products and customer services.
She is also responsible for formulating strategies for promoting
the Group’s image and business and developing new products
for the future development of the Group. She has over 12 years
of experience in the tourism industry. Ms. Yuen graduated in July
2010 from the University of Nottingham, United Kingdom with a
Bachelor of Arts Degree in Management Studies. Ms. Yuen is the
daughter of Mr. Yuen Man Ying, the Chairman and an Executive
Director of the Company, and Ms. Lee Po Fun, an Executive
Director of the Company.

Mr. Cheang Chuen Hon (“Mr. Cheang”), aged 59, has been
an Executive Director of the Company since 28 May 2021.
Mr. Cheang is the financial controller of the Group. He is
responsible for supervision and management of the Group’s
financial issues. He joined the Group in June 2001 as a finance
manager before being promoted as the financial controller of EGL
Tours in April 2004. Mr. Cheang has over 35 years of extensive
accounting and financial experience, in which 10 years in another
public listed company (whose shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange), with latest position as accounting
manager. Mr. Cheang graduated from the University of Hong Kong
with a bachelor degree in social sciences in November 1988 and
later obtained a master degree of science in accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 2001. Mr. Cheang
is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.



| W

EEREREEBZEBEGN

TH ANNIVERSARY
OF LISTING

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

BILIERITES

FRIGIEIC A (TRRACAED) 2 655% » 2014811313 E
Wﬂs@jé%ﬂlﬁﬂ"%% WHRABEEGZEZE
S ERAREEZEENEREAEETE2HFNEE
BRREAEZEEENHRE HAERUERAEEANE
BoRAERAERNBERERRAD BRMASE:
201) IEZMEREBR AR BRMHHESE - 219) KB
SIERABEMRAT RMHBAE : 253) (ZERAFTHRER
B ) BB IERITE S - H2001F#E » R E T A
PRGBS MITHNEELEE RALEAST B YT

NE R ARG AGRRMNEFEIREER -

WatEsd (TERsE ) 785 » 201441181388
HERABDBUERTES BT AESSZHMNE

EENIREREFETZIELEZET RHZETUR
RBEEZEENNE REEBUERAEENE

1P o W IFAASMPT Limited (—R IR B FF £ LAY
NERRHAREE  522) BB IEAITES - AER

MEARESBFFTMER BASBOTMATE
E\o
EHERALZtE (&4 +t)) ' 655 B2014F11813H L

HERERBBIUIFATEZ - RATBEFTG2EX
ZEE FMZET RLZETRAREEZES
MRBE REEBYUERAEENERE ELLTRNE
BUOEBERANBFEER BT REBIFNERM-

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kim Fai (“Mr. Chan”),
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 13

aged 65, has been an

November 2014. He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee
and the Risk Management Committee of the Board and a member
of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
of the Board. He is responsible for overseeing the management
of the Group independently. Mr. Chan is currently an independent
non-executive director of Magnificent Hotel Investments Limited
(stock code: 201), Shun Ho Property Investments Limited (stock
code: 219) and Shun Ho Holdings Limited (stock code: 253) (all
Mr. Chan
has also served as the sole proprietor of lvan Chan & Co, CPA
since 2001.
of Certified Public Accountants, the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and CPA Australia.

these companies are listed on the Stock Exchange).

Mr. Chan is a member of the Hong Kong Institute

Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric (“Mr. Tang”), aged 78, has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 13
November 2014. He is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee of the Board and a member of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Risk Management Committee of
the Board. He is responsible for overseeing the management
of the Group independently. He is currently an independent
non-executive director of ASMPT Limited (stock code: 522),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Tang was qualified as a Chartered Accountant in Canada
and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Ms. Wong Lai Ming (“Ms. Wong”), aged 65, has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 13
November 2014. She is also a member of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Risk
Management Committee of the Board. She is responsible
for overseeing the management of the Group independently.
Ms. Wong has over 23 years of experience in the legal industry.
Ms. Wong is a non-practicing solicitor in Hong Kong.
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DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

Details of the change of emoluments of the Directors for the Year
are set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Company Secretary

Ms. Wong Cheuk Yee Kathy (“Ms. Wong”), aged 62, has been
the company secretary of the Company since 28 August 2014.
She is responsible for the company secretarial matters of the
Group. Ms. Wong has been the company secretary of EGL Tours
since September 2006, being responsible for its general company
secretarial affairs. Ms. Wong has over 39 years of experience
in the accounting, audit and tax industry. Ms. Wong holds a
diploma in accounting from the Hong Kong Shue Yan College
and a bachelor of law degree from Peking University. Ms. Wong
is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) in Hong Kong and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of EGL
Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 93 to 217, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Revenue recognition and associated contract liabilities
for Travel Related Business

(refer to notes 4(h), 7 and 24 to the consolidated financial
Statements)

The Group’s travel and travel related services business (“Travel
Related Business”) includes the following revenue streams with
different revenue recognition basis.

The Group’s revenue from provision of package tours
is recognised over time in which the control of services
are transferred to the customers because the customers
simultaneously receive and consume benefits provided by the
Group’s performance as it performs. Payment is made to the
Group before the customers enjoy the tour services.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continuea)

Revenue recognition and associated contract liabilities
for Travel Related Business (Continued)

Revenue from free independent travellers (“FIT”) packages,
individual travel elements (together with FIT package referred to as
“FIT Products”) such as sales of air tickets, hotel accommodation
and hotel packages, etc, and provision of ancillary travel related
services, such as, car rental, travel visa application and travel
insurance arrangement, etc, is recognised at a point in time when
the booking or arrangement services are performed or tickets
are delivered to and have been accepted by the customers.
The Group is the agent in these transactions and the revenue is

recognised on a net basis.

Where the Group acts as a principal in certain transactions,
including sales of admission and transportation tickets and
merchandise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
control of the products is transferred to the customers, being
when the goods are sold to the customers, there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customers’ acceptance of the
goods, the customers have obtained the physical possession or
the legal title of the goods and the Group has present right to
payment.

During the year, the Group recorded revenue derived from the
Travel Related Business of approximately HK$1,264,847,000. As
at 31 December 2023, the Group had customer deposits received
(including unexpired discount vouchers) from Travel Related
Business of approximately HK$127,353,000 which are recognised
as contract liabilities.

We have identified revenue recognition for the Travel Related
Business as a key audit matter because revenue is one of the
key performance indicators of the Group and because it involves
highly customised information technology systems to record the
transactions and certain manual procedures to determine the
appropriate recognition point, all of which give rise to an inherent
risk that revenue could be recorded in the incorrect period or could
be subject to manipulation.

In addition, inappropriate recognition of revenue could result in
misstatement of the contract liabilities received as recorded at the
reporting date.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continuead)

Revenue recognition and associated contract liabilities
for Travel Related Business (Continued)

Our Response
Our key audit procedures included:

- Performing review of overall information technology general
controls and application controls;

- Performing test of controls and substantive testing on
revenue cycle;

- Performing data analytical test on revenue from provision of
package tour;

- Scrutinising manual journals related to revenue to assess the
timing of revenues recorded;

- Testing on sampling basis, whether revenue transactions
recorded around the end of the financial reporting period
by inspecting the terms and conditions agreed with the
customers and timing on control of goods or services
transferred to customers; and

- Testing on sampling basis on the customer deposits
received as at the reporting date by tracing the receipts to
the supporting documents and reviewing the recognition of
revenue in the subsequent reporting period in accordance
with the respective recognition policies of the respective
services provided or products sold.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibilities in this regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of
our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control;

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control;
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors;

° conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern;

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation; and

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Tsui Ka Che, Norman

Practising Certificate Number: PO5057

Hong Kong, 20 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
B Z£2023%F12831H LEF[E For the year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
FAET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
W & Revenue 1,366,020 196,479
iHE A AS Cost of sales (1,026,252) (157,598)
EH Gross profit 339,768 38,881
HAW A S Wz K& E5187%%8  Other income, gains and losses, net 2,150 30,418
THE R Selling expenses (70,007) (37,147)
THHEX Administrative expenses (159,446) (100,634)
Hi&KEM= Other operating expenses (55) (818)
i A=UNETE = Share of results of associates 2,193 (238)
B A Finance costs (23,183) (22,658)
BREFISIRATER], (E518) Profit/(loss) before income tax 91,420 (92,196)
i () HER Income tax (expense)/credit (19,586) 16,697
FEad, (B8 Profit/(loss) for the year 71,834 (75,499)
HEOEHMDEEEEN Other comprehensive income, that
Hth2mlE - may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
MEBINEFEN Exchange differences on translation of
PE =% foreign operations (10,824) (25,887)
FE(GIR BB I E A BIRY Share of exchange differences on
bE R E %R translation of foreign associates (1) (893)
HeEnsfhrwE, Effect on cash flow hedge,
OFRIRIE net of tax (791) 454
HEBEAGENDIEEEEM  Other comprehensive income, that will
H2mias not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
RIRBSHBEZ Remeasurement of provision for long
BifistE service payments (870) -
FEHME2EmRE Other comprehensive income for the year,
MR IE net of tax (11,986) (26,326)
FESEINEAEEE Total comprehensive income for the year,
MR 1E net of tax 59,848 (101,825)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HZE2023F 12831 H LE&EFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
=3 THET FHET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
FELEEERN, (§18): Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to:
FN/NEIEZ TSN Owners of the Company 71,657 (74,299)
JEIERG RE 2R Non-controlling interests 177 (1,200)
71,834 (75,499)
FEL 2 EUR 4278 . Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
ZiN/NETEZZ= N Owners of the Company 59,485 (100,802)
R RE R Non-controlling interests 363 (1,023)
59,848 (101,825)
EABNHEE NELREF] Earnings/(loss) per share for profit/(loss)
(F518) 2SR &EF (§5#8) attributable to owners of the Company
—BE XK EE (B — Basic and diluted (HK cents) 10 14.26 (14.79)

094 H=miEERARAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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F LISTING

2023 2022
HtaE FHET FEBT
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Ceg==e7l)
(restated)
BERAE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ERBEE Non-current assets
L EN YL Property, plant and equipment 14 416,503 471,798
FERAEEE Right-of-use assets 15 25,497 18,361
REE AT Em Interests in associates 16 10,688 8,096
BRIERRIEE B Deferred tax assets 17 82,924 102,502
TTESRIEA Derivative financial instruments 27 = 1,154
51 R TR Deposits and prepayments 20 1,835 2,028
537,447 603,939
MENEE Current assets
=78 Inventories 18 1,313 1,733
& 5 EWER Trade receivables 19 10,235 6,766
Sl AN REMEIWER  Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 20 75,250 74,510
FE W B = A B BR TR Amount due from an associate 16(b) 3,816 5,542
AW [EIFRIE Tax recoverable = 131
IRIRIRITER Pledged bank deposits 21 10,240 8,135
RITERREFRE Cash at banks and on hand 21 219,940 204,300
320,794 301,117
mEIEE Current liabilities
B S EMNER Trade payables 22 37,540 15,582
FEETFRIE K E M FE 1T AR Accruals and other payables 23 55,207 42,236
FETAR 2 Dividend payable 11 35,172 -
RSN Contract liabilities 24 127,987 100,887
FETHE A B AR Amounts due to associates 16(b) 2,323 20
EabEW/NEIE= N Loans from a related company 35(b) - 30,000
HEas Lease liabilities 15 39,508 38,193
RIBHEE Provision for taxation 4,397 382
RITENR Bank borrowings 25 31,108 213,601
333,242 440,901
mEaEREE Net current liabilities (12,448) (139,784)
MEERAHER Total assets less current liabilities 524,999 464,155
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

122023F12H31H As at 31 December 2023

2023 2022
Hia# FET TET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Ce==xl)
(restated)
EREEE Non-current liabilities
B Provision 26 602 648
REARRB BB Provision for long service payments 31 5,653 4,550
RITER Bank borrowings 25 281,901 151,765
HE&E Lease liabilities 15 8,957 2,805
EApER/NET= £ Loans from a related company 35(b) 182,741 283,918
479,854 443,686
BERE Net assets 45,145 20,469
P EQUITY
KRR A Capital and reserves attributable to
P& B 2 Kz et 15 owners of the Company
[N Share capital 28 50,245 50,245
i Reserves 29 (2,837) (27,150)
47,408 23,095
JEER Non-controlling interests 34 (2,263) (2,626)
REm4RER Total equity 45,145 20,469
REREFE On behalf of the Board of Directors
RXH 2Rl
Yuen Man Ying Leung Shing Chiu
HMITESR HITEE

096 H=mirEBRARAS EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

Executive Director

Executive Director
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Consolidated Statement Of Changes In Equity

B E2023F12831H LEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

ﬂ

III ANNIVERSARY
STING

KRFER AL
Attributable to owners of the Company
Rx  ROEE AfEE  iRHE  BxRA SERE  HEE ZRER B FEREE  EREE
Foreign Non-
Share Share Merger  Statutory Capital  exchange Hedging  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium* reserve* reserve* contribution* reserve* reserve* losses* Total interests equity
TEx TEx TEx TEn TEn TE7 TET TET TET TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1202351818 At 1 January 2023 50,245 145,335 (58,214) 872 53,884 (40,847) 791 (128,971) 23,095 (2,626) 20,469
ERESA Profit for the year . . . . . . - TG TS 7 7183
Rtz mls Otter comprehensive income
BERMEBH Exchange differences on translation
ERESR of foreign operations - - - - - (11,010) - - (11,010) 186 (10,824)
EEAEEIMNEE AN Share of exchange differences on
ERzH translation of foreign associates - - - - - 1) - - 1) - 1)
Renenzr g Effect on cash flow hedge,
Mk net of tax - - - - - - (791) - (791) - (791)
RARKEHEL Remeasurement of provision for
BiiitE long service payments - - - - - - - (370) (370) - (370)
FEXANGARE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - (11,011) (7191) 71,287 59,485 363 5,848
RIS (1) Special dividends (note 17) - (35,172) - - - - - - (35,172) - (35,172)
1#2023512531H At 31 December 2023 50,245 110,163 (58,214) 872 53,884 (51,858) - (57,684) 47,408 (2,263) 45,145
* ERBEBEAREM BT RPN AR - * The total of these accounts represents “Reserves” in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement Of Changes In Equity
HZE2023F 12831 H LE&EFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

FRERE AR
Attributable to owners of the Company
Bx  RPEE  AffEE  iEEE  BERRA HEER N ZHEE B FERER EREE
Foreign Non-
Share Share Merger Statutory Capital exchange Hedging ~ Accumulated controling Total
capital premium* reserve” reserve™  contribution® reserve” reserve” losses* Total interests equity
TER AT AT Thn Thn ThET ThL Thn Thn ThET Thn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1202251818 At 1 January 2022 50,245 145,335 (68,214) 872 53,884 (13,890) 337 (64,672) 123,897 (1,603) 122,294
FEFR Loss for the year - - - - - - - (74,299) (74,299) (1,200 (75,499)
Etr2mhs Other comprehensive income
BERIERR Exchange differences on translation
ERER of foreign operations - - - - - (26,064) - - (26,064) 177 (25,887)
FE(HREEIBEARIR  Share of exchange differences on
ERER translation of foreign associates - - - - - (893) - - (893) - (893)
Remgfnry e Effect on cash flow hedge,
mhtE net of tax - - - - - - 454 - 454 - 454
FERANGEE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - (26957) 454 (74299 (100802) (1,023 (101,829)
120225125310 At 31 December 2022 50,245 145,33 (68,214) 872 53,884 (40,847) 791 (128,971) 23,095 (2,626) 20469
* ZERBRBEAGRESMBRRRPEME * The total of these accounts represents “Reserves” in the

098 HmirEBRARAS EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

consolidated statement of financial position.
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2023 2022
Mzt TER TET
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
(s =5)
(restated)
EEEHELZRERE Cash flows from operating activities
BREMEIRANEF (B Profit/(loss) before income tax 91,420 (92,196)
IR Adjustments for:
M BERREITE Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 8 31,980 40,462
FHARBEENE Depreciation on right-of-use assets 8 17,836 19,820
HEME  BERRHE (Gain)/loss on disposal of property,
(Wx®) /835 plant and equipment, net 8 (45) 7
RIEREZ Ww) /B8 (Gain)/loss on termination of lease 7.8 (619) 242
%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁw&m Gain on rental concession of lease 7 - (1,844)
HmEWiR 2 BRE SR Expected credit losses on other receivables 7 929 =
BoRENEBREERE Expected credit losses on trade receivables 7 335 =
ERTHENT 2 BEEEEIE  Expected credit losses on loans to an associate 7 800 =
B 2R EMEEIRER Bad debts written off in respect of trade receivables 8 - 105
REMA Finance costs 8 23,183 22,658
WITEHRFEWA Interest income on bank deposits 7 (2,770) (279)
WEH TR 2 # (] Reversal of written off of prepayments 7 (9,520) (24,498)
HMREUER 2 EHHIRER Bad debts written off in respect of other receivables 8 100 =
E s SRS Loss on modification of related party loans 7 8,122 =
RITREA R Gain on modification of bank borrowings 7 (50) (229)
i3 =N+ Share of results of associates (2,193) 238
SEESHEAICEERSARE  Operating cash flows before working capital changes 159,508 (35,514)
FERD Decrease in inventories 399 826
B 5 EURERIZ M Increase in trade receivables (4,109) (3,789)
sl AR R AMBEUER Decrease/(increase) in deposits, prepayments and
i) other receivables 7,022 (7,973)
FE U B /A B BR TR Decrease in amounts due from associates 1,726 748
& 5 T IRIE Increase in trade payables 22,061 10,348
FESTRIE R A FE (TR IG AN Increase in accruals and other payables 14,065 26,530
AHEEEN Increase in contract liabilities 27,208 88,712
FE 13 Bt 2 B AR UL Increase in amounts due to associates 2,303 8
RERZ R E Increase/(decrease) in provision for
=i,/ Gzl long service payments 733 (2,374)
EEELZHE Cash generated from operations 230,916 77,522
REOIFAER Income tax refund 151 156
EETHEL 2T FRE Net cash generated from operating activities 231,067 77,678
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HZE2023F 12831 H LE&EFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
Kzt THET THET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
(=7
(restated)
REEHEEZHERE Cash flows from investing activities
EEYVE BEKRERE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (9,561) (1,520
HEME -BERSKEZ Proceeds from disposal of property,

PR ™IE plant and equipment 205 -
(R /BRI RTTE (Placement)/release of pledged bank deposits (2,105) 191
B & Interest received 2,770 279
BERABMIKZAE Capital injection into an associate upon

incorporation of an associate (400) =
Bl =VNCESA Advance to an associate 16(c) (800) =
REZE T BT 5 Net cash used in investing activities (9,891) (1,050)
METHELEZRERE Cash flows from financing activities
RITERAERIE Proceeds from bank borrowings 39 - 2,000
BEBTER Repayment of bank borrowings 39 (27,638) (7,185)
(AEATED /EEATDHR (Repayment to)/advance from a related company 39 (150,000) 30,000
ENHAERENAEHD Principal element of lease rental paid 39 (16,886) (16,624)
BENHEERENHEBD Interest element of lease rental paid 39 (1,384) (1,307)
BEfFE Interest paid 39 (10,549) (9,353)
HE T2 % F5E Net cash used in financing activities (206,457) (2,469)
RERREZBYILMNFEE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 14,719 74,159
SMEEREHTE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 921 8
FNRERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents at

beginning of the year 204,300 130,133
FRBERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 21 219,940 204,300

100 =S=FE#HZERAERAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B E2023F12831H LEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

1.

—IRER

RRBEZERBRAE (TRRAF) K2014F78
AHEHSHETMRIIAEREEREE
NE e RABINEMMEEMUA Windward
3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box 1350, Grand
Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands o H 3= %
EMBEUN BB NEREEEEESIRN R R E
151518 0

7

RRBRMAI2014F 11 H28HN EBH AR
ZRBRATE (TBsZPr)) EfR £

FATMEEZXEFSREEZER HINBATNE
BEEFHN G S M BRRMEEIS

ARBNEEARRRERATDAEREEER
BRAR — RN EBEBRFEEMRILNA
5o

B E20283F12831HIEFE 26 BHRERTD
EEEi2024F3820H #HE o

1.

GENERAL

EGL Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 24 July 2014 as an
exempted company with limited liability. The address of its
registered office is Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO
Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. Its
principal place of business is located at 15/F, EGL Tower, 83
Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 28 November 2014.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in
note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s immediate and ultimate holding company
is Evergloss Management Group Company Limited,
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”).

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023 were approved by the board of directors on
20 March 2024.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2023F 12831 H LE&EFE For the year ended 31 December 2023
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2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

@

(®)

)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
which collective terms include all applicable individual
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). The
consolidated financial statements also include the
applicable disclosure requirements of Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under historical cost basis, except for a
derivative financial instrument, which is measured at fair
value as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

In the first half of 2023, the Japanese Government
has lifted most of the coronavirus disease 2019
(“COVID-19”) related restrictions relevant to the tourism
industry, including visa waiver, restriction removal of
free independent visitors upon arrival to Japan, etc.
Given the major hurdle affecting the Group’s business
performance no longer existed and considering
that the Group had sufficient financial resources to
support future operations and continue as a going
concern, accordingly, the directors of the Company
considered that it is appropriate to prepare the Group’s
consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continuea)

(@

Restaternent of comparative figures

The following comparative figure in consolidated
statement of financial position has been reclassified
to conform with the current year’s presentation of the
Group:

= Reclassification of the provision for long service
payment in the amount of approximately
HK$4,550,000 from accruals and other payables
included in current liabilities to non-current
liabilities as the liabilities were expected to be
settled after more than one year.

The following table summarises the impacts of the
reclassification on the comparatives presented in the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position
and consolidated statement of cash flow:

BIRIFTR S e KET|
As previously
reported Impacts As restated
FET FHET FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000
2022%12831HK Consolidated statement of
FERBRRR financial position as at
31 December 2022
FESTRIE R HMAERTER  Accruals and other payables (46,786) 4,550 (42,236)
mENEE Current liabilities (445,451) 4,550 (440,901)
RARB EHE Provision for long service payments - (4,550) (4,550)
FERBEE Non-current liabilities (439,136) (4,550) (443,686)
FE2022FE128H31HLE  Consolidated statement of
EEMNESEERER  cash flows for the year ended
31 December 2022
FESTARIER HAAETER  Increase in accruals and
120 other payables 24,156 2,374 26,530
REERESEBERLD Decrease in provision for
long service payments - (2,374) (2,374)

EEERA HERHFTETNEF D
HAREER2022F 12831 B4R S TSIk
MERFEWAEKC

In the opinion of the board of directors, the
reclassification made to the comparative figures has
insignificant impact on the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December
2022.
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs

@

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2023

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the following new or amended HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA to the Group’s financial statements for the
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2023:

o Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting Policies

° Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of Accounting
Estimates

° Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

° Amendments to HKAS 12, International Tax
Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules

. HKFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

Other than the amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2, none of these new or amended
HKFRSs has a material impact on the Group’s results
and financial position for the current or prior period.
The Group has not early applied any new or amended
HKFRSs that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. Impact on the applications of these
amended HKFRSs are summarised below:
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ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(@

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2023 (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to disclose
their material accounting policy information rather than
their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements provide
non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept
of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. The
Group has disclosed the material accounting policy
information in note 4 to the financial statements. These
amendments have no effect on the measurement or
presentation of any items in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group but affect the disclosure of
accounting policies of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of Accounting
Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies. Accounting estimates are defined
as monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments
also clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates. Since
the Group’s approach and policy align with the
amendments, the amendments had no impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs —

effective 1 January 2023 (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer applies
to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences, such as leases and
decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are
required to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided
that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred
tax liability for temporary differences arising from these
transactions.

Upon the application of the amendments, the Group
has determined the temporary differences arising from
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately.
However, they did not have any material impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(@

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2023 (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 12, International Tax Reform
— Pillar Two Model Rules

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform
— Pillar Two Model Rules introduce a mandatory
temporary exception from the recognition and
disclosure of deferred taxes arising from the
implementation of the Pillar Two model rules published
by the Organisation for Economic Co-operation
and Development. The amendments also introduce
disclosure requirements for the affected entities to help
users of the financial statements better understand
the entities’ exposure to Pillar Two income taxes,
including the disclosure of current tax related to Pillar
Two income taxes separately in the periods when Pillar
Two legislation is effective and the disclosure of known
or reasonably estimable information of their exposure
to Pillar Two income taxes in periods in which the
legislation is enacted or substantively enacted but not
yet in effect. Since the Group did not fall within the
scope of the Pillar Two model rules, the amendments
did not have any impact to the Group.

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

HKFRS 17 was issued by the HKICPA in 2018 and
replaces HKFRS 4 for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

HKFRS 17 introduces an internationally consistent
approach to the accounting for insurance contracts.
Prior to HKFRS 17, significant diversity has existed
worldwide relating to the accounting for and disclosure
of insurance contracts, with HKFRS 4 permitting many
previous accounting approaches to be followed.

Since HKFRS 17 applies to all insurance contracts
issued by an entity (with limited scope exclusions), its
adoption may have an effect on non-insurers such as
the Group. The Group carried out an assessment of
its contracts and operations and concluded that the
adoption of HKFRS 17 had no effect on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

®)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The following new or amended HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have been
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group:

° Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture®

° Amendments to HKFRS 16, Lease Liability in a
Sale and Leaseback'’

o Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current (the “2020
Amendments”)’

° Amendments to HKAS 1, Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”)’

° Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7, Supplier
Finance Arrangements'

° Amendments to HKAS 21, Lack of
Exchangeability?

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2025.

9 No mandatory effective date determined yet but
available for adoption.
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New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below:

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28,
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10
and in HKAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of
a gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction
when the sale or contribution of assets constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not
constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest
in that associate or joint venture. The amendments
are to be applied prospectively. The HKICPA decided
to defer the application date of this amendment until
such time as the HKICPA has finalized its research
project on the equity method. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

®)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 16, Lease liability in a Sale
and Leaseback

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements
that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability
arising in a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure
the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount
of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it
retains. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and
shall be applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback
transactions entered into after the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16 (i.e., 1 January 2019). Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current (the “2020 Amendment”)
and Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the
2022 Amendments”)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements in 2020 clarified that liabilities are classified
as either current or non-current, depending on the
rights that exist at the end of the reporting period.
Classification is unaffected by the entity’s expectations
or event after the report date (e.g. receipt of a waiver or
a breach of covenant). The amendments also clarified
what HKAS 1 means when it refers to the ‘settlement’
of a liability. The amendments were due to be applied
from 1 January 2022. However, the effective date
was subsequently deferred to January 2023 and then
further to 1 January 2024.
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3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current (the ‘2020 Amendment’)
and Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the
‘2022 Amendments”) (Continued)

In October 2022, the HKICPA made further
amendments to HKAS 1 in response to concerns
raised about these changes to the classification of
liabilities as current or non-current.

The new amendments clarify that covenants of loan
agreements will not affect classification of a liability
as current or non-current at the reporting date if the
entity must only comply with the covenants after the
reporting date. However, if the entity must comply with
covenant either before or at the reporting date, this will
affect the classification as current or non-current even
if the covenant is only tested for compliance after the
reporting date.

The amendments require disclosures if an entity
classifies a liability as non-current and that liability is
subject to covenants that the entity must comply with
within 12 months of the reporting date. The disclosure
include:

the carrying amount of the liability;
o information about the covenants; and
° facts and circumstances, if any, that indicate that

the entity may have difficulty complying with the
covenants.
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current (the ‘2020 Amendment’)
and Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the
2022 Amendments”) (Continued)

The amendments also clarify that HKAS 1 means
when it refers to the ‘settlement’ of a liability. Terms of
a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty,
result in its settlement by the transfer of the entity’s
own equity instrument can only be ignored for purpose
of classifying the liability as current or non-current if
the entity classifies the option as an equity instrument.
However, conversion options that are classified as
a liability must be considered when determining the
current/non-current classification of a convertible note.

The amendments must be applied retrospectively in
accordance with the normal requirements in HKAS 8
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors. Special transitional rules apply if an entity
had early adopted the 2020 amendments regarding
the classification of liabilities as current or non-current.
Based on a preliminary assessment, the amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.



| W

im e M B ER AR

TH ANNIVERSARY
OF LISTING

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B E2023F12831H LEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

3. RMEERMBRSEN @

b) EREEEREREMBIHAET AT
BB B EER ()
BEC ERETRRE B HRE
HRFE7H (B5TX)  REFHREZ
F2/3
BRESHENFTRREBMBRS
ERB7E (BFTH) BEHEBRE
ZHNRBBEBERBIMNEZST R
o BEANSTHNENZREARMH
ERERMEZHNER UEREER
AEHEENER - HERERME
MERRENEE - FINENBERE
BN THRIERNER !

() HEBRMEZHFIRRRIFS-

b) BRHEEREZNTRE
EURZEFEREUEBTEER
HIRYEREI(E ©

0 MREIRLALbIREZ ERMEEDN
SREET HEBEARBERM
el EINE/ N

d BREEERBEZHNE/ME
BRUIFZETLZHE D Z A
REZEMRWERIRE
& e

e MIRLEADbIREZ EMEER
EERNIFREEE -

 FIRAHEEREZHRE KR
BERHASHOABERRETE

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7, Supplier
Finance Arrangements

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 clarify the
characteristics of supplier finance arrangements and
require additional disclosure of such arrangements.
The objective of the new disclosures is to provide
information about supplier finance arrangements
(“SFAs”) that enables investors to assess the effects
on an entity’s liabilities, cash flows and the exposure to
liquidity risk. The new disclosures include information
about the following:

(@)  The terms and conditions of SFAs.

(b) The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that
are part of SFAs and the line items in which those
liabilities are presented.

() The carrying amount of the financial liabilities
in (b) for which suppliers have already received
payment from the finance providers.

(d) The range of payment due dates for both the
financial liabilities that are part of SFAs, and
comparable trade payables that are not part of
such arrangements.

() Non-cash changes in the carrying amounts of
financial liabilities in ().

(f)  Access to SFA facilities and concentration of
liquidity risk with finance providers.
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7, Supplier
Finance Arrangements (Continued)

The HKICPA has provided transitional relief by not
requiring comparative information in the first year,
and also not requiring disclosure of specified opening
balances. Further, the required disclosures are only
applicable for annual periods during the first year
of application. Therefore, the earliest that the new
disclosures will have to be provided is in annual
financial reports for the year ended 31 December
2024. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 21, Lack of Exchangeability

Amendments to HKAS 21 specify how an entity
shall assess whether a currency is exchangeable
into another currency and how it shall estimate a
spot exchange rate at a measurement date when
exchangeability is lacking. The amendments require
disclosures of information that enable users of
financial statements to understand the impact of a
currency not being exchangeable. Earlier application
is permitted. When applying the amendments, an
entity cannot restate comparative information. Any
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments
shall be recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained profits or to the cumulative amount
of translation differences accumulated in a separate
component of equity, where appropriate, at the date of
initial application. Based on a preliminary assessment,
the amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation

of these consolidated financial statements are set out below:

(@

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries and the Group’s interests in associates.
Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power to direct the activities
of the entity.

Inter-company transactions and balances between
group companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment
on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

The carrying amount of non-controlling interests
that represent present ownership interests in the
subsidiaries is the amount of those interests at initial
recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s share
of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to such non-controlling interests
even if this results in those non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but not control or joint control
over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and
thereafter, their carrying amounts are adjusted for the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in the
associates’ net assets except that losses in excess of
the Group’s interest in the associate are not recognised
unless there is an obligation to make good those
losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate.
The investor’s share in the associate’s profits and
losses resulting from these transactions is eliminated
against the carrying value of the associate. Where
unrealised losses provide evidence of impairment of the
asset transferred they are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value
of the Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and
included in the carrying amount of the associate.
Where there is objective evidence that the interest in
an associate has been impaired, the carrying amount
of the investment is tested for impairment in the same
way as other non-financial assets.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

(c)

Foreign currency translation

Transactions entered into by group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which they operate (the
“functional currency”) are recorded at the rates
ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency
monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Company (i.e. HK$) at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the year, in which case, the rates
approximating to those ruling when the transactions
took place are used. All assets and liabilities of foreign
operations are translated at the rate ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Exchange differences arisen,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(@

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off costs over their estimated useful lives, using
a straight-line basis, at the rates shown below per
annum. The estimated useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of the reporting period. The useful lives are as
follows:

Hotel and other buildings 2%
Leasehold improvements  30% or over the lease term,
whichever is shorter

Office equipment 20%
Computer equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%

Freehold land is not depreciated.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

(@

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and its carrying amount, and is
recognised in profit or loss on disposal.

Leases
Accounting as a lessee

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or
finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities, but accounting policy
choices exist for an entity to choose not to capitalise (i)
leases which are short term leases of office equipment
and travel buses and/or (ii) leases for which the
underlying asset is of low-value. The election for short-
term leases is made by class of underlying asset to
which the right of use relates. The Group has elected
not to recognise right-of use assets and lease liabilities
for both of the choice for the leases in respect of office
equipment and travel buses. The lease payments
associated with those leases have been expensed on
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group recognised a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability at the commencement date of a lease.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(€

Leases (Continued)
Accounting as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost
and would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability (see below for the
accounting policy to account for lease liability); (i) any
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received; (i) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate
of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease,
unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.
Subsequent to the commencement date, under the
cost model, the Group measures the right-of-use
assets at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses, and adjusted for
any remeasurement of lease liability. Unless the Group
is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased
asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised
right-of-use assets are depreciated on straight-line
basis over the shorter of useful lives and lease term.

Lease liability

The lease liability should be recognised at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the date of commencement of the lease. The lease
payments shall be discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily
determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
the Group shall use the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

(e)

Leases (Continued)
Accounting as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liability (Continued)

The following payments for the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease are considered
to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any
lease incentives receivable; (i) variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at commencement date; (iii)
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of
a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain
to exercise that option and (v) payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, a lessee
shall measure the lease liability by: (i) increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (ii) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and (iiij remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments
arising from change in an index or rate, a change in the
lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease
payments or a change in assessment to purchase the
underlying asset.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Financial instruments

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item
not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to
its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without
a significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There is only one
measurement category into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:
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Financial instruments (Continued)

()

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. Financial
assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method.
Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit
or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for
expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on trade
receivables and other financial assets measured
at amortised cost. The ECLs are measured on
either of the following bases: (1) 12-month ECLs:
these are the ECLs that result from possible
default events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; or (2) lifetime ECLs: these are
ECLs that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument.
The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)

(1)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables using HKFRS 9’s simplified approach
and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs.
The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors, current creditworthiness
of the debtors and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are
based on the 12-month ECLs. However, when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since origination, the allowance will be based on
the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 30 days past due.
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[/ =NE )] (f)  Financial instruments (Continued)
() ZHEEREES ) (i) Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
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The Group considers the following as constituting
an event of default for internal credit risk
management purposes as historical experience
indicates that financial assets that meet either
of the following criteria are generally not
recoverable:

° when there is a breach of financial
covenants by the debtor; or

° information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group in full.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group
considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely
to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full or
(2) the financial asset is more than 90 days past
due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial
assets is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset. For non-credit-
impaired financial assets, interest income is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)

(1)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has
been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of
trade receivables, when the amounts are over
two years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at amortised
cost are initially measured at fair value, net of
directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade payables, accruals and other payables,
dividend payables, amounts due to associates,
loans from a related company, lease liabilities
and bank borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.
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4, BEBARGHER &= 4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

N =LA #E () Financial instruments (Continued)
() EEFE % (iv)  Effective interest method
BN BRI —TBRAUGTESMEE The effective interest method is a method of
e =k SN e =N calculating the amortised cost of a financial
DEMEBATFEREZZHE-B asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
A RIEREHEENEEZTEESE income or interest expense over the relevant
PR e A B S HA R A A (G st R AR IR period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
S e B YRR IR 2 F =Ko exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.
()  ARIEEEE (v)  Derecognition
HEREREEZ RARIBEHREZS The Group derecognises a financial asset when
HWEFNER HEHEEEEHET the contractual rights to the future cash flows
NEREEAMBREER FIFRK in relation to the financial asset expire or when
IR &Mt AEBE SR IEFESDZ the financial asset has been transferred and the
IEHEFEE- transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9.
STHEBEINBEREENYBESER Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
bk BOH K fE m R AR LIERESD o obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.
Vi) BHemEH (vi)  Cash flow hedges
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Where a derivative financial instrument is
designated as a hedge of the variability in
cash flows of a recognised asset or liability or
a highly probable forecast transaction or the
foreign currency risk of a committed future
transaction, the effective portion of any gains
or losses on re-measurement of the derivative
financial instrument to fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the hedging reserve.
The ineffective portion of any gain or loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

©)

Financial instruments (Continued)
(vi)  Cash flow hedges (Continued)

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently
results in the recognition of a non-financial asset
or non-financial liability, the associated gain or
loss is reclassified from equity to be included in
the initial cost or other carrying amount of the
non-financial asset or liability.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently
results in the recognition of a financial asset or
a financial liability, the associated gain or loss
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the
same period or periods during which the asset
acquired or liability assumed affects profit or loss
(such as when interest income or expense is
recognised).

When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold or
terminated, or when a hedge no longer meets the
criteria for hedge accounting, hedge accounting
is discontinued prospectively, any cumulative gain
or loss remains in equity at that time is accounted
for according to the nature of the underlying
transactions (as discussed above) once the
hedged cash flow occurs. When a forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the
cumulative gain or loss that has been reported in
equity is reclassified to profit or loss immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is calculated
using the first-in-first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

(h)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
services may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or services is transferred
over time if the Group’s performance:

o provides benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

o creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the goods or services.

() Package tours

Revenue for package tours is recognised over
time in accounting period in which the control
of services is transferred to the customer
because the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes benefit provided by the Group’s
performance as it performs. Payment is made to
the Group before the customers enjoy the tour
services.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)  Revenue recognition (Continued)

(1)

(i)

Hotel room rental

The Group provides hotel accommodations, food
and beverage and other hospitality in Japan.

The Group self-operates its hotel. Revenue
from hotel room rental is recognised over time
in the accounting period in which the hotel
accommodation services are provided to the
customer.

Sales of FIT Products, ancillary travel related
products and services

Revenue from free independent travellers (“FIT”)
packages, individual travel elements (together
with FIT packages referred to as “FIT Products”)
such as sales of air tickets, hotel accommodation
and hotel packages, etc, and provision of
ancillary travel related services, such as, car
rental, travel visa application and travel insurance
arrangement, etc, is recognised at a point in time
when the booking or arrangement services are
performed or tickets are delivered to and have
been accepted by the customers. The Group is
the agent in these transactions and the revenue is
recognised on a net basis.

Where the Group acts as a principal in certain
transactions, including sales of admission and
transportation tickets and merchandise, revenue
is recognised at a point in time when the control
of the products is transferred to the customers,
being when the goods are sold to the customers,
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect
the customers’ acceptance of the goods, the
customers have obtained the physical possession
or the legal title of the goods and the Group has
present right to payment.

The Group does not provide any sales-related
warranties. There is no right of return by
customers under the Group’s standard contract
terms, except for sales of certain train tickets.



| W

TH ANNIVERSARY
OF LISTING

[ |
GE MR
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B E2023F12831H LEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

4. FEBREHBER @ 4.

h) K fEET )
() IrZELHRE
AEBN B AR Bk B L o ik
B AR U a i ik i B L AR FB IR T
& PR E 5t AR BE R B R 5T

) EamiHE
rEFBERABREHESm Wak
EmBROBEEREI - BEREE
mEF IR R ZER - GEEH
THMEMREEEZEBA RS R 2B
B0 AL ©

() EMPEA

BEWAR S EESHERRREX
(T REER o

ERER

RERZRITIGHE FEEERSRA
ER B ENERN T AERE S
EEOmURERBHNENERR &
FRM R EHAEBEURI R R 2
BHEFZENEEERELESEF
BEXREEFE A RETFTEF K
BRANGNERERNESPRKE
iz R M= P WA BB L B
BY R 5t W o

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

(h) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

v)

V)

Travel bus services

The Group owns its travel buses in Japan. Travel
bus service revenue is recognised over time in the
accounting period in which the travel bus services
are provided to the customer.

Sale of merchandises

The Group sells goods directly to customers.
Revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
product is transferred to the customers. Payment
of the transaction price is due immediately when
the customers purchase the product. Discounts
and other cash incentive to customers are
accounted for as reduction of the transaction
prices.

Other income

Commission income is recognised when the
goods or services on which the commission is
calculated are delivered.

Contract liabilities

Upon entering into a contract with a customer,
the Group obtains right to receive consideration
from the customer and assumes performance
obligations to transfer goods or provide services
to the customer. The combination of those
rights and performance obligations give rise to
a net asset or a net liability depending on the
relationship between the remaining rights and
the performance obligations. Contract liabilities
are recognised for services to be provided
to customers represented by the excess of
consideration received from the customers
according to agreed customer billing schedules
over cumulative revenue recognised.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Income tax

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for recognised assets and liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to
the expected manner in which the carrying amount of
the asset or liability is realised or settled and that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

(i)

0)

Income tax (Continued)

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are
also recognised in other comprehensive income.

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected to
be settled wholly before twelve months after the end
of the reporting period in which the employees render
the related service. Short-term employee benefits are
recognised in the year when the employees render the
related service.

Defined contribution retirement plans

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who
are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme in
Hong Kong. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions after payment
of the fixed contribution. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries to
the maximum mandatory contributions as required
by the MPF Scheme. Liabilities and assets may be
recognised if underpayment or prepayment has
occurred and are included in current liabilities or current
assets, respectively, as they are normally of a short-
term nature. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

0

Employee benefits (Continued)
Defined contribution retirement plans (Continued)

The subsidiary of the Company incorporated in
Macau makes monthly contributions to the social
security fund managed by the relevant authority of the
local government, which undertakes the retirement
obligations of the its employees. The Group has no
obligation for payment of retirement benefits beyond
the monthly contributions. The contribution payable is
charged as an expense to profit or loss as and when
incurred.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiary which
operated in Japan are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by a government-
affiliated corporation (the “National Pension Scheme”).
This subsidiary is required to contribute certain
percentage of employees’ salaries to the National
Pension Scheme. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiary which
operated in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government (the
“Central Pension Scheme”). This subsidiary is required
to contribute certain percentage of employees’ salaries
to the Central Pension Scheme. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid.

All' contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
when the services are rendered by the employees and
when they fall due under the relevant regulations.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

0)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Long service payments obligation

Long service payment (“LSP”) under the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance (“the Ordinance”) is
categorised as a defined benefit plan. Employees
qualified under the Ordinance are entitled to LSP in
certain circumstances specified in the Ordinance. There
are no legal funding requirements on employers and
the Group does not have any arrangement in place to
settle its payment obligation in the future.

The Group’s obligation to LSP is measured at:

- Gross LSP obligation estimated using the
projected unit credit method discounted to its
present value using yields available on high
quality corporate bonds (or government bonds
if there is no deep market in such high quality
corporate bonds) that have maturity dates
approximating to the terms of the liabilities and
are denominated in the same currency as the
post-employment benefit obligations; less

= Negative service costs. Under the Ordinance
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, the Group can offset the accrued
benefits derived from the Group’s MPF
contributions against the Group’s LSP
obligations. The Group regards these MPF
contributions are deemed contributions by
employees towards the LSP benefits. The
nature is negative service costs. These deemed
contributions are estimated by applying an
expected investment return rate on the MPF
contributions and then attributed to periods of
service using the same attribution method for
gross LSP obligation.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

0

(k)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Long service payments obligation (Continued)

Service costs are recognised in profit or loss, and
include current and past service costs (including result
from a plan amendment).

Interest expense is recognised in profit or loss, and
is calculated by applying the discount rate used to
measure the LSP obligation at the beginning of the
annual period to the balance of the LSP obligation,
considering the effects of benefit payments during the
period.

Remeasurements of the LSP obligation, including
actuarial gains and losses, are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

right-of-use assets;

interests in associates; and

prepayments

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value-in-use) of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense immediately.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

(k)

()

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Value-in-use is based on the estimated future cash
flows expected to be derived from the cash generating
unit, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
cash generating unit.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Related parties

(@)

(b)

A person, or a close member of that person’s

family, is related to the Group if that person:

(0

(i

(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions apply:

(0

(i

(i)

(vi)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member);

both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees of the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);
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4., BERKEHEBEE = 4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) [FEHES @)
(vii) @OFTEBIALTHZERBEEK
TERAZER (TZEBRESA
) NFEEEEAS ; 5

(vii) ZERIEFMBEBNERRK
BERBAAAERNERTZE
RERBEETEEEABRS -

71

—BATHAEREERALTEREBRERS
B AR BHARRA TR ENREN
8> 8E:

H

() BALHNFELREBIREZH

(i) RATEBIREBHNFL; &

(i) BALTHZALTERBIREBHNR
o

FEGHEE R FIER

st A BT EERBELR KAt
HE SEEERERL THRBSEENHREKSE
rBITEHR -

A& B SRR AF W (A 5 R FIE - FRIS R & 5T 5T
BREEERROABMEBRER - - TXH
RT—EMBEFEEHEEANRARENSELS
RAREEFHERFERERM ST R A :

(m) Related parties (Continued)

(vij a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity); or

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Company’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and judgements concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
judgements that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:
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5. FEGFHLERFIE @

) #E
A& BIRER M SE4(d)FT I & 5 BUR B %
BB K& FEETITE - At ERERAR
MEEEHAEERNKZSZEENERT
BECR R EN @ BABAIEE RIS
xR EEENG I ERFRETEN
aF{d o

(i) [EWARTERIIS BE78
AEBRBENVRBRRBERBEXZ BR
EEEZRHEMEBUIRBRAEEBE &
wREEDREAEERAFELUGEERR
BEMEZBBERNBERERANBER
BN ENTRETE  WHLATME G FH
A - HMEWIRNBHREEBELDER
TEBBEHEESR REEREVA
MR ESRRIRE AIRIE M- i FH
FlER  EEEEE R RANSEREA
EER  AIUNEFREL MBI INER
HRMERTMEF - NR{HEAH B
BREMBERRASHNEN oM
A RE (L5t F

(i) ETRGR R R A1 TR G 51
AEBENEERBEETEKRERARE
BNRBFLHEZHE - HRERBER
HREHBETEIR RFERRTEF
It 5 78 E HA ] BY P 19 AR e 2 SIE 7 T8 B
e

(v RABAREEREFE L

RERBENREIRORR —RIIEERF
HMARDEA—RIIBRREE - ZERKR
NEREHET ERENREE

TERRNFBERIEBRRETETNFY
IR EIMIEEST
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

()

(1)

(i)

(v)

Depreciation

The Group depreciates the property, plant and
equipment in accordance with the accounting policies
stated in note 4(d). The estimated useful lives reflect the
management’s estimates of the periods that the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from the
use of these assets. The management reassesses the
estimated useful lives at the end of the reporting period.

ECLs of receivables

The Group determines the ECLs of trade and other
receivables based on assumptions about risk of default
and expected loss rates. The provision matrix is
determined based on the Group’s historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the trade
receivables with similar credit risk characteristics and
is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. The ECLs
of other receivables is determined based on 12-month
ECLs because there is no significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. In making the judgement,
management considers available reasonable and
supportable forward-looking information such as actual
or expected significant adverse changes in business
and customers’ financial position. At every reporting
date the historical observed default rates are updated
and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed by the management.

Estimates of current tax and deferred tax

Significant judgements are required in determining
the amount of the provision for tax and the timing
of payment of the related tax. Where the final tax
outcomes are different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the periods in
which such determination is made.

Estimates of provision for long service payments

The present value of the long service payments
depends on a number of factors that are determined by
using a number of assumptions. Any changes in these
assumptions will impact the carrying amount of the
provision.

Details of key assumptions and impact of possible
changes in key assumptions are disclosed in note 31.
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6.

DEBERE

AEEDREATECERRECH2EH UM
REREAEEBEHFNERDEC L FEHKIR
ZAREHA AR MEEHEEDER

FERE=EJ 2RI E AN S EBRHBRE
EmkiRE THEEAREBRE  ZFDEHD
EERDHERE  FXM A EEZ BRI 2H D
EBRIEFS -

o TR 4 e i 5% A8 BA AR 75 2 75 (T ik 22 48 R 2
%)

s BmiFE (BRFEXEHE)

o HHABEEERKREMERS (DEEXER)

EEERBESAEDMES CHIFERBINESE
o akeyUm ~ S E R A~ EAth IR~ W K e
B HERX THRAN HMEE R G
AR EBERMERT) SHEEEDEIRIF-H
RITHRAHRKEBEERRE R EDER
RIBPAER A RAMA D BEEREE > EM

WRDEELEDEL

IHEECREMEEE ETEEEEXEE (H
PERERTEAKREFRS AREORKRERS
FTRMAMKEMEBWER) BN ECEEEREHR
BEEE SUERERSAKLEDI X ZH -
Bk DEERFEEMEATERREERER
(WETRESRERAEMEMER  ZEERK
BRILAREEZEFATACEDFEH TR
ROEEAMDE -

6.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group has identified its operating segments based on
the regular internal financial information reported to the chief
operating decision-makers about allocation of resources to
assess the performance of the Group’s business.

The Group has three reportable segments. The segments
are managed separately as each business offers different
products and services and requires different business
strategies. The following summary describes the operations
in each of the Group’s reportable segments:

° Travel and travel related services business (“Travel
Related Business”)

° Sale of merchandises (“Sale of Merchandises
Business”)

° Hotel room rental and ancillary services (“Hotel
Business”)

Management assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on the measure of segment results which
represents the net of revenue, cost of sales, other income,
gains and losses, selling expenses, administrative expenses,
other operating expenses, share of results of associates and
finance costs directly attributable to each operating segment.
Central administrative costs are not allocated to the
operating segments as they are not included in the measure
of the segment results that are used by the chief operating
decision-makers for assessment of segment performance.

Segment assets include all assets with exception of
corporate assets, including cash at banks and on hand, tax
recoverable and certain prepayments and other receivables
which are not directly attributable to the business activities
of operating segments as these assets are managed on
a group basis. Likewise, segment liabilities exclude loans
from a related company and corporate liabilities, such as
certain accruals and other payables, which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating
segments and not allocated to segments.
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6. DEHE @
@ FEESES

6.

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a) Business segments

i G
TERER HEER BIEER i i
Travel Sale of
Related Merchandises Hotel
Business Business Business Elimination Total
TAER TR TR TAET TR
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
#%2023F12831H For the year ended
ILEE: 31 December 2023:
6 Revenue
2R R Reportable segment revenue 1,264,847 7,368 111,616 (17,811) 1,366,020
FEDBRZ WG Inter-segment revenue - - (17,811) 17,811 -
REIMIER From external customers 1,264,847 7,368 93,805 = 1,366,020
A2 AT/ (558 Reportable segment profit/(loss) 137,907 (869) 746 = 137,784
ME -BERZEFTE  Depreciation on property,
plant and equipment (2,140) (377) (29,463) - (31,980)
FRREENE Depreciation on right-of-use assets (17,836) - - - (17,836)
EhBE AT R Share of results of associates 2,593 (400) - - 2,193
RME A Finance costs (1,976) - (3,568) - (5,544)
it (B2 /% Income tax (expense)/credit (19,052) (738) 341 - (19,449)
ERPHNEE Reportable segment assets 338,848 6,141 498,217 - 843,206
ERNPHERE Reportable segment liabilities 252,234 793 333,069 = 586,096
REFRHEE Additions to non-current assets 22,474 133 3,188 - 25,795
LS AT BESE  Share of net assets of associates 10,688 - - - 10,688

142 F=FEEZERAERAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED



e

TH ANNIVERSARY
OF LISTING

[ |
e BRI T
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B E2023F12831H LEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023
6. TEIERE @ 6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
@ EEDE @ (a) Business segments (Continued)
i 73
HEES HEXR BIEED 1838 st
Travel Sale of
Related  Merchandises Hotel
Business Business Business Elimination Total
TET FTEx TET TET FTET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
#F2022F12831H For the year ended
LLFE 31 December 2022:
@ Revenue
(ZF 8T fritr) (re-presented, note f)
ERH B = Reportable segment revenue 129,221 20,936 47,853 (1,531) 196,479
BEDBRZ WG Inter-segment revenue - - (1,531) 1,531 =
EBEINEE R From external customers 129,221 20,936 46,322 = 196,479
2R HE (§538) /57 Reportable segment (loss)/profit (23,851) 269 (43,580) = (67,162)
ME -BERZEINE  Depreciation on property,
plant and equipment (3,166) (226) (37,070) - (40,462)
BRBEENE Depreciation on right-of-use assets (19,820) = = = (19,820)
EEHE AR XE Share of results of associates (238) = - - (238)
HEmE Finance costs (1,646) - (4,010) = (5,656)
FERES Income tax credit 5,455 172 11,070 = 16,697
2RIV EE Reportable segment assets 327,832 13,828 544,760 - 886,420
BEL ST Reportable segment liabilities 226,352 3,486 368,737 = 598,575
REFRDEE Additions to non-current assets 304 679 537 = 1,620
LS ATIBEFE  Share of net assets of associates 8,096 = = = 8,096
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6.

DEERE @

)

A28 7 &M m R  BEREIEZ

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue,

HlER profit or loss, assets and liabilities
2023 2022
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
Wi Revenue
A2{ DU ER Reportable segment revenue 1,366,020 196,479
el Consolidated revenue 1,366,020 196,479
2023 2022
F#ET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
FRFFEMATER, (E518) Profit/(loss) before income tax
AIE2wRHIEF (8 Reportable segment profit/(loss) 137,784 (67,162)
Hith (548) W P58 Other (loss)/gain, net (7,684) 115
B A Finance costs (17,639) (17,002)
RO EEMRE Unallocated corporate expenses (21,041) (8,147)
FRPT1EH AT Consolidated profit/(loss)
imamF (B5i8) before income tax 91,420 (92,196)
2023 2022
FAET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BE Assets
AZ2BRNHWEE Reportable segment assets 843,206 886,420
APELEEE Unallocated corporate assets 15,035 18,636
ROMEE Consolidated total assets 858,241 905,056
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6. NEHRE & 6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

b) BIZ2HDE Wi 1Em  EEREEZ (b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue,

HR &) profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued)
2023 2022
FHT FH T
HK$’000 HK$’000

=K Liabilities

AEFNEEE Reportable segment liabilities 586,096 598,575
AP XEBE Unallocated corporate liabilities 227,000 286,012
catas Consolidated total liabilities 813,096 884,587

© HEEK (c) Geographic information
TRZHAERE R BIMNBE P BT K R
TREEREBIERBEEINNIERBEE
(MFEMIEMENEEL) N

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
revenue from external customers and non-current
assets other than financial assets and deferred tax
assets (“Specified non-current assets”):

REIMIE RIS RENFRBEE
(#EFrEHE ) (ZRERFEME D)
Revenue from Specified

external customers
(by customer location)

non-current assets
(by physical location)

2023 2022 2023 2022
THET FHET FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

(E#TT

Hrztt)

(re-presented,

note 1)

EETRM Hong Kong and Macau

(Pfr 7 3th) (place of domicile) 1,266,220 147,396 32,397 21,860
HA& Japan 99,800 49,083 409,565 468,226
Hith Others - - 10,726 8,169
1,366,020 196,479 452,688 498,255

FREMDESERAEERHHE R B
BERBHEEREEROBIMFTETE

The place of domicile is determined by referring to the
place the Group regards as its hometown, has the
majority of operation and centre of management.
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6. DEPRE @

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

@ EBHELTEELZEN (d) Information about a major customer
REZE2023F12H31HIEFE » ZEE The Group did not have any single customer
BEMBE—FPREMAEE10%MU s contributed more than 10% of the Group’s revenue

(20224 : #E) © during the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).
© a2 Hr (e) Disaggregation of revenue
izl BRHEEHR BEER it
Travel Related Sale of Merchandises Hotel
Business Business Business Total
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
TiEx TR TiEx TR TiEx TER TR TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(&R (E#T
Hztr) fz2r)
(re- (re-
presented, presentea,
note f) note f)
TEHMEDSE Primary geographical markets
FAEHEM Hong Kong and Macau
(FriEst) (place of domicile) 1,258,852 126,460 7,368 20,936 - - 1,266,220 147,396
B Japan 5,995 2,761 - - 93,805 46,322 99,800 49,083
1,264,847 129,221 7,368 20,936 93,805 46,322 1,366,020 196,479
W B R R Timing of revenue recognition
B3 At a point in time 88,765 19,691 7,368 20,936 - - 96,133 40,627
PeliSin=ted Transferred over time 1,176,082 109,530 - - 93,805 46,322 1,269,887 155,852
1,264,847 129,221 7,368 20,936 93,805 46,322 1,366,020 196,479
N EEFEE) () Change of comparative figures

AEBEREREHANEEAERITE &
BEHTERREHEB EEERAERE
EMEEMNKRITERBHITERKZEID
WARST ARBEBABETN D BUE - BEL
F2023F 12831 B IEEERRE » oW =R
SFANRBEEAERN DI WR  BEXEDN
ERBEFEEEHI N UREEREEN
E2AHR -BEFGRA EFIRATHD
IR EEEEATE
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The Group utilises its hotels in Japan to provide
accommodation for its package tours and FIT
Products. The portion of revenue generated from the
package tours and FIT Products attributable to the
utilisation of the Group’s hotels was not included as
segment revenue of the travel related business in
previous years. With effect from the year ended 31
December 2023, this portion of revenue was included
as segment revenue of the travel related business and
last year’'s comparatives were re-presented to conform
with current year’s presentation. In the opinion of the
board of directors, the re-presentation has no material
impact on the segment reporting.
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7. WammREMUA - NERESIEFEE 7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND
LOSSES, NET

W B 3ERITE « EEN M iR 1T AR R B I R B FE Revenue includes the net invoiced value of package tours,

BIEREEREERFENEEFE;, BHTER ancillary travel related products, and hotel room rental and

R EEB S kTR RS PR B IE 2 %8 ; N E 3 ancillary services; the net proceeds from FIT Products and

HE AFEMINETEWZBRNESREU T ancillary travel related services; and sale of merchandises.

FA~ - The amounts of each significant category of revenue

recognised during the year are as follows:

2023 2022
FHET FHETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
(EFZT
Hate()
(re-presented,
note 6(f))
& Revenue

R4 Package tours 1,176,082 109,530
BHTEM (#a) FIT Products (note) 27,099 6,672

B RITAERE R & Ancillary travel related products and
BR¥5 (H/at) services (note) 61,666 13,019
il e Sale of merchandises 7,368 20,936
HAREE R E REEE MRS Hotel room rental and ancillary services 93,805 46,322
1,366,020 196,479
izt . AEEBBTER&RS TEHBERTHERE RS Note: The Group's revenue from FIT Products and certain ancillary
EENB RS AEARIERNARESEAWE travel related services is considered as cash collected on
MRS AMmstAF2E e B W R EWFREZIE behalf of principals as an agent, and thus recorded on a net
HEZEYN N FR TS - basis. The gross proceeds received and receivable are as

follows:

2023 2022
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
B EWFTSIIE48 %8 Gross proceeds received and receivable 289,140 66,343
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7. WmkEMBAWmRkBEFE® 7.

TR EMEZBUBRAREZERGHNNG

LOSSES, NET (Continued)

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND

The following table provides information about trade

HNEENER receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with
customers:

1220234 1220224
12H31H 12831H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
FAET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
B2 RUER (H/3219) Trade receivables (note 19) 10,235 6,766
eHNaE (Wite4) Contract liabilities (note 24) 127,987 100,887
2023 2022
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000

HE MU ~ W is K B518 7% %8 Other income, gains and losses, net
BE 52 B5 18 75 28 Exchange loss, net (1,775) (3,511)
HEHEE WS Gain on rental concession of lease = 1,844
RITER AR W = Gain on modification of bank borrowings 50 229
KIEAE 2 W& Gain on termination of lease 619 =
BT f B WA Government sponsor income - 5,789
BRIEIA Handling income 641 631
B2 RWIRZ TBHREERIE ECLs on trade receivables (335) —
HnEWER 2 TR E EE 18 ECLs on other receivables (929) -
EXRFTHE AT 2TEEEERE  ECLs on loans to an associate (800) -
IRITERF B A Interest income on bank deposits 2,770 279
RiE B B R 1B Loss on modification of related party loans (8,122) =
W EE TR S =R 2 [O] 2 Reversal of written off of prepayments 9,520 24,498
FETEUWT A Sundry income 511 659
2,150 30,418
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8.

PRERISIRATER, (518

BREFISIRATER], (B518) &Mk, (Bt A) LU THIE
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8. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX

Profit/(loss) before income tax is arrived at after charging/

BEWE (crediting):
2023 2022
TAT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
12 4 B i B Auditors’ remuneration 2,225 1,644
BSEWIRZ Bad debts written off in respect of

B i = AR~ trade receivables * - 105
HAtEWERE >~ Bad debts written off in respect of

B iiH = AR other receivables * 100 -

BARLENEFERA Cost of inventories recognised as expenses 4,540 14,720
ME--BEKRKZEITE Depreciation on property,
plant and equipment 31,980 40,462
FTRESEITE Depreciation on right-of-use assets 17,836 19,820
HEYZ BEKRRHE (Gain)/loss on disposal of property,

(Wz) B85 EE" plant and equipment, net * (45) 7
®IEHE B8R Loss on termination of lease * - 242
MBS Finance costs:

—HEEBEEEN — Interest expense incurred on

SR (Ha15) lease liabilities (note 15) 1,384 1,307

—TTEEMIEEEN — Interest expense incurred on

MEREZ derivative financial instruments 197 263
—REAREREEN — Interest expense incurred on
M EREX loans from a related company 17,988 17,002
—IRITERELEDN — Interest expense incurred on
AMEMRZ bank borrowings 3,614 4,086
23,183 22,658
BEMRZA (BiFEMF12 1 Employee costs (including directors’

BEEF) - emoluments in note 12):

—Fre REMBEYE — Salaries and other benefits in kind 139,133 60,500

—RIRETEIHERR — Retirement scheme contributions 4,912 2,307

—RIRBE — Long service payments 978 2,255

145,023 65,062
* FrAZERT A EME=EREs e * All these expenses are recorded as “other operating

expenses”.
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9. FRfEHAX " (&%)

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

2023 2022
FAET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BNHRIRIE — & B F) 11 Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax
—ARFERIE — Tax for the year 1,476 64
—BEEETRE (B%) — Under/(over)-provision in respect of
B prior year 126 (35)
1,602 29
BVHAFRIE— H & F)18 Current tax — Japan Profits Tax
—ARFERIE — Tax for the year 2,171 =
IRIEFRIE Deferred tax
—RAEEEBZENRE GHA) — Charge/(credit) to profit or loss for
(Hi&t17) the year (note 17) 15,813 (16,726)
19,586 (16,697)
NS ENEAEATREEN R REE The group entities incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
HENE BRI EEITMRINERSE B the BVI are tax-exempted as no business is carried out in the
R EREEHELREBMER R ETER Cayman lIslands and the BVI under the laws of the Cayman
HIEEA RN TR A © Islands and the BVI respectively.
I E2023F K022 1231 B IEEE » (5t fE Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 8.25% on the first
SRR A B E 2,000,000/ 751%8.25% 5t EE B HK$2.0 million of estimated assessable profits and at 16.5%
B Mt FEEREF#82,000,0005E 7T for the portion of the estimated assessable profits above
BYER 43 B 3216.5%5T & o & 220234 2022412 HK$2.0 million for the years ended 31 December 2023 and
BI31HLEEE F&8FFERMREERNER 2022. The profit of group entities not qualifying for the two-
B 0 S R 4 4= 121 6. 5% I TR R o tiered profits tax rates regime continued to be taxed at

16.5% for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.
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9.

FRiSHAY (E%) @

HE2023F12B31HIEFEE BB MER
THiRIERBRPIE BN B A B M E st TR E
FIZ12% (20224F 1 12%) I ZHEHH « # E2023
F12A31HIEFE  AEBRRPIEENNEBA
BB B A i st FE ST AR E A (20224F © E)

HE2023F12B31HIEEE  PEHBEMER
Th AR ¥R 5 AR B = Y Y B A B BV {5 5t B ST AR i
F3%25% (20224 : 25% ) BIFR &1 & ° 2 £2023
F12A31HIEFE  KEBRFEEENHNEBA
o] 1B A 2 A S E ST AR E A (20224F & 5E) o

RBAEENHBAS BRAMB RN ERSE
M MERZERMEHEBENERALEER (F
XA THAFER) » ZEMIERE £2023F
12831 HIEFEERIRTEE RBENEGELS
REMAEMEMRREN F430.6%E4I34.6%
(20224 : #930.6%E#J34.6%) ° EHE2023%F
12A31HIEEE AEBRAAZEENHBAR
FAEMGSHEREF) (20224 © ) ©

o

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (Continued)

Macau Complementary Tax is calculated at 12% (2022:
12%) on the estimated assessable profit of a subsidiary
operating in Macau for the year ended 31 December 2023.
The Group has no estimated assessable profit arising from
the subsidiary operating in Macau for the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: Nil).

PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated at 25% (2022:
25%) on the estimated assessable profit of a subsidiary
operating in the PRC for the year ended 31 December 2023.
The Group has no estimated assessable profit arising from
the subsidiary operating in the PRC for the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: Nil).

Subsidiaries operating in Japan are subject to corporate
income tax, prefectural and municipal inhabitant taxes
and business tax (hereinafter collectively referred to
as “Japan Profits Tax”) in Japan, which, in aggregate,
resulted in effective statutory income tax rates ranging
from approximately 30.6% to approximately 34.6% (2022:
approximately 30.6% to approximately 34.6%) for the year
ended 31 December 2023 based on the existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof. The Group
has estimated assessable profit arising from the subsidiaries
operating in Japan for the year ended 31 December 2023
(2022: Nil).
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9. FREMAX " (&%) @

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (Continued)

BRERMERAENFREREX (KR) REst Reconciliation between income tax expense/(credit) and

wH (518 HERWT ¢

accounting profit/(loss) at applicable tax rates:

2023 2022
TFHET TFET
HK$’000 HK$’000
FRFFEIRANER, (F518) Profit/(loss) before income tax 91,420 (92,196)
BEBFERNZE16.5% Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of
(20224 : 16.5%) st EHHRIE 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) 15,084 (15,212)
REMBNEEREREEN liﬁ)% Tax effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries
NEIZRREIRE B’Jﬁﬁ“ A operating in other jurisdictions 567 (7,999)
AAMIBBENRFE 2 Tax effect of non-deductible items 4,035 3,122
BEFMEBENRBEE Tax effect of non-taxable items (810) (2,182)
AR TR ERBNRBEEE Tax effect of temporary differences
not recognised (538) 10
RERRIEEENREE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 2,402 5,461
8 ?Iﬁiﬁ%é%{j TRIERES R IR A Tax effect of previously unrecognised
RERIEE ENRB T E tax losses now recognised as
deferred tax assets (1,026) =
BEFENREE S (B2 #E Under/(over)-provision in prior year 126 (35)
HAth Others (254) 138
19,586 (16,697)
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10. EREF, (E518) 10. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
2023 2022
FAT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
&BH, (E518) Earnings/(loss)
KNBIHER ANFE(L Profit/(loss) attributable to
wmAl (B518) owners of the Company 71,657 (74,299)
2023 2022
TR TK
’000 ‘000
i dn 5 4= Number of shares
ZimkEE Number of ordinary shares 502,450 502,450
HE20283F K2022F12B31HIEFEE » XA F) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share was the same as the basic
Wi SE B IR NSRS ERF S (B8 8 earnings/(loss) per share as the Company had no dilutive
FREREFH S (B1B) [E potential shares during the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022.
1. R 11. DIVIDENDS

R2023F 128140 EEGEEREAATE
REBR7TBUNFIRE T EARBRKRE (T
B ) 45 BIRR B 520241 B 18 HIK{T F 122024
F1RSHE£RBAERFLTIAATRKRE M
BIPEER o

EEEAEBRNEE2023F12831HIEFE
BIERIREEIR B (20224 : ) o

On 14 December 2023, the board of directors has declared
a special dividend of 7 Hong Kong cents per ordinary
share of the Company to the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”). The special dividends were paid on
18 January 2024 to the Shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company at the close of
business on 5 January 2024.

The board of directors do not recommend any payment
of final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023
(2022: Nil).
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12. ﬁ;#ﬁﬂm 12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
EEIINEEWNT - Directors’ emoluments are disclosed as follows:

FEREM Bk

BYEH RRIEAL B
fE (Hita) (Hatb) st B M5t

Salaries Discretionary
and other and
benefits performance  Retirement
in kind bonuses scheme
Fee (note a) (note b)  contributions Total
THET THER TER THET TER
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000

2023

HITEE Executive directors

RYH Yuen Man Ying - 2,435 2,421 105 4,961

HEZ Huen Kwok Chuen = 1,925 1,927 86 3,938

sl Leung Shing Chiu - 1,843 1,927 84 3,854

FES Lee Po Fun - 1,880 1,927 83 3,890

REE Yuen Ho Yee = 1,193 1,600 18 2,811

HEE Cheang Chuen Hon - 1,403 997 18 2,418

= 10,679 10,799 394 21,872

BUFHTEE Independent non-executive directors

RIRIE Chan Kim Fai 209 - - - 209

ilfrawi Tang Koon Hung Eric 191 - - - 191

=HER Wong Lai Ming 180 - - - 180
580 = = = 580
580 10,679 10,799 394 22,452
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12. EEFHM

ERSARY
G

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

TH ANNIV
OF LISTIN

e REM KiEk
ENET FRRTEL FER/N
ik (Hzza) (Hzto) S| a5t
Salaries  Discretionary
and other and
benefits  performance Retirement
in kind bonuses scheme
Fee (note a) (note b)  contributions Total
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
2022
HITEE Executive directors
RMHE Yuen Man Ying - 719 = 22 741
BEE Huen Kwok Chuen - 1,144 = 43 1,187
2 Leung Shing Chiu - 1,093 = 42 1,135
TEH Lee Po Fun = 1,167 = 44 1,211
REHE Yuen Ho Yee = 819 - 18 837
BEE Cheang Chuen Hon = 1,252 - 18 1,270
- 6,194 - 187 6,381
BUHHTEE Independent non-executive directors
BRiE Chan Kim Fai 202 - = = 202
i Tang Koon Hung Eric 185 = = = 185
=HEH Wong Lai Ming 174 - = = 174
561 - - - 561
561 6,194 - 187 6,942
HizE : Notes:
a: EREBEAREESEHFENAEMELATIHNTE a: Being “Salaries and other benefits in kind” paid or payable to

B2 ek EMBYRETF

b: HMBERKRREANDSELAEBRBULEHME
EEHEMEE

c: MEZFE2023F12831HIEFE » #E (2022
F IR XATESEREFN (20224 :
3,304,00078 7T) °

executive directors of the Company in connection with the

management of the affairs of the Group.

b: The discretionary and performance bonuses are determined

by reference to the Group’s performance and approved by the

remuneration committee.

@z During the year ended 31 December 2023, no (2022: six)
directors of the Company have waived emoluments (2022:
HK$3,304,000).
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13. AAREHMAL

rEBILESHEMA TR 1% (20224 1 1M
%) RERBRES RENMEHE I EXMEE12
Ao R20225  BR T —R ATHBEW T ¢

13. THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, five (2022: four) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in the disclosures in note 12
above. The emoluments of the remaining one individual for
2022 were as follows:

2023 2022

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$’000

e REMEYER Salaries and other benefits in kind = 871
1B R =RIZIEAL Discretionary and performance bonuses - 209
RORETEIHR Retirement scheme contributions - 18
- 1,098

EeHMFEE ALEMEED T

The emoluments of the highest paid non-director fell within
the following band:

2023 2022

A¥L A¥L

Number of Number of

Individual Individual

1,000,001 78752 1,500,00078 75 HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 - 1

BENHENFTEREERBAS (FEELARTE
F) NFEIERN T ¢

The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior
management (excluding directors of the Company) were
within the following bands:

2023 2022

AE A

Number of Number of

individual individual

£ %1,000,0008 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 1 1
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14. ME - -BER=RE 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
XA BER BEME FER
EEtH HftiigT & BARME Bl ot EEkE @t
Hotel
Freehold and other Leasehold Office Computer Motor Furniture
and buildings  improvements equipment equipment vehicles  and fixtures Total

TER TAL TR TAL TAL TERL TAL TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

12022051818 At1 January 2022

[ Cost 203,673 308,985 221,705 36,864 44,542 19,396 23,121 858,286
RithE Accumulated depreciation - (16,165) (166,071) (22,194) (41,107) (17,517) (14,994) (278,048)
REFE Net carrying amount 203,673 292,820 55,634 14,670 3,435 1879 8,127 580,238
HE02F1283AILFE For the year ended

31 December 2022

EfREEE Opening net carrying amount 203,673 292,820 55,634 14,670 3,435 1,879 8,127 580,238
HE Addltions - - 736 165 123 - 496 1,520
e Disposal - - - ) - - - ")
i Depreciation - (5,518) (25,247) (4,130 (1,326) (1513) (2,728) (40,462)
ERHE Exchange adjustment (24,777) (35,531) (6,003) (1,647) () (115) (1,329) (69,491)
FREEFE Closing net carrying amount 178,896 251,771 25,080 9,051 2,221 251 4,572 471,798
120225125318 At 31 December 2022

[ Cost 178,896 271,397 199,680 34,236 44,629 17,155 21,288 767,281
RithE Accumulated depreciation - (19,626) (174,650) (25,185) (42,402) (16,904) (16,716) (295,483
REFE Net carrying amount 178,896 251,771 25,030 9,051 2,207 251 4,572 471,798
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14. ME-BERKRE @

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)
KA BER REME RER
£ AT £ HN BRRE "E BE&E st
Hotel
Freehold and other  Leasehold Office Computer Motor Furniture
land buildings improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles  and fixtures Total
Thn TAn Thn Thn TAn Thn Thn TAn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HE2023512B31HILEE For the year ended
31 December 2023
EREFE Opening net carrying amount 178,896 251,771 25,030 9,051 2,227 251 4,572 471,798
AE Additions - 2,192 2,327 539 4,255 - 248 9,561
HE Disposal - - - - - (160) - (160)
e Depreciation - (5,098) (20,460) (3,236) (1,527) (63) (1,59) (31,980)
ERHE Exchange adjustment (12,646) (17,651) (1,529) (558) - - (332) (32,716)
ERE@IE Closing net carrying amount 166,250 231,214 5,368 5,796 4,955 2% 2,892 416,503
120235128318 At 31 December 2023
A Cost 166,250 254,500 190,647 33,376 48,866 15,669 20,519 729,827
REHTE Accumulated depreciation - (23,286) (185,279) (27,580) (43,911) (15,641) (17,627) (313,324)
REFE Net carrying amount 166,250 231,214 5,368 5,796 4,955 2% 2,892 416,503

R2023F 128318 AEBEE 2 EFRE F
fE49166,250,0007 7T ( 20224 : 178,896,00058
7T) %231,214,0007 7t (20224 : 251,771,000
7T) I B A B K A R 1 3 DU KB TS e g

FLUERFTEBERVRTER (FE25) o

158 =mEEERARAT EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

As at 31 December 2023, freehold land and hotel and
other buildings of the Group located in Japan with a net
carrying amount of approximately of HK$166,250,000
(2022: HK$178,896,000) and HK$231,214,000 (2022:
HK$251,771,000) respectively, were pledged to secure the

bank borrowings granted to the Group (note 25).
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15. EAREE THE&AR

KEFFSEAEN
FEERHEEMEMMNE ZEREENEES
THE - AR ERBEEUERSE -

AERTHEETHERRHFEER  8EKRES
T - BmEARE BEAKEHEZHEEGSHEE
PRIBYTE ZR T 7R

REFREE
REHEEENDOMNEREEE ZREFE
LI

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE LIABILITIES

The Group as a lessee

The Group leases a number of properties in the jurisdictions
from which it operates. The periodic rent is fixed over the
lease term.

The Group also leases certain items of plant and equipment,
including travel buses and plant and equipment. Leases of
plant and equipment comprise only fixed payments over the
lease terms.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by
class of underlying asset is as follows:

202345 20224
12H31H 12H31H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
FHET FHBT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEBRNEE Leased for own use,
DUHTE R AT carried at depreciated cost:
HEYE Rental premises 20,332 15,754
PN Office equipment 5,165 2,607
25,497 18,361
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15. FREEE HEadE ®

KEEFERABN @

RARESE #)

FR ERAREEZFUT

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE LIABILITIES

(Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

Movements of right-of-use assets during the year:

HEME MARE Jiigi{mtn M8zt
Rental Office Travel
premises equipment buses Total
FTET TET TET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
1®2022F151H At 1 January 2022 20,021 4,921 1,918 26,860
HE Addition 4,440 - - 4,440
RIEAE Termination of lease (4,809) - - (4,809)
neE Depreciation (15,589) (2,313) (1,918) (19,820)
HEBIzF & Effect of lease modification 11,691 = = 11,691
bR A% Exchange adjustment - (1) - (1)
#20226128318 K At 31 December 2022 and
2023F181H 1 January 2023 15,754 2,607 - 18,361
hE Addition 10,152 6,082 - 16,234
RIEHRE Termination of lease - (1,923) - (1,928)
nE Depreciation (16,235) (1,601) - (17,836)
HEBIIZZE Effect of lease modification 10,661 = = 10,661
1$2023%12831H At 31 December 2023 20,332 5,165 - 25,497
HEEE LEASE LIABILITIES
REMBENMNFIZEREEDHRAT ! The analysis of the present value of future lease payment is
as follows:
120235 120224
12H31H 12831H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
THET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’'000
mEIEE Current liabilities 39,508 38,193
JEREEE Non-current liabilities 8,957 2,805
48,465 40,998
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15. ERAEEE HEAE® 15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE LIABILITIES
(Continued)
KEEFEAARFAN 1B The Group as a lessee (Continued)
HEEE (#B) LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)
FRHAEEEZEFHUT Movements of lease liabilities during the year:
HEYE WARE REE L st
Rental Office Travel
premises equipment buses Total
TAERT TERT THERT TAET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
120221818 At 1 January 2022 20,164 5,757 21,981 47,902
hE Addition 4,440 - - 4,440
RIEHE Termination of lease (4,567) = = (4,567)
HEBIZRE Effect of lease modification 11,691 = = 11,691
FIEREX Interest expense 994 294 19 1,307
HAERT Lease payments (15,095) (2,721) (115) (17,931)
COVID-19/8RAFA £ E R, (#732) COVID-19-related rent concessions (notg) (1,844) = = (1,844)
12022F128318 & At 31 December 2022 and
2023F181H 1 January 2023 15,783 3,330 21,885 40,998
NE Addition 10,152 6,082 - 16,234
RIEAE Termination of lease - (2,542) - (2,542)
HEBIZFE Effect of lease modification 10,661 = = 10,661
FIEMRY Interest expense 990 394 - 1,384
HEMR Lease payments (16,531) (1,739) - (18,270
12023F12831H At 31 December 2023 21,055 5,525 21,885 48,465
12023125315 At 31 December 2023
IEHEERY Short term lease expenses - - 37,934 37,934
R AHEEEFENTE  Variable payments not included in the
HEMH: measurement of lease liabilities: 157 83 = 240

1R2022F12831H At 31 December 2022
R ERY Short term lease expenses - = 5,843 5,843
R AHESEERTE  Variable payments not included in the

HEMT: measurement of lease liabilities: 79 5 = 84
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15. FREEE HEadE ®

FEBEREMN (@)
HEERE (#)
Wizt :

AEECEERNAEEZFMANESRERE ST
B S 2ER 165 2B TS| AZRI 1T E 5 A o Flr
BEE2022F12831HIEFERTIIZBEE RS
SIEEEATTRES A - BEATERHEENA
EaEEEER1,844,0008 7T o s RO ZEEE
B2 ENANEHIEGEENERAR ARG

RREENRZEEELT ¢

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE LIABILITIES

(Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)
Note:

The Group has elected to apply the practical expedient introduced
by the amendment to HKFRS 16 to all rent concessions that satisfy
the criteria. All of the rent concessions entered into during the year
ended 31 December 2022 satisfy the criteria to apply the practical
expedient. The application of the practical expedient has resulted
in the reduction of total lease liabilities of HK$1,844,000. The effect
of this reduction has been recorded in profit or loss in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers those payments occurs.

Future lease payments are due as follows:

REKFAEMT FR RE
Future lease
payments Interest Present value
FHT FTHTT THT
122023%F12H31H At 31 December 2023 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
RBE—F Not later than one year 40,799 1,291 39,508
B8 —F K E U A Later than one year and

not later than two years 5,050 574 4,476

BEmERAEURN Later than two years and
not later than five years 4,821 340 4,481
50,670 2,205 48,465
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15. FHESE THEAEG @

FEEFERAEN @

(Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE LIABILITIES

HEEE (& LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)

RERBEMR FIE HE
Future lease
payments Interest  Present value
FHET FET FHET
%2022%F12831H At 31 December 2022 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’ 000
NEBBE—F Not later than one year 38,746 553 38,193
BiE—F RmEURA Later than one year and not
later than two years 2,855 50 2,805
41,601 603 40,998
16. REE AT D 16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

2023 2022
TFAT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
EIREEZE Share of net assets 10,688 8,096
FE U B = A B BRFR (HaEb) Amount due from an associate (note b) 3,816 5,542
BRFHE QT BaEe) Loans to an associate (note c¢) - =
FEI B E AR BRER (BaEb) Amounts due to associates (note b) 2,323 20
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16. REFERXF D @ 16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
@) FR2023%F 20228 12531 HRVH = 4 (@) Particulars of associates as at 31 December
FIFFIEUT - 2023 and 2022 are as follows:
MR e e
YNGIEZY A R EEEatt FEER
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ interest held
Name of company operations indirectly Principal activities
RREERTHEBEER AR (TEGLEEE) 3 38% MEEIRMHARIKTE
EGL Tours Korea Co., Ltd. (“EGL Korea”) Korea Provision of inbound

package tours in Korea

I G HEGLH AR (TEGLA4B)) =F:N 38% R HAPEBRMARIKTE

Kabushiki Kaisha EGL Okinawa* (‘EGL Okinawa”)  Japan Provision of inbound
package tours in
Okinawa, Japan

gt BEE (THBZE)) SPN 41% R BEXREHEMIRTE
Niti Niti Travel Co., Ltd. (“Niti Niti Travel”) Japan Provision of local package
tours in Japan

HEmE (B8 BRAR (THE) 55 40% REEBHER®
Nissay Shoji (HK) Company Limited (“Nissay”) Hong Kong Sale of merchandises in
Hong Kong
* RS FBE B * Chinese name for identification purpose only
2 B ATBEMRFE & English name for identification purpose only
(b) JEUY - TET B E L\ 5] 8RN A5 2 HEFE (b) Amount(s) due from/to an associate/associates
FERZERERER is/are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.
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16. NEZE A TEIH#ER @

©

RAFE AEEBDHE AT B EREH
800,000 T U AR HEEE BT W= A5
NERAEIGE 2B BRITEEREMN
EEME2%TE BREKEE RIEE
BEFG K5tk (HP ) BEER ]
T REERETRERN WHEA) & KE
[® 58 % 3 £ 0] SEUR Bl R BB FIE > EIE > 1Y
2023%F > ERLEE R EIEE R EEE800,000

16.

TH ANNIVERSARY
OF LISTING

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continuead)

()

During the year, the Group lent HK$800,000 to the
associate, Nissay, for its operation. The loans to the
associate were unsecured, interest-bearing of HIBOR
plus 2% per annum, repayable on demand. Based on
the management assessment, taking into account,
among others, historical information, current conditions
and forecast of future development and market
conditions, as appropriate, the Group had considered

TSR ET IR A o it would be unlikely to recover the outstanding
amount and, accordingly, a loss allowance of the
entire outstanding loan amount of HK$800,000 was
recognised during the year 2023.

EMTFHMEQRTDZEREFNESH B R Movement in the loss allowance in respect of loan to an

wmr associate is as follows:

2023 2022

FHET TET

HK$’000 HK$’000

R1B1H At 1 January - =
FAEH Net loss allowance recognised

BB ZEH R 5 during the year 800 =

128318 At 31 December 800 -
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16. NEEAT#ERE @ 16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
(@) FIZEEMEIL (BAH=E\5]) (d) Summarised financial information (material
associates)
2023 2022
FAET FET
EGLEZE EGL Korea HK$’000 HK$’000
12H31H As at 31 December
RENEE Current assets 33,043 21,203
ERBEE Non-current assets 649 770
mEEE Current liabilities (5,566) (837)
BETRE Net assets 28,126 21,136
REBEGEEEFE Group share of net assets 10,688 8,032
BE12B31HILLEE Year ended 31 December
e Revenues 35,712 1,844
FEHM,/ (Ei8) Profit/(loss) for the year 6,990 (567)
Hihemham Other comprehensive income = (2,315)
SEWmAEEE Total comprehensive income 6,990 (2,882)
© HIEEREI (TEAHS L E]) (e) Summarised financial information (immaterial
associates)
2023 2022
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
HE12H31HILLEE Year ended 31 December
FE (F5i8) /%7 (Loss)/profit for the year (1,892) 120
Hh& EU Other comprehensive income 2 (33)
2 ENEAELE Total comprehensive income (1,894) 87
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16. NEZE A TEIH#ER @

) FTEBSRILEIHBGETHEATN (®
BE AERBLZERERTZFER
Rtz (MBEREAMEADAMERK
BT :

16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The Group has discontinued recognition of its
share of loss of certain associates. The amounts of
unrecognised share of those associates, extracted from
the relevant management accounts of associates, both
for the year and cumulatively, are as follows:

2023 2022
TFAT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
FRNREDELEEABEIE  Unrecognised share of losses of

associates for the year (299) -

RIBEEE R R EREMNL Accumulated unrecognised share of
B &N B R5 18 losses of associates in prior years (540) (540)
(839) (540)

17. BERIEBEE

REFERBEEEEENBEE 2 EIRE

17. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Details of the deferred tax assets recognised and movements

EEBWT ¢ during the current and prior year are as follows:
Y3 A8
& & i@
Rt Hith (Hi52) et
Tax losses
Property, carried
plant and forward
equipment Other (note) Total
FHT THET FHET FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
120231818 At 1 January 2023 29,326 95 73,081 102,502
RAFEEB RN (H7229) Charge to profit or loss
for the year (note 9)
—EERERERFEESR - Origination and reversal of
temporary differences 2,187 1,362 (19,362) (15,813)
RARFEER TG Charge to equity for the year - 351 - 351
BE 2 5L Translation adjustment (2,147) 10 (1,979) (4,116)
2023F12H31H At 31 December 2023 29,366 1,818 51,740 82,924
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17. IEERIBEE @&

17. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (Continuea)

ES MIaE1E
T & e
B Hith (Hi:z) W5t
Tax losses
Property, carried
plant and forward
equipment Other (note) Total
FET FAET FAT TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1202251818 At 1 January 2022 27,796 56 64,848 92,700
RAREEERTA W#E£9) Credit to profit or loss
for the year (note 9)
—EEREREREER — Origination and reversal of
temporary differences 5,098 288 11,340 16,726
STAFERER Credit to equity for the year = (240) = (240)
bR Translation adjustment (3,568) ) (3,107) (6,684)
120225128311 At 31 December 2022 29,326 95 73,081 102,502
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17. IRERIBEE @ 17. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (Continued)

DU s #5345 75 B 2 IEIEFR IRASBR AT

The following is the analysis of deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

2023 2022

FHET FAET

HK$’000 HK$’000

RIEIRIEE E Deferred tax assets 82,924 102,502
BiaE - Note:

RAEABEHR 2EEREEEEREFEN
172,272,000 75 (20224 : 277,237,000 7T) » B] &R
HAREIREEEBEN AT NRKERREHN A&
B 78 A R R E AR AR TE B 481498,949,00078 75 ( 20224F
5,689,000 T) N EEANEIE - FRBRPEERIBRE
$84916,793,0007 7T (20224F : 14,596,000 70) # 1t
= ERIAURRBEAEERIBEEEL1,936,0008
76 (20224 © 95,129,00078 70) # i +E AN EIHE > 7K
SRR IERI A c N EBNBAE VREFIMB AT
EEAWBABEE ZRIEGBPRRZEEREE
E D B143162,262,00058 75 ( 20224 : 273,892,000/
7T) ~ #91,329,00038 75 (20224F : 1,329,00038 7T) MU K%
#975,258,000% 75 (20224 : 83,526,000 7T) © #his T
Z2HRWEE (BFEEE VR -FEREEAEMHEA
BEEZRIEEE) M= ARZEARARARERER
O] BE EE A FE SR A A LUR SH AR TE 5 48 » # oR F IR
RIRIERIBE E ©

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has tax losses
arising in Hong Kong of approximately HK$172,272,000 (2022:
HK$277,237,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
The Group also had tax losses arising in the PRC of approximately
HK$3,949,000 (2022: HK$5,689,000) that will expire in five years,
tax losses arising in Macau of approximately HK$16,793,000 (2022:
HK$14,596,000) that will expire in three years and tax losses arising
in Japan of approximately HK$91,936,000 (2022: HK$95,129,000)
that will expire in ten years for offsetting against future taxable
profits, respectively. Deferred tax assets have been recognised for
tax losses arising from a subsidiary in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$162,262,000 (2022: HK$273,892,000), from a subsidiary in
Macau of approximately HK$1,329,000 (2022: HK$1,329,000) and
from subsidiaries in Japan of approximately HK$75,258,000 (2022:
HK$83,526,000). Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of the remaining tax losses, including the tax losses arising
from the other subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Macau, PRC and Japan,
as it is not probable that taxable profits will be available against
which the tax losses can be utilised in the foreseeable future.
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18.

19.

=z58 18. INVENTORIES

2023 2022
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
AR EEE R & Merchandise for sale 1,313 1,733

B 5 EULER 19. TRADE RECEIVABLES
2023 2022
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
B2 AR Trade receivables 10,570 6,766
B B Less: loss allowance (335) -
EREFEE Net carrying amount 10,235 6,766

REBEEZERAANGBEERER RRSHER &
EEBZRUIR CGNRERERS) NIRE DU

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables (net of
loss allowance) as at the end of the reporting period, based

B on invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:
2023 2022
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
0 - 90k 0 - 90 days 9,284 6,661
91 - 180k 91 — 180 days 4 104
181 - 365k 181 — 365 days 947 -
B3B365K Over 365 days - 1
10,235 6,766
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FEEGGATEZELPEERNER BES
10REOR - RFEIH B RINFREIEERF » A&
BB 5 U AR FNFRE R ZER) HIRE DI ¢
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group has a policy of granting trade customers with
credit terms of generally 10 days to 90 days. The ageing
analysis of the Group’s trade receivables (net of loss
allowance), based on due date and net of loss allowance, is
as follows:

2023 2022

FHET FAET

HK$’000 HK$’000

5] >k 280 HA Not yet past due 9,675 4,625

BA =18 H AR
BARBE =EA BN

Past due within three months 557 2,037
Past due more than three months but

~MEA U within six months 3 103

A EARE A 7B B E R Past due more than six months but
—FEMUR within one year - 1
10,235 6,766

—RME > AEBL A FREBF A ERER
g HAM(E A ReE

rEREBREBMBREERBSRBLERE
HESRBURERAFRARREEBIEEER
StERHEEERE AEHAERRPEESE
BEZBUCRBEBEEMUNEER B KRREETD
48 o

BHREEXRDRESEBRBARIN=ZFANE
ELEEERTHFESH BREERFELER
ERNZBEERRNER KA EE R E
CHEBEXETHE - AEERBEREEBERE
EERXEEATEREFMERRNEER
BICERZR -

In general, the Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over these balances.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring ECLs using a lifetime ECL provision for trade
receivables. To measure ECLs on a collective basis, trade
receivables are grouped based on similar credit risk and
ageing.

The expected loss rates are based on the Group’s historical
credit losses experienced over the 3 year period prior to the
period end. The historical loss rates are then adjusted for
current and forward-looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the Group’s customers. The Group has
identified the gross domestic product (GDP) and inflation rate
as the key macroeconomic factors in the countries where the
Group operates.
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19. B EIER @

TXEIFEREZRBRERRERERZE

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continuea)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk

ERMER exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using a provision
matrix:
12023F12H31H As at 31 December 2023
bkt
Past due
DIA30K 31KE60K 61KEIOR  HEBIOK st
Lessthan 31 daysto 61 days to Over
30 days 60 days 90 days 90 days Total
HHEERER ECL rate 2.8% 32.9% 55.6% 80.0% 3.2%
REREE (FAT) Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 10,461 76 18 15 10,570
BHEEHE (FET) ECLs (HK$'000) 288 25 10 12 335

BZREIRGEREHBNESERNT

Movement in the loss allowance in respect of trade
receivables is as follows:

2023 2022

THET FHET

HK$’000 HK$’000

R1B1H At 1 January = =
FAREH Net loss allowance recognised

BIRZEH R during the year 335 =

©12831H At 31 December 335 -

R2022F 128310 A AR ERDBANEZIE
RS FBIFH TR EEFET AE KA

172 S=FEEZERAERAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

As at 31 December 2022, the directors of the Company
consider ECLs against the gross amounts of trade
receivables are immaterial.



| W

TH ANNIVERSARY
OF LISTING

[ |
GE MR
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B E2023F12831H LEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

20. :T& FEA IR EH M EUWER 20. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES

2023 2022
FHET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000

ERTEE Non-current assets
HE= Deposits 1,301 1,679
SEENE Prepayments 534 349
1,835 2,028

MEEE Current assets

HhFE UL ER Other receivables 11,923 8,560
1% (M1at) Deposits (note) 5,331 5,148
SELNEN Prepayments 57,996 60,802
75,250 74,510

e REMERREFEASAHEETT EREER
HE=0 deposits and deposits with suppliers.

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental

Wiz ZeBEEINTF—KEAEQASABTHNHEE
51 491,803,000/ 75 (20224 : 1,455,000/
T0) o #i] & AEIRTE 2B KR AR I E M
BiR o and repayable at the end of the rental periods.

Note: The amount included rental deposits paid to a related
company, Great Port, of approximately HK$1,803,000 (2022:
HK$1,455,000). The amount due is unsecured, interest-free

FiE] R EMBEWERT S  BRZER B 1R
EEIAT_EARMEESE BRAERT
HEEERARESREEM -EREFERKRE
PNnEBUREERER MUK G RBESR
EEF ARBEFEZRELENER -5
HFNMBRR XZHFEETENRKRAR
W& @I E B IR TRR B E R B3R IR (W48
) UEERSFEEEHERIGHBENEE
BB R U B EE ORISR

For deposits and other receivables, loss allowance is
recognised as 12-month ECL since initial recognition and
subsequently the Group assesses whether there was a
significant increase in credit risk. When determining whether
the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating the ECL, the directors of
the Company have taken into account the historical default
experience, the financial position of the counterparties, the
future prospects of the industries in which the counter-
parties operate as well as various external sources of
actual and forecast economic information, as appropriate,
in estimating the probability of default occurring within their
respective loss assessment time horizon, as well as the loss
upon default.
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20. ;] -FEIR R HMMEUER & 20. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continuea)

REE R EMEUWER D884 AT & EREEL Other receivables are categorised into the following stages
by the Group:

122023%F12831H As at 31 December 2023
+Z@R
HEREESE ERNTFEHEEEBE
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs

F—RE BT B st

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

TET THAT TAT FET

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

HAE AR AR %R Other receivables, gross 11,954 184 714 12,852
B EMERRZ Less: loss allowance on

B EEE other receivables (394) (6) (529) (929)
H e R 328 Other receivables, net 11,560 178 185 11,923
BHEEHREX ECL rate 3.3% 3.3% 74.1%
HtEWEREGEEENEIHE RN Movement in the loss allowance in respect of other

receivables is as follows:

2023 2022

TFHET TET

HK$’000 HK$’000

R1B1H At 1 January = -
FRFEBNEE Net loss allowance recognised

ZEHREE during the year 929 =

K128318 At 31 December 929 -

Ro022F 128318 N AGIEER AT EHME As at 31 December 2022, the directors of the Company

WER MBS RBEHNTEHESFEBT AE K consider ECLs against the gross amounts of other

receivables are immaterial.
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IR T EIUEERITESREFIR  21. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AT
= BANKS AND ON HAND

2023 2022

FHET TET

HK$’000 HK$’000

RITIEN Cash at banks 219,525 203,567

EFREE Cash on hand 10,655 8,868

230,180 212,435

L IERIRITER Less: Pledged bank deposits (10,240) (8,135)

REMBERRETZ Cash at banks and on hand per
RITEANREEFERE consolidated statement of financial position 219,940 204,300

FAEENRERBEEEYEEENRSBRT
ERF R Z ST Rt BRIRTERMIRET
MGZH X BN HIRITER > 12023%F128
318 HEFZENF0.25%%E5.1% (20224 :
0.01%ZE2.75%) * REIHBEAR A =@ A AR o

R2023F12831H » A& B E TRITHFERA
10,240,000 75 (20224 : 8,135,000/ 7T) 11
M[IRTT FEFARARKREAERNETE=ZF Y
BIERE B IEIRY) A E B IRITERBIER

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents comprise bank
deposits carrying interests at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates and short-term bank deposits carrying
interests at prevailing market interest rates ranging from
0.25% to 5.1% (2022: 0.01% to 2.75%) per annum as at 31
December 2023, with an original maturity of three months or
less.

As at 31 December 2023, certain bank deposits of the
Group amounting to approximately HK$10,240,000 (2022:
HK$8,135,000) were pledged to banks as securities mainly
for letters of guarantee issued to certain third parties on
behalf of the Group and as securities for bank borrowings of
the Group.
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22. %%FE{T_I'EE 22. TRADE PAYABLES
BoEMERNEEHREENEHEMEMND The credit terms of trade payables vary according to the
BRMAR > BEA1KEI0K - BIERENE terms agreed with different suppliers, which normally range
mES EEEEETHH—) » RiIkREHER from 1 day to 30 days. Based on the receipts of services and
RER B ZEMRNRE I T : goods, which normally coincided with the invoice dates, the

ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables as at the end
of the reporting period is as follows:
2023 2022
TETT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
0 - 90k 0 - 90 days 36,096 13,669
91 - 180k 91 — 180 days 1,071 199
181 - 365k 181 — 365 days 247 673
BiB365K Over 365 days 126 1,041
37,540 15,582
23. ﬁE%ﬁT—"A’IE&ﬁTﬂﬁEﬁ'EE 23. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES
2023 2022
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
(#ZEZ)
(restateq)
O] Accrued expenses 21,185 21,322
HEMERER Other payables 34,022 20,914
55,207 42,236
176 =H=FEZERARAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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24. 5486 24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES
2023 2022
FAT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
EHEEEER ! Contract liabilities arising from:
iR 45 A8 B 2 75 Travel Related Business
—IR{TE~-BHTEMR — Sales of package tours, FIT Products
RITHEAEREES and travel related products 127,353 100,537
— R EHRITIN S — Unexpired discount vouchers - 341
BIEFETS Hotel Business 553 9
P o iE & TS Sale of Merchandises Business 81 =
127,987 100,887

HENBRTEBNTEZ —RZMERUT

(@) IEIERIERS

()

T BT RIS
SHBEANREE S RERBRN
ERRERMABBES S KN
BERZEMR

AEEBIR —FRUARTE R
REBRBUBTZFEHNERZHT

&%

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of

contract liabilities are as follows:

(a) Travel Related Business

(0

Sales of package tours, FIT Products and
travel related products

Contract liabilities represent advance payments
received from customers for services that have
not yet been performed to the customers or the
control of the products have not been transferred
to the customers.

The Group expects to deliver the goods or

services to satisfy the remaining obligations of
these contract liabilities within one year or less.
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24, 9B EE

@ IEIERIZETS (B
(i) KEEIHHIZ
FEBRBETERREHIRERRES
s - AERETUILEERINAREK
w4 B8 B R IMIRTT B SR IT AR R E fm
ZEREN WRENZEHNEFH
HABUEBRZHEIESEGNER-
BHNEERERRAZRASERIR
F5 Ry 20 H 2 AR BT S8 2 Ul ©

§R20235F12H31H > Al = HE KR EIHA
MINSHEBZB TERAEZTENR S
BIRAAZE AT (20224 : 341,000
70) C EEHREAEER A FEEECH
TN ATl o B E2023F12 431
H-> BB EENG41,4008 T H
5 B AW B EIRHAE
SN0 o

b) BIEEF

GHEERERBE P REES RS
WERE R Z AR e

AEEBRAR —FRUANREERBUBIT
ZEGNEBRZG T &R

178 SR AERAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continuea)

@

(®)

Travel Related Business (Continued)
(i) Unexpired discount vouchers

The Group provides discount vouchers to certain
customers for Travel Related Business. The
Group determines this offer represents a material
right to purchase additional package tours or
travel related products in the future two years
and recognised as a contract liability based on
the relative stand-alone price of the performance
obligations in the contract. The contract liability
recognises as revenue when the customer
redeems it for goods or services or when it
expires.

As at 31 December 2023, the aggregate
amount of the transaction price allocated to the
remaining performance obligation in connection
to the unexpired discount vouchers is nil
(2022: HK$341,000) mainly because the Group
abolished the discount vouchers scheme during
this year. HK$341,400 of expired or void discount
vouchers has recognised as revenue and no
additional discount vouchers were offered up to
31 December 2023.

Hotel Business

Contract liabilities represent advance payments
received from customers for hotel services that have
not yet been rendered to the customers.

The Group expects to deliver the services to satisfy the
remaining obligations of these contract liabilities within
one year or less.
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25,
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24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continuead)

TRV EHNEBE 2SS . The table below details movements in contract liabilities:
2023 2022
FAET TFET
HK$’000 HK$’000
M1B1H At 1 January 100,887 12,161
REBAAEEWT GTAEL Decrease in contract liabilities as
S5R8EE Malaastr a result of recognising revenue
b during the year that was included in
the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year (85,898) (8,129)
AXRFEEEHNBEMESHK Decrease in contract liabilities as
a8/ a result of contract modification
in the current year (13,149) (8,427)
A IREAERE =TS BEFEH R Increase in contract liabilities as
7 fn il & EBTARWR (REER a result of billing in advance of
REEEHEIAWRZER) M Travel Related Business, Hotel
ERENEEZIEN Business and Sale of Merchandises
Business excluding those recognised
as revenue in the current year 126,147 95,282
12H31H At 31 December 127,987 100,887
RITE™ 25. BANK BORROWINGS
2023 2022
FHET TFET
HK$’000 HK$’000
Vi) Current
IRITER BIKHE Bank borrowings, secured 31,108 213,601
JETRED Non-current
IRITER BIKHE Bank borrowings, secured 281,901 151,765
313,009 365,366
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25. RITIBETFR @ 25. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

20235125311 » 49313,009,0005 7T (2022
F 1 365,366,000 75) BUERTT &R TH 72 Bl LAABBR
HE{B#397,464,0007& 7t (20224 : 430,667,000
B7t) (MsE14) K 491,909,000 7T (20224 :
4,359,000/ 0) (MisE21) MUE T BE K&
HERIERRITERIEIRIR o Lhoh > ZFRITER
B rh#92,787,0007% 75 ( 20224 : 3,070,0007& 7T)
NH—REHAMBARN — BRI IEERKRREZ
MIZEEIRR o

D AEBHNMERGZELBBRRZRR &
> AEBERRE TEEM B RERIZHE ;R
202212831 H  "NEBE W KR EBITHIBITEI L
& 4P AR TE B949203,808,0008 Tt R EEE
TR M R RILEZHERT RITHEE
BRIEBEENERNEFINEEREENERE
BB o REEALRRIN2022F12831H 2% A &
B & o Je A8 I #E5910,000,00058 TR BB E
REEBEENREE2023F12831HIEFEREH

yoo

Eig o

R2023F 1128 REBERITHREET R
BEEREEE49193,808,000/8 TR RHEEK o
BiBE2023F 1 B12HEDSEAEREEE IR
2023F 12310 AEEMEE K ERWEM

A E S

180 E=FE#ZERAERAS EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

As at 31 December 2023, the bank borrowings of
approximately HK$313,009,000 (2022: HK$365,366,000)
were secured by charges over certain property, plant and
equipment and pledged bank deposits with aggregate
carrying amounts of approximately HK$397,464,000
(2022: HK$430,667,000) (note 14) and approximately
HK$1,909,000 (2022: HK$4,359,000) (note 21) respectively.
In addition, among these bank borrowings, an amount of
approximately HK$2,787,000 (2022: HK$3,070,000) was
also secured by a property of a former non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary in Japan.

Some of the Group’s facilities letters are subjected to
covenant clauses, whereby the Group is required to meet
certain key financial ratios and covenants. The Group
did not fulfill the financial covenants as required in the
contracts with the banks for the outstanding loan amounts
of approximately HK$203,808,000 as at 31 December 2022.
Due to this breach of the covenant clause, the banks are
contractually entitled to request for immediate repayment
of the outstanding loan amounts. The outstanding balances
were presented as current liabilities as at 31 December
2022. Outstanding loan amounts of HK$10,000,000, which
breached the covenants before, had been fully repaid during
the year ended 31 December 2023.

On 12 January 2023, the Group obtained a waiver of
compliance with the covenant requirement from the
bank for the outstanding loan amounts of approximately
HK$193,808,000. The loans were classified as non-current
liabilities from 12 January 2023 onward. The Group did not
breach any covenant clause for this loan as at 31 December
2023.
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25. IR1TEMR @ 25. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)
IRITEZNBIEANEE OMREEENEEE The bank borrowings are initially measured at fair value,
(AR s8> HEMA SRR E1G# il A net of directly attributable costs incurred and subsequently
FrEe measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
RITEIHBRAERENXR0.79%E1.67% The bank borrowings are subsequently measured at
(20224F : 0.79%E1.67%) IR EH AT & o amortised cost using effective interest rate of 0.79% to
1.67% (2022: 0.79% to 1.67%) per annum.
REREHR WITEREER TR EER At the end of each reporting period, total bank borrowings
TNHER{EIR - were scheduled to repay as follows:
2023 2022
FAT FET
DUT HaE) - Analysed into (note): HK$’000 HK$’'000
—FERHRER Within one year or on demand 31,108 213,601
—FE EERBEMRE Over one year, but within two years 28,368 6,738
MEM EERBIE A F Over two years, but within five years 134,349 20,301
AEME Over five years 119,184 124,726
313,009 365,366
Kzt . BRERRPIESE LR E R &S TE Note: The amounts due shown in the repayment schedule are
T2 HEAYm o based on the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements.
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25. RITIE @

R2023FE 12831 HRIERTT

ERRBEERBINT

25.

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

Details of the bank borrowings as at 31 December 2023 are

stated below:

b GilES B
Principal Interest Repayment
amount rate terms
TER
HK$’000

L HEFENER Loan denominated in Japanese Yen (“JPY’) 169,184 EFEA={ERH 7= i
RRBIAERES BE

M EFFI%1.0%
3-month Tokyo Payable within
Interbank 12 years

Offered Rate

+1.0% per annum
DHEHENER Loan denominated in JPY 2,787 EEEH = BRRER
1.5% BE
Fixed rate Payable within
1.5% per annum 5 years
L AEFENER Loan denominated in JPY 141,038 FHERH=@ERHE  BERZ+1ER
RRBIAERES BE

L FF1%0.5%
3-month Tokyo Payable within
Interbank 26 years

Offered Rate

+ 0.5% per annum
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25. sRITE & 25. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

Ro022E 12831 HRITE R IEHHN T : Details of the bank borrowings as at 31 December 2022 are
stated below:

N GRS ERHR
Principal amount Interest rate Repayment terms

FTET

HK$'000
WBHEHENER Loan denominated in JPY 193,808 FHXB=TEAH AR+ ZER
RRBIAERS BE

M EERIZ1.0%

3-month Tokyo Payable within
[nterbank 12 years

Offered Rate
+1.0% per annum

MHEFENER Loan denominated in JPY 3,070 Bl TE 7= BREER
1.2% B
Fixed rate Payable within
1.2% per annum 5 years
LAEFENER Loan denominated in JPY 158,488 FRIEA=ERH AR HNER
BREFTAZERE B8
I _EEFZ0.5%
3-month Tokyo Payable within
Interbank 26 years

Offered Rate
+0.5% per annum

WA ENER Loan denominated in HK$ 10,000 FFREA—ELH BR=1+XA
BARTRAERS B8
M EERZ1.5%
1-month HIBOR Payable within
+ 1.5% per annum 30 days
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26.

27.

28.

184

41

R2023%F /2022128318 st HANHEEY
£ BEMAMERNEE DIRBAES RN
MBERFEEZHEM=EHREERANG
ST o = B AT 1B B 5T H AR HA 45 SR B
EENRAER-

TTEEMTIA

R2023F12831H » A& B K H A& R F]
ERBSHERFZHMERTEANEEM
FENIHEBEEMN BB R (20224F :
115,762,00058 7T (491,962,400,0008 [B]) ) © %=
HABER2019F1B48 £ [Em B HEA20234F
12H31H -

R2022F 12831 H » &~ & B 8 & A X 2 7
EHNABEINIREREEBTE MAREE
1,154,000 70 TE & E H IR R JE

26.

27.

PROVISION

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, there was a provision
for reinstatement cost of a leasehold property in Japan,
which relates to the estimated cost of restoring the leasehold
property to its original state at the end of the lease term
in accordance with the lease terms. The main uncertainty
relates to estimating the cost that will be incurred at the end
of the lease term.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As at 31 December 2023, the floating-to-fixed interest rate
swap held by the Group in Japan to reduce the impact
of interest rate fluctuation on the secured floating-rate
bank borrowings was matured (2022: HK$115,762,000
(approximately JPY1,962,400,000)). The swap started on 4
January 2019 with a maturity date on 31 December 2023.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group recognised such
interest rate swap contract as an effective cash flow hedge
with fair value HK$1,154,000 on the asset side deferred in
equity.

g2 28. SHARE CAPITAL
£ =] EXE
Number Amount
T FET
000 HK$’000
ETE Authorised
IR EEO. 18772 ZiEhE Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
1220221818 ~ 20224 K& At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022
2023%F12H31H and 2023 1,000,000 100,000

RiRBEERBRAT EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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28. IR% @) 28. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
2B £ %8
Number Amount
T8 TET
‘000 HK$’000
BRTABEZEERK Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid
2022181 H ~ 20224 & At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022
2023%F12831H and 2023 502,450 50,245

29.

f#ta

FrEBREBE  FBHNGSETEIHRA -
EmANREEEERBENOT

R =
KEBKRMD EBIRIEEAATETRMDAERIE
BERABEEITRMOEEZZ D o

=4
FEESHRFEFERNBARD ZREMFEL
EENBARNERITRAMEZBHNELR

BARA

EXRRAETERRATSH) R ERE AT UE
NEBFRZENEEMESHNm  BRAFE
5 2 BRI 5E35(0) °

29. RESERVES

Details of the movements in the Group’s reserves are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
The natures and purposes of reserves within equity are as
follows:

Share premium

The share premium account of the Group represents the
excess of the proceeds received over the nominal value of
the Company’s shares issued.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the investment costs in subsidiaries and the
nominal value of the issued share capital of the Group’s
subsidiaries.

Capital Contribution

Capital contribution represented benefits received by the
Group arising from the differences between market interest
rates and preferential interest rates charged by a related
company. Please refer to note 35(b) for detail.
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29. {#%E @ 29. RESERVES (Continued)

SME

AEBIINERBREREBIINEFTRBEAT
R/ERBEINEBHERER-

P
Hi#EEOERERZAOVIFFRIRSREE
PRER-ANE 5T IER » IS FESDFT R IR S R ER AN
RERENPNE A TEAANBERFE
BB D o

SEE R
FEENEERBHERMEMA LN —KE
PRAY B A B R IRTT4E CRFY) AR AT L

TR P (R R ) 37715 B AS AR LS
Los%INBImAIERA L EHE  BEEMEZIZ
NEIIE AE50% M K T 0 jR20234F 20225128
318 AEHEBEZINEB AT RAS50% 2%
EEERTEED K

RIEFEARE  RRERITH R BRAE

(RAEEFMRZZHBAR) BRFEEER
BIFF (IR HBEFERER) BHI10%EEE
HET BACHRETHRBEINERBIEMELRN
50%FF B A B IE R BEHE— T BE A EH
e ARIRHEBEFEERIB TS M MED -
AM ZELAERBENERETHRARRER
E BTN EME AR50%KF o i E2023F K
2022F 12831 HIEFE » RRAERITHE CRID B
[RABIBE AL HF o
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Foreign exchange reserve

Foreign exchange reserve of the Group represents the
exchange differences on translation of the foreign operations
and associates into presentation currency of the Company.

Hedging reserve

Hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the
cumulative net change in the fair value of hedging instruments
used in cash flow hedges pending subsequent recognition
of the hedged cash flow in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for cash flow hedges in note 4(f)(vi).

Statutory reserve

Statutory reserve of the Group is contributed by EGL Tours
(Macau) Company Limited, a subsidiary incorporated in
Macau and limited by quotas.

Under the Macau Commercial Code Article 377, a subsidiary
is required to set aside a minimum of 25% of profit after
taxation to the statutory reserve until the balance of the
reserve reaches a level equivalent to 50% of the company’s
share capital. As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the
statutory reserve has reached 50% of the subsidiary’s share
capital. Statutory reserve is not distributable.

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, EGL Tours
(Shenzhen) Company Limited, a subsidiary incorporated
in the PRC, is required to appropriate 10% of the annual
statutory net profit after taxation (after offsetting any prior
years’ losses) to the statutory reserve fund. When the
balance of the statutory reserve fund reaches 50% of
the entity’s registered capital, any further appropriation is
optional. The statutory reserve fund can be utilised to offset
prior years’ losses or to increase the registered capital.
However, such balance of the statutory reserve fund must
be maintained at a minimum of 50% of the registered capital
after such usages. For the year ended 31 December 2023
and 2022, there was no profit generated by EGL Tours
(Shenzhen) Company Limited.
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30.

Rt R

RNB R IBRG RSB (T5HE) 522014411
B13HEREH#HE o

STEIBTAIT -

E2014F11 8288 &  stBHNERBEATE R
Bt EE2HNEELTAEERSHAET
BEEFHRBEABDRGNELN REETE
RUTRSE : () Z2BERMPFHERE>
B HAEKZARRARORSEE; (i) 4
REIRMRBERFRERE 2 ELNH B A E
EEREBIFERERARONTFHEHRHEER (i)
ROEE REBREZBNINRENEEHE
i ANEIANEEZ

ERENERERBRES I[N BNE2014
F11H28HES +F) 2B LA ETE-E
RUEBRENTEHERESEELNIFHE
MR AR ARIES B PR BEERE
R B MESTEZHRE TRIBFK IEZIR
MR o

RS 8118 TR AR EITER A ERITEN
EREERALERFRETMEMEBERES
BT AEREMNBREMBFETHRMDERR
EACBEREEREERERCETREMRR
KATEETRMDMI0% (MEF T RIBIEA SR
BT ERIBS) » BP50,000,0008% ©

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) adopted by the
Company was approved by the shareholders on 13
November 2014.

A summary of the Scheme is set out below:

The Scheme became effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on 28 November 2014. Under the Scheme, the
directors shall, in its absolute discretion select and make an
offer to any eligible participants to subscribe for shares of
the Company at a subscription price being not less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the
date of the offer of grant; (i) the average closing prices of the
shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange'’s
daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the offer of grant and (jii) the nominal
value of the share. The offer of a grant of options may be
accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer.

The options granted shall be exercisable in whole or in
part in the effective option period (i.e. 10 years from the
commencing date on 28 November 2014). The exercise
period of the options granted is determined and notified by
the directors to the grantee thereof at the time of making an
offer provided that such period shall not exceed the period
of 10 years from the date of the grant of the option is made,
subject to the provisions for early termination thereof.

The maximum number of shares to be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted at any time under
this Scheme together with options which may be granted
under any other share option schemes for the time being
of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue immediately following the
completion of the global offering and the capitalisation issue
(but taking no account of any shares issued upon over-
allotment), being 50 million shares.
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30.

31.

BBRGERE

AEERBEFEEMERBTERETABER
1 0 JR20234F 120224128318 » fEE A iR 15

BAFUBERKREBHUERRAG ERERIREF] -

BRINETE

FEFEERREBRFMELATE ((RER)) 5t
21EE BT E B B2000F 1281 B ER Z %%
AREAERA2EAB—REBZERTEAE
BrRRTE REHGERESMHN - RiFA
BestE BEXRHEEEREERMARZS%
EEBAZEHR (RRRESERABERAAERK
) - 5 BARMAR LR#30,0008 7T c iR 5
ENHMAKR T REFMA -BESHEAAR
E MR BRIV IE -

REBREEZ BN EETAREESRE
AITEFNBRETEDLEERMA - RPEKR BB
FE HAGRRETE

REEE AEBSZHRBEHIBEY
4,912,0005 75 (20224F : 2,307,000/ 7T) ° A4
FE M4 8 WA R AT (R 84 IR A (3K o
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

31.

No share options were granted under the Scheme during
the current and prior years. As at 31 December 2023 and
2022, there were no outstanding options granted under the
Scheme. Share options do not confer rights to the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
regulated by the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”)
Schemes Authority in Hong Kong, with effect from 1
December 2000, the Group participates in the MPF
Scheme operated by an approved trustee in Hong Kong
and makes contributions for its eligible employees. Under
the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap
of monthly relevant income. The cap of monthly relevant
income is HK$30,000. Contributions to the MPF Scheme
vest immediately. MPF Scheme has attributes of a defined
contribution plan.

In addition to the MPF Scheme in Hong Kong, the Group
is also required to contribute a certain percentage of
employees’ monthly basic salaries to the defined contribution
retirement schemes in Macau, the PRC and Japan.

During the year, the aggregate amounts of employer’s
contributions made by the Group were approximately
HK$4,912,000 (2022: HK$2,307,000). No forfeited
contribution was available for offset against existing
contributions during the year.
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31.

RIKETE @

FE #E G2 FF B R B 2 2K )R

RSB EFFE7TZ(REERG)  RiEEEES
HWZRBRADHRSENRERE TAIER Tl EE
AR &

e (EEN65mI LRTE
e  [EERIFHMET ;
s EERBERENE

o EEHRIERSOHMAKESTN

s RBEWFEAMEWNERELEITHMMHE
(=R

ERRBERAND2ERERE —BERANGE

(EPR%&22,500%E ) MIRBFHEET -S4 E
B EENRARE &M _ERA390,0007%
o REERIERBEE A ZESMFEHMAE
MHERFEENRE#E A BRIEHERHRD
=@l

122022668 >  2022F BB R INET EVE R (HE
iHZe ) (BED) 1R AB) (MERTIRAL) 987 - 1E5T
RBVBCH £ BB E BB M RREHROREE
m¥PRARBEHNZ I (BUERZHE) - HE >
EARARFERNEMBUSZ R I2025F581H
(BEER)) £38-
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES (Continued)

Defined benefit scheme characteristics and funding

Under Employment Ordinance, Cap.57, an employee who
has been employed under a continuous contract for not less
than 5 years of service is eligible for long service payments
(“LSP”) under the following circumstances:

o The employee resigns at age of 65 or above;
° The employee dies during employment;
° The employee resigns on ground of ill health;

o The fixed term employment contract expires without
being renewed;

o The employee is dismissed which is not because of
redundancy or serious misconduct.

The LSP benefit is determined with reference to the
employee’s last full month’s salary (capped at HK$22,500)
and number of years of service. The LSP benefit is capped
at HK$390,000 for each eligible employee. The accrued
benefits derived from the Group’s mandatory contributions
under the MPF scheme in respect of that employee can be
used to offset the LSP benefit.

In June 2022, Employment and Retirement Schemes
Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance
2022 (“the Amendment Ordinance”) was enacted.
The Amendment Ordinance abolishes the use of the
accrued benefits derived from employers’ mandatory MPF
contributions to offset LSP (“the Abolition”). Subsequently,
the Government of HKSAR announced that the Abolition will
take effect on 1 May 2025 (“the Transition Date”).
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BRINSHE @
=

FREEF 5 BRI R R B2 AR ()

UTEZEEFHBRBEEARER

- EXrRtMEREHRAEEZRE S
A BAREHEBEARREBHBZRHR
B o

— BEMZERPARTGEAUAERZBEBNRE
—ERz#HEE MIFUARLEZEABR
ZREBE—ERZHENE-

RUBRBEEE BB HERRBEE - RAR
BHEMHOREFBERM () ©

RAGIRE £
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31.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES (Continued)

Defined benefit scheme characteristics and funding
(Continued)

The following key changes will take effect since the Transition
Date:

= Accrued benefits derived from employers’ mandatory
MPF contributions cannot be used to offset the LSP in
respect of the employment period after the Transition
Date.

- The pre-transition LSP is calculated using the last
month’s salary immediately preceding the Transition
Date, instead of using the last month’s salary of
employment termination date.

The accounting for LSP obligation, MPF contribution and the
MPF-LSP offsetting is detailed in note 4(j).

Long service payment

The net long service payment obligations are exposed to
interest rate risk, the risk arising from changes in employees’
average longevity at retirement or termination of employment,
expected rate of future salary increase and market risk
associated with investment returns of employees’ MPF
Scheme.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the present value of
the net defined benefit obligations was carried out on 31
December 2023 by independent professional valuer, Ravia
Global Appraisal Advisory Limited, using the projected unit
credit actuarial valuation method.
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RAIIRE £ #)

REBESHAMERANEREERRNOT !

31. RETIREMENT SCHEMES (Continued)

Long service payment (Continued)

reporting period are as follows:

2023

TH ANNIVERSARY
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The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the

2022

BEIR %
EHF S ER

Discount rate
Expected rate of salary increase

2.96% - 4.79%

3%

1.89% - 4.73%

3%

RBREHRERBROEESRIED T

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions

T as at the end of the reporting period is shown below:
RE RE
w\AEE w\HEE
EEZRsgn g R Eb=im A 1 GRib
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in defined in defined
Increase benefit Decrease benefit
in rate obligations in rate obligations
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
2023 2023
ARIR = Discount rate 1% (400) 1% 700
AERFEEE Future salary increase 1% - 1% -
20224 2022
ARIR = Discount rate 1% (500) 1% 500
AERFEEE Future salary increase 1% = 1% (100)
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31. BAEE @

31. RETIREMENT SCHEMES (Continued)

RHIRE = (@)

ERBRIE DT IHIRERI B RR AR SR
LEREEFRHH A EEN ST EOVHEE-
BREDMHRIFEANRKZEE) > FRPIA HAth
RERAEFT T BT E o BURIE 22 7 AT BE L A UK

Long service payment (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based
on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined
benefit obligations as a result of reasonable changes in key
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

RERASEZEREH  AAKREBRALNALEE The sensitivity analysis is based on a change in a significant

BREMREHIRES, assumption, keeping all other assumptions constant. The
sensitivity analysis may not be representative of an actual
change in the defined benefit obligations as it is unlikely
that changes in assumptions would occur in isolation of one
another.

REBHNSEFZREZEFHUNT © The movements in the net defined benefit obligations are as
follows:

AR EREH
HARENRERSSHA BNt @A/ (58)
Remeasurement gains/(losses)
2023 Long service payment cost charged to profit or loss in other comprehensive income
HBER
£13lEn LA 2023E
AREIRIA EBRERE  BERBAS  ASERRE  aABE)H Bt R BEE8  2EWE) 126310
Actuarial
changes Subtotal
arising from included
Current Past Net Subtotal changes in other
1 January service service interest included in Benefit in financial ~ comprehensive 31 December
2023 cost cost expense  profit or loss paid  assumptions income 2023
Thn Fhn Fhn Thn Thn Thn Thn Fhn Thn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RERMEL  Net defined benef
et obligations (4,550) (819) - (159) (978) 245 (370) (370) (5,853)
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31. EKRst3 31. RETIREMENT SCHEMES (Continued)
AR = (4B) Long service payment (Continued)
AR AR
sTABRNRERBENA it &t/ (58
Remeasurement gains/{losses)
2022 Long service payment cost charged to profit or loss in other comprehensive income
AO%s R
2b3liens st 0028
N2F1IR1E EBREAE  BEREAL  HEERRE  RAREH BAIEH BREH  2ENENG 126310
Actuarial
changes Subtotal
arising from included
Current Past Net Subtotal changes in in other
1 January service service interest included in Benefit demographic  comprehensive 31 December
2022 cost cost expense profit or loss paid assumptions income 2022
TER TER TER i TiEn THEn Thn Thn TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(f=7))
(Restated)
RERHET  Net defined beneft
8 obligations (6,924) (1,363) (802) (90) (2,255) 4,629 - - (4,550)
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32. AT ZHFRRR KRG 32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

@ FEREZHBER R

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company

2023 2022
Vo= FAET FHET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BERAR ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ERBEE Non-current asset
RB AR ZIKE Investment in a subsidiary 21,899 21,899
MENEE Current assets
FE{TFR Prepayments 801 597
FEUS BT /B A B BRFR Amounts due from subsidiaries 35(d) 7,586 =
BRITEINREFRS Cash at banks and on hand 1,228 1,176
9,615 1,773
mEad Current liabilities
FEST R IE K E A FE (T BR Accruals and other payables 8,933 2,040
FERRE Dividend payable 11 35,172 =
FETFR I8 Tax payable 123 39
FES B B AR BRFR Amounts due to subsidiaries 35(d) 1,123 1,124
45,351 3,203
mEaERE Net current liabilities (35,736) (1,430)
(8B BEEZE Net (liabilities)/assets (13,837) 20,469
R EQUITY
[N Share capital 28 50,245 50,245
EE Reserves 32(b) (64,082) (29,776)
(BAE5AL) 4R (Capital deficiency)/total equity (13,837) 20,469
RKERESFE On behalf of the Board of Directors

RNHE 22
Yuen Man Ying Leung Shing Chiu
HITES HITES

Executive Director

194  S=FEEZERAERAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

Executive Director



e M B wERMNEE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B E2023F12831H LEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

I ANNIVERSARY
F LISTING

i@\&';% LISTIN

32. XATIZHFRRREEE @ 32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

b) FEAEEE

(b) Reserves of the Company

B mE REtEE st

Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
FHET FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
12202251 B51H At 1 January 2022 145,335 (73,286) 72,049
FERIE Loss for the year = (101,825) (101,825)

1202212831 K At 31 December 2022 and

2023%F181H 1 January 2023 145,335 (175,111) (29,776)
FEEF Profit for the year - 866 866
SRR S (HfaE11) Special dividends (note 11) (35,172) - (35,172)
2023E12831H At 31 December 2023 110,163 (174,245) (64,082)
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33. fIBATE] 33. SUBSIDIARIES
£2023F 12831 H » AR B T 5 B A 5 % As at 31 December 2023, the Company had direct or
EEEREED ZE N EEFMABREA indirect interests in the following subsidiaries, all of which
3 HEFBEAW T ¢ are private companies with limited liability, the particulars of

which are set out as follows:

sk,
REATE =i BEITRBERE AL B TEREY
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid
Name of company operations share capital Attributable equity interest Principal activities
E#% ik
Directly Indirectly
RREEEEEERAT HEGRREE 337020815 100% - REER
51£337,025% 75
EGL Management Group BVI 337,025 shares Investment holding
Company Limited totalling United States
dollar (“US$”") 337,025
RREKTHERAT BN 3,315,000 & @Az - - 100% RERTE  BERTERK
£$£3,315,000%7 WO IRITARRE R R RS
EGL Tours Company Limited Hong Kong 3,315,000 ordinary shares Provision of package tours, FIT
totalling HK$3,315,000 Products and ancillary travel
related products and services
RRERITH (HX) BRAR s 221 BiEk - 100% #E Mt B AN L IERTE
AH21ET B R{TE R R E M KITAER
Em &R
EGL Tours (Japan) Hong Kong 221 ordinary shares Provision of outbound package
Company Limited totalling HK$221 tours, FIT Products and ancillary
travel related products and
services in Japan
BERTHERAS BN 550,0008% & 3B > - 100% BEEH
51£550,00078 7T
i-Evertravel Company Limited Hong Kong 550,000 ordinary shares Inactive
totalling HK$550,000
RRERTH (2P BRAS i 1,800,000 37 - 100% RERTE  BERTERK
BEMIRKTHREER KRS
EGL Tours (Macau) Macau Macau Pataca (‘MOP”) Provision of package tours, FIT
Company Limited 1,800,000 Products and ancillary travel
related products and services
RRERITA CRYI) BRAR + BRERAE - 100% MAEREARRAMIKTE
A #3,850,0007T
EGL Tours (Shenzhen) The PRC Paid up capital of Renminbi Provision of inbound and local
Gompany Limited* (‘RMB”) 3,850,000 package tours in the PRC
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33. B AE &= 33. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
SRR
GIEL =g BEREITRBERA FEfh R TEEHR
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid
Name of company operations share capital Attributable equity interest Principal activities
=t %
Directly Indirectly
RREER (B4 BRASE EBMEEREE  100RRMK - 100% BEER
511,000 7T
EGL Holdings (Nippon) Limited BVI 100 shares Investment holding
totalling US$1,000
&4t Zpang. S. S* BA& 4758115 - 80% % BRIk E L AR
(" Zipang ) £1£23,750,000H
Kabushiki Kaisha Zipang. S. S** Japan 475 shares Provision of travel bus services
(“Zipang”) totalling JPY23,750,000 in Japan
RE R M) BRAF HESAREE  100REM - 100% HEZR
511,000 7T
EGL Holdings (Asia) Limited BVI 100 shares Investment holding
totalling US$1,000
FREREEAERAT EBMEEREE  100RRMK - 100% BEER
BH100ETT
EGL Investment Group BVI 100 shares Investment holding
Company Limited totalling US$100
EGL Market Company Limited BB 1IREER - 100% REEXRZEm
BB
EGL Market Company Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share Trading of goods in Hong Kong
totalling HK$1
EXSERBRAT HREBREE  1RRG - 100% HEZR
CEIET
Ebisu Holdings Company Limited BVI 1 share Investment holding
totalling US$1
EXSRBERRAT &E 1REER - 100% HEZR
BRIET
Ebisu Investment Company Limited ~ Hong Kong 1 ordinary share Investment holding
totalling HK$1
Ebisu Growth Limited** SE:S BRERAR - 100% #5E BERESEAAEE
10,000,0008
Ebisu Growth Limited* Japan Paid up capital of Ownership, development and
JPY10,000,000 management of hotel in Japan
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33. B AT @ 33. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

SERAIL,
RE%AHE =i BEITRBERS FEfL AR 1E TEREY
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid
Name of company operations share capital Attributable equity interest Principal activities
E#% ik
Directly Indirectly
East Global Limited™ =F:N ERERE - 100% %B REREERRERE
10,000,000H
East Global Limited*™ Japan Paid up capital of Ownership, development and
JPY10,000,000 management of hotel in Japan
RREES (BF) E@ERAT HEABRES REH - 100% HEER
BRIER
EGL Trading (Japan) Group BVI 1 share Investment holding
Company Limited totalling US$1
RREEZ (BF) BRAF B 1REEk - 100% ARBARSE miEHEERE
BR1ET
EGL Trading (Japan) Hong Kong 1 ordinary share Provision of handling services for
Company Limited totalling HK$1 trading of goods in Japan
EGL Holdings (HK) Limited EREAREE  1RERH - 100% E|ES
BRIER
EGL Holdings (HK) Limited BVI 1 share Inactive
totaling US$1
EGL JV Investment Limited EREAREE  1RERK - 100% HEER
BRIER
EGL JV Investment Limited BVI 1 share Investment holding
totaling US$1
* R B E SR * Chinese name for identification purpose only
> XA TBEEHT - English name for identification purpose only
i BRBEDA M EmEE R E & registered as a wholly-foreign owned enterprise under the

PRC law

HZE2023F 1283 1BIEEE mBEE2EWB
‘A8 > EGL Holdings (HK) Limited 2EGL JV
Investment Limiteds+ f A 37 ©

During the year ended 31 December 2023, EGL Holdings
(HK) Limited and EGL JV Investment Limited, two wholly-
owned subsidiaries, were incorporated.

BENB AR NBRSPRETEMAEREES None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the reporting period.
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34. JEIERG MR 34. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
FEREZEEZENR2023F12831HAK The net liabilities of non-controlling interests as at 31
2,263,000 71 (20224 . 2,626,000 7T) » HA December 2023 were approximately HK$2,263,000 (2022:
ZipangfE L IF AR #E 75 o HK$2,626,000) which were attributable to the non-controlling

interest of Zipang.

ZB AT IR R WA AL RNE A The non-controlling interests of the subsidiary are considered
to be immaterial.

35. EARS 35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
GARGETERENEMNTOEZEREZ XS In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
FebEes N BARE ST 2R ZUWT - elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the

following transactions were carried out with related parties:
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35. FEARS @ 35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
@ REFEBEAFELS (@) Significant related party transactions during the
year
2023 2022
k=3 FERT FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
SO TFHEEARZEE Rental paid to a related company
—KRET — Great Port () 9,022 8,731
HEASEREEN Interest expense incurred on loans
FEBREEZ from a related company
—KRE1T ~ Great Port (i) 17,988 17,002

m—XEEATIRMIKITE .  Provision of package tours, FIT

BHRTERKEMERT Products and ancillary travel
HEER KR related products and services
to a related company
—KE1T - Great Port (i) 215 =

FIRMHERITE - BHRTEMK&  Costs charged by associates
B M IRITAERE E R R AR TS regarding the provision of package

HEE AR 2 & B tours, FIT Products and ancillary
travel related products and services
—EGLH 48 - EGL Okinawa (il 753 12
—EGLEE[H - EGL Korea (i) 15,764 349
e =N= i — Niti Niti Travel (i) 768 4
FLBIE KL H & Costs charged by related party
HEFER Wz &R regarding the sale of hotel material
—Hush Home Hong Kong — Hush Home Hong Kong
Limited Limited (i, i) 44 -
A miEE Costs charged by an associate
HEE ARUWEZ &R regarding the sale of merchandises
—H& — Nissay 812 _
EXTHEL S —HE Loans to an associate — Nissay 800 -~
BEE A RIWEERF B Loan interest received from an
—H& associate — Nissay 25 =
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35. FAERRS @
R EEEARTES 5 ()

@

Htat -

(i)

(ii)

SN FHAERAB ZEERX N ERFER
BREABBERAERLEFAEATRITZEE
ek IR TR ETT

R

RERZDERE L EE ZFRET-

ZABHAABDRNTEEHEEZRLRE
BHEA o

TRABDATEEREE -BAE REEM
FULNRARETZEFTIHAEAETZ
PRt

PREXFIIREEN  REAFRMESTFE
RAERBFE > 42 B 80 B AR ] I & A B R
BIIUBARBDEFZAEARGZER

AN
540

TH ANNIVERSARY
OF LISTING

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@

Significant related party transactions during the
year (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Rental expenses paid to a related company were
conducted in the normal course of business and in
accordance with terms of the lease agreements entered
into between the Group and the related company.

(if) The transactions were conducted on the basis of
mutually agreed terms.

(i) The company is wholly held by the daughter of the
executive director of the Company, Mr. Huen.

The executive directors of the Company, Mr. Yuen, Mr.
Huen, Mr. Leung and Ms. Lee, are also directors and
have equity interests in Great Port.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party, and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.
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RIERRS @

»rt +4
=

b FIELE

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Loans from a related company

R2023F 12831 H  RKEBEEAT ZEN Loans from a related company represented three loans

IEENMNABTHN =28 ~EEFFHE due to Great Port at as 31 December 2023. The details
[N i of the six loans were shown as below:

EME EMIEIE A rxE RBENRBH ES

Loan Loan Principal Final Interest

number drawdown date amount repayment date rate

1 202043H27H 80,000,000/ 7T 2026F1H1H GE

27 March 2020  HK$80,000,000 1 January 2026 Interest free

2 202048H27H 80,000,000/ 7T 2026F1H1H GE

27 August 2020  HK$80,000,000 1 January 2026 Interest free

3 2020%F12H29H 40,000,000 7T 2026518518~ FHNEH—ER

BHERITEZERE

n1.5%

29 December 2020 HK$40,000,000 1 January 2026~ One-month HIBOR

plus 1.5% per annum

4 2021F4H1H  40,000,000% 7T 202651518 FHEH—ER

BHERITEZERE

n1.5%

1 April 2021 HK$40,000,000 1 January 2026** One-month HIBOR

plus 1.5% per annum

5 2021411829H 80,000,000 7T 202651 H1H* FHNEH—ER

BHERITEZERE

fn1.65%

29 November 2021 HK$80,000,000 1 January 2026 One-month HIBOR

plus 1.65% per annum

6 2022F6H2H  30,000,000% 7T 2023F5H31H* FHNEH—ER

BHERITEZERE

fn1.65%

2 June 2022

HK$30,000,000

202 F=HEHEERARAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

31 May 2023****

One-month HIBOR
plus 1.65% per annum
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35. FIERRS @

b) FELEZE B

R2020F 128310 E—ERAE R EM
F_EHEFERRFE=2EBEHERE
R20215E3818H » ABITHZEERHE
Frei i BEREZB R DB =M%
E - NHREHREREERIHEEAEZ=
EEFEHEKREST AL L= E&FR
2021 FE3H18H B4R IEHESR ©

=
Bl
&
R
o
pin3
il
=
2
Ej
9
e
Ak
i
&
piuiy
T

=8/ R2021F3818HUFENA
NEBEENEIRANEREGR BAER
FEREEHA8% I =FEERWRAHEEH
NABEZEEAL38,579,0008 7T #
MRARERERFNERERL AL
—EEMNR2021FE3E18HBREMDES
FERBEE-

FHNEHESERZBEMAE B
BRFNRL4% - FOEMERERNE
THAVNEEIZAANBEZERAN
5,033,00078 7T > SR A R ER P m By
REBEKA -

EREMBHERRBHEMRESE B
BERFEAXEA1% - FREMEHFERNA
THRANERIZAABEZERAN
10,272,000 70 BHERBRENEm P
RREARKRA

o

FRNEBREEDERAERIF > BR20235F5
HA31HEE

(b)

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Loans from a related company (Continued)

The first related party loan, the second related party
loan and the third related party loan with repayment
on demand clause were classified as current liabilities
as at 31 December 2020. On 18 March 2021, Great
Port issued 3 waiver letters in respect of demand
clauses stated in those loan agreements respectively.
As the waiver of the repayment on demand clause
was considered as a significant modification of these 3
loans, these 3 loans were derecognised as at 18 March
2021.

These 3 loans were re-recognised as new loan
liabilities at their fair values as at 18 March 2021,
using the effective interest rate of 4.8% per annum.
The difference of the original principal amounts and
the fair values of these 3 loans of approximately
HK$38,579,000 was recognised as a deemed capital
contribution from the shareholders in equity. These 3
loans were reclassified as non-current liabilities from 18
March 2021 onwards.

The fourth related party loan was carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate of 4.4% per
annum. The difference of the principal amount and
the fair value of the fourth related party loan at initial
recognition of approximately HK$5,033,000 was
recognised as deemed capital contribution from the
shareholders in equity.

The fifth related party loan was carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate of 5.1% per
annum. The difference of the principal amount and
the fair value of the fifth related party loan at initial
recognition of approximately HK$10,272,000 was
recognised as deemed capital contribution from the
shareholders in equity.

The sixth related party loan was unsecured and
repayable on 31 May 2023.
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35. FERRXS &

b) FIELFTE )
* A& E R 2023E8H23H ~ 2023F9H20H
K2023F12H6H D BB AETIRAIE R
B 7%15,000,00038 7T ~ 15,000,000
755 10,000,000 7T, ©

** AEEMR2023F7H5H K2023%E8H
1TH2BAAETRAEEER LS
15,000,0007% 75 5 25,000,00058 7T ©

o REBER2023FE 108188 ~2023%F 1189
H&%2023F1286H 2 Al A ZETIRATE
B E A £15,000,000% 7T~ 15,000,000
7T 5%10,000,00038 7T ©

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Loans from a related company (Continued)

*

*k

The Group made early repayments of the principal
of the loan in the amount of HK$15,000,000,
HK$15,000,000 and HK$10,000,000 to Great Port on
23 August 2023, 20 September 2023 and 6 December
2023 respectively.

The Group made early repayments of the principal
of the loan in the amount of HK$15,000,000 and
HK$25,000,000 to Great Port on 5 July 2023 and 1
August 2023 respectively.

The Group made early repayments of the principal
of the loan in the amount of HK$15,000,000,
HK$15,000,000 and HK$10,000,000 to Great Port on
18 October 2023, 9 November 2023 and 6 December

2023 respectively.

o KEEN2023F4H4HAAETIRAIE b
= E R ZA30,000,0007 7T ©

The Group made an early repayment of the principal of
the loan in the amount of HK $30,000,000 to Great Port
on 4 April 2023.

© FEEBEANSZFH (c) Compensation of key management personnel

AEE EFLREMTESIEAS 5N The remuneration of directors and other members of

W key management during the year was as follows:
2023 2022
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
RHEE R Short-term employee benefits 22,058 6,755
BB ER Post-employment benefits 394 187
22,452 6,942

@ Y TETHTE L F1 AR5 I
RERIZEEKRER EEK—KNE
N EAR##983,847,000;8 T 5) » 328k
FNERF 15 2B IRT TR W EN11.6%
F1.65%5+5 °

(d) The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are
unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand except for the amount due from a
subsidiary in the amount of approximately
HK$83,847,000, which are interest bearing of
HIBOR+1.6% to 1.65% per annum.
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36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments in respect of capital expenditure of
acquisition of property, plant and equipment for the Group
are as follows:

2023 2022
FHET TFET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BN EREE Contracted but not provided for 912 454
BEREMER 37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
NEB  ESBIERERTE The Group’s capital management objectives include:

(@) METEBEFESEZED UFERR
RAVE O A B0 & w2k

b) XFHAEEENBERER; K

© »mNMBEAEEREBEEENRERHES-

FEEREBEAARESERKREFRA V@ RER
Bt EAED BAEEREREMNE LR
FRBAERBUERERS Bk E BRI EE
BRER UREBEAGENRREIHRERIES
KF-AEBEMAFBAEMNEAREER

FEBEEEAER TRBCHE KRN
HREEZRBREHBHETHE DTS
REAER AEEHRKNRRZKRESEAFH
AR -BRRERBES BITHR - HIEEHR
HEBELURIE

(@) to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it continues to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders;

(b)  to support the Group’s stability and growth; and

(c) to provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the
Group’s risk management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholders’ returns, taking into consideration the future
capital requirements of the Group and capital efficiency,
prevailing and projected profitability, projected operating
cash flows and capital expenditures, and potential strategic
investment opportunities. The Group does not currently
adopt any formal dividend policy.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order
to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares, raise new debts or
sell assets to reduce debt.
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37. EZRAMEE @

20234 % 2022F 12 B31 H B B EF H IR #E
EEERWTF ¢

37.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

The net debt-to-equity ratio as at 31 December 2023 and

2022 were as follows:

2023 2022

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

&% (H1aL0) Debt (note(i) 544,215 720,282

B IRITERREFRS Less: Cash at banks and on hand (219,940) (204,300)

FET Net debt 324,275 515,982

BT (KaE(i) Equity (note(ii)) 47,408 23,095

FEBEREEREE Net debt-to-equity ratio 684% 2,234%
VioiZaN Notes:

() EFOERTER HEEERFERATER
HEF B0 B 5E25 ~ 155%35(b) ©

i) KREEZSEMAEEAABER ABMGRAER
f#fh e
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(i) Debt comprised bank borrowings, lease liabilities and loans

from a related company as detailed in notes 25, 15 and 35(b)

respectively.

(i) Equity includes all capital and reserves attributable to owners

of the Company.
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38.

MHBRRER

FEETAREFEETEENX EFE - RF
B RINERR EFEEREENUD T A
ERmEEAEREMERZ SRR (X
RONEERSFEEREE)  FERABRRABE
TR —RME > ~EE AR EERDEFRT
ZRBg o

@

T /7 ez
2 £ B 8 R 2 R R 17 77 AR AL BO R L
B RET BB TERTEENRSRES
HESEIE

120235 AEB NI KREFERBRFBME
RZBELLAH) > LIRER B B2 o R K $ b
LEXBE2EHEBEREAERZRETRE
BAMEE - FREHB AR AL HE
HAEEBERARZ It

FEENRTEFANBITERNIRTT
BHERHMARRERE ZF K ER -
AEREER D AEEEEAVIRTARA
REBRLEFAEKR BEHNEBRITERE
B LEERRAAME-

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Exposures to interest rate, credit, liquidity and foreign
currency risks arise in the normal course of the Group’s
business. The board of directors meets periodically to
analyse and formulate measures to manage the Group’s
exposure to market risk (including principal changes in
interest rates and foreign currency rates), credit risk and
liquidity risk. Generally, the Group employs a conservative
strategy regarding risk management.

(a) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk arising from
bank deposits and cash flow interest rate risk arising
from bank borrowings at floating rate.

During 2023, the Group aimed to maintain a suitable
proportion of fixed and floating rate borrowings in order
to stabilise interest costs. Interest rate hedging ratio is
determined after taking into consideration of the market
trend and the Group’s cash flow pattern. Interest
rate swap was employed to hedge exposures or to
modify the interest rate characteristics of the Group’s
borrowings.

The Group’s bank balances expose it to cash flow
interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rate on bank balances. The directors
of the Group consider the Group’s exposure to interest
rate risk in respect of bank balances is not significant
as interest-bearing bank deposits are within short
maturity periods in general.
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38. MFEREEIE @

@ FIEEE @)
8 F) 2 52 EE 47 38 O 2R L 5 % i A E Ath
A RFRIFAE A AEBNEE R
(20224 : F518) Mg kiR (20224 :
D RIE ) K Rt BB R B NA
2,755,000 75 (20224 : 734,00087T) ©
BEZMEXESHHERERNEMIP D HRE

=
o

R LS%BEEHENEE TERE
HASRA T B9 & IR A AL BB BT o

b) EEERE
EERKIE—EeRIAZREHFES
AR TEEBTHESA LS AE@SRR
B %5518 2 RS o

AEEERZRSEERREZRENH
BEEBRETRNEREETEE  ERNRK
SHABRZEMEEZREE WK
38(Nf ) ©

AEEEHRERE 5 K H MBI AR U8 R
EXEEERBEET AEBRAKEKRR
FERMENRZZH FREREFELERZ
REHFESIRZEANERNEERR &
SR ZRTEBREINESR VR PR
HAEEXZRT-
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

@

(6)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

If the interest rates had been increased or decreased
by 5% at the beginning of the year and all other
variables were held constant, would increase or
decrease (2022:decrease or increase) the Group’s
profit (2022:loss) for the year and decrease or increase
accumulated losses by approximately HK$2,755,000
(2022: HK$734,000). The assumed changes have no
impact on the other components of equity.

The increase or decrease by 5% represents directors’
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates over the year until the end of next reporting
period.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge its
obligation under its terms and cause a financial loss to
the Group.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk mainly
arises from granting credits to customers in the
ordinary course of its operations and is limited to the
carrying amounts of financial assets recognised at the
end of the reporting period, as summarised in note
38(f).

The Group’s trade and other receivables are actively
monitored to avoid significant concentrations of credit
risk. The Group is not exposed to any significant
credit risk from any single counterparty or any group
of counterparties having similar characteristics. The
Group’s bank balances are deposited with major banks
in Hong Kong, Macau, the PRC and Japan.
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38. MFEERERE @

b 1FEERE @
BERREBIMTRBEZE S BWIRREAM
BWIRZE-—TWREDRHINHFEI19R
20°

MEWRBEERT RBMEQTRMRSINZE
ERERE R 16PIRENERTHER
AN BN R EHRFERCERE YT
AR AEEHEENZZHTFEE
BHSIEZFEERREBER Bt ~EE T
CRREERRWBMSEEEREGE-

FEENRETEFRNEERFZEM
WA SUL A EERBTES N EEEE -

REFE AEE-—BETZEEERR
BZEHRBERER -

© FHELEE
RBETARYRAERRIBTHESR
ReHMEREELESTMAafHER
SEMELEMNERRE-

FEREARERREERRESEBYNE
EERIRRREZKT BEEBEERM
B KkEERRERERFZZE-

FEBZHERBERERRAREHRE
MBS ADESBR - 2EBAZRPES
TEMBEER T EEBERERNEBZAE
UERTHEBEFE ARTERFERS
RBEaRFE ~EREBRINABEERN
BT hAEARNEEME ULIRTER
FRRBESTNEEZRR BREEEHN

o g3 4
*ﬁnﬁ%ﬁé’ﬁ °

(b)

()

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

Credit risk (Continued)

Further disclosures regarding trade receivables and
other receivables, which are neither past due nor
impaired, are provided in note 19 and 20 respectively.

With respect to credit risk arising from the amounts due
from a related company and an associate, except for
the loans to an associate as disclosed in note 16, the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from repayment
default of counterparties is limited as the counterparties
have good credit history and sound financial position,
and the Group does not expect any significant loss of
uncollected advances from these entities.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit
risk associated with cash at banks since they are
deposited with credit worthy financial institutions.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group
throughout the year and are considered to be effective.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
other financial assets.

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements in the short and long
terms. The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent
on its ability to maintain adequate cash inflows from
operations to meet its debt obligations. As the Group
has sustained net current liabilities, the Group relies
on internally generated funds and credit facilities from
a related company and bank borrowings as significant
sources of liquidity to enable the Group to operate as a
going concern.
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38. MFEREEIE @

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

© mEELEE @ (c) Liquidity risk (Continued)
TREYBEHAAEFIETESHRER The following tables show the remaining contractual
BERLERERE (BEUAENF X maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
MERE AHRIRTRIXR (W3 #) Frst8EmF Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities, based on
B SENFGREOE R BB RARE undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
EEEREN A= s computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based
on rates current at the reporting date) and the earliest
date the Group can be required to pay:
ANRER —-Ehr  -ENb  mENLD
KAl RERELE FEEX EFEBmE BTBELE AENE
Total Within Over Over
contractual one year one year two years
Carrying undiscounted or on but within but within Over
amount  cash flows demand two years five years five years
Thn TEn THT THEL TEL THEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2023
JEfTE Non-derivatives:
AR Trade payables 37,540 37,540 37,540 - - -
TSt AR R ALt (iR Accruals and other payables 55,207 55,207 55,207 - - -
EfRE Dividend payable 35,172 35,172 35,172 - - -
FEfiBEARRN Amounts due to associates 2,323 2,323 2,323 = = =
RENFEH Loans from a related company 182,741 200,000 - - 200,000 -
RITBER Bank borrowings 313,009 331,648 34,401 31,503 141,082 124,712
HE&E Lease liabilties 48,465 50,670 40,799 5,050 4,821 -
674,457 712,560 205,442 36,553 345,853 124,712
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38. MFEERERE @

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

© TEETREE & (c) Liquidity risk (Continued)
ANRES - —Eib  @ElL
REE ReneLE FREX ErEEME BFBELE RENE
Total Within Over Over
contractual one year one year two years
Carrying  undiscounted or on but within but within Over
amount  cash flows demand two years five years five years
TETL TETL TEL TETL TEL TEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(A& (#E3) (A&
(restateq) (restateq) (restateq)
2022
JEirk Non-derivatives:
BSEME Trade payables 15,582 15,582 15,582 - - -
Rt AR EMEMNR Accruals and other payables 42,236 42,236 42,236 - - -
ERHERRRR Amount due to an associate 20 20 20 - - -
BENRER Loans from a related company 313,918 350,000 30,000 - 320,000 -
RITEM Bank borrowings 365,366 386,832 225,295 7,603 22,650 131,284
HEAR Lease liabilities 40,998 41,601 38,746 2,855 - -
778,120 836,271 351,879 10,458 342,650 131,284
@) SMEESE (d)  Foreign currency risk

SNERBIE—REMIAZAREERE
RRREREFRIIEERESHME LKD)
PN

255 B K NS R B o 5% 5 R PR 2k B LUTE
AEBMEBNINESE 2 EBIREIKRT
E - BER1TE®  iREED LIRS e R
TEBERKBRBEE ZWE  URIKE
JEEE R EE MBS ERRSS 2 REE KA
UEREREHEEE RAEE AEEY
44.2% (20224 : 26.7%) Z A K #91.3%
(20224 : 0.7%) 2 W UIEAE B EFE

BIhBE a2 EfE5HE

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates.

The Group has foreign currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from the revenue from provision of
package tours, FIT Products, travel bus services,
ancillary travel related products and services as well as
costs of services consumed in hotel accommodation
and ancillary hotel related services and sale of
merchandises business in currencies other than the
Group entities’ functional currency. Approximately
44.2% (2022: 26.7%) of costs and approximately 1.3%
(2022: 0.7%) of the Group’s revenue are denominated
in currencies other than the Group entities’ functional
currency for the year.
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38. MFEREEIE @

@

SRR ()
AEBEFFHEEINNE AR ZFEKRKE
REEMBEZEGHUFAERETRNI
FEEBZERGHE AEERREHRU
S EZEREERGRZREEN
Lk

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The Group also has foreign currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from the balances of assets and
liabilities in currencies other than the Group entities’
functional currency. The carrying amounts of the foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2023 2022
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BE Assets

H JPY 63,755 64,369
AR RMB 8,626 4,645
72,381 69,014

=L Liabilities
H JPY 10,676 8,447
AR RMB 699 19
11,375 8,466

EEEERTEYERIINEEXRZEEHER
SMERE - BEEEEHIFTER  HEXRER
BEREEAEERZINERRR-

HRRREFITTEBTER RS EM  EF
REEENEFTZIINERBITERE K-
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The management monitors foreign currency exposure
by closely monitoring the movements of foreign
currency rates. The management has set up a policy
to require Group entities to manage their foreign
exchange risk against their respective functional
currency.

The directors consider that the Group’s exposure
to foreign currency risk in respect of MOP is not
significant because MOP’s fluctuation with HK$ is
immaterial.
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38. MFEERERE @

@ SMNEREZ @)
TEREVNEEBAEERKREMAREAZEKR
Rz NEER ST REEE ) A& H
ZzFEad,/ (BB RRABEAMER
ZHBHEH - HRED T EELUET NG
BMEEBZINERFENEERAT
ZREMER - TXEHRTETRARE
& FHE B9 A 18 0 SRS 48R ) e HLh 1B 2
M- HRETREREREE A%
B (B8 REMESELERSHER
B TREFRRDSEHINEERSRES)
ERARATEEEASERNIINER
B AREEEMEEIIEEZEEHFY
ESpSERR R

UTSRED T IRER S FEEAIERE
RBREBDLEFRE TRBEFE

(@)

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table indicates the approximate change in
the Group’s profit/(loss) for the year and accumulated
losses in response to reasonably possible changes in
the foreign exchange rates to which the Group has
significant exposure at the end of the reporting period.
The sensitivity analysis includes balances between
Group companies where the denomination of the
balances is in a currency other than the functional
currencies of the lender or the borrower. A positive
number below indicates an increase in profit or a
decrease in loss and an increase in other equity where
the HK$ strengthens against the relevant currency. For
a weakening of the HK$ against the relevant currency,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the
profit/(loss) and other equity, and the balances below
would be negative. The 5% change in foreign exchange
rate is used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s best assessment of the possible
changes in foreign exchange rates.

The following sensitivity analysis has been determined
based on the assumed percentage changes in foreign

TRIFAE o exchange rates taking place at the beginning of the
reporting year and held constant throughout the year.
2023 2022
FEHEREM/ (BL) & FEBERRHE
R348 (g2 ED (igm) /&b
Increase/(decrease)
in profit for the year and (Increase)/decrease
(increase)/decrease in in loss for the year and
accumulated losses accumulated losses
= AR = AR
JPY RMB JPY RVMB
FTHET FTHET FTET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EREH . Changes in exchange rate:
BT RINEFES% HK$ appreciates by 5% against
the foreign currencies (2,216) (331) (2,335) (193)
BT R IMNERT E5% HK$ depreciates by 5% against
the foreign currencies 2,216 331 2,335 193
2023%4# Annual Report 2023 213
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38. MFEREEIE @

€

AR EE
TREIIRBAANBESRE L ANEET
IRz MBI :

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

(e) Fair value

The following table provides an analysis of financial

instruments carried at fair value by level of fair value

hierarchy:
F—#: HEBEEXEBEBREZEMSZ Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
RE CREHAE) ; markets for identical assets or liabilities;
B BT E—HRFFBEZHREBIN Level 2:  Inputs other than quoted prices included
ZEERBABEZ I ERZHAY within Level 1 that are observable for the
B aiaEE BINER) stEiE asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
EmRBEEHS) ; & or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and
FE=4R BENEBE 28 ABE I IEK Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are
BRI ERHIEHIESY C(RrlE not based on observable market data
=i ABIR) © (unobservable inputs).
120234 FR20224
12H31H 12831H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERBEE Non-current asset B
TESMIE Derivative financial instrument Level 2 - 1,154

B E20283F K2022F12831HIEEE &
Rz R EER o

MREPNARBESEEBF RATHE
MERERENTHNTNENEETR
BN BEARREERASHREIEE
SR PALE
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During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
there was no transfer between levels.

The fair value of interest rate swap is the estimated

amount that the Group would receive or pay to

terminate the swaps at the end of the reporting period,

taking into account observable interest rates and the

current creditworthiness of the swap counterparties.
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IR B 72 T EE R E ERE () Summary of financial assets and liabilities by

Y
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

category

The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated

statement of financial position related to the following

categories of financial assets and financial liabilities:

2023 2022
TFAT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
TRBE Financial assets
REHER AT EZ Financial assets measured at
STHMEE amortised cost:
5 EUER Trade receivables 10,235 6,766
5] & e H At FE IR Deposits and other receivables 18,555 15,345
FE W Bt A B BR TR Amount due from an associate 3,816 5,542
PR ITER Pledged bank deposits 10,240 8,135
RITERKREFRE Cash at banks and on hand 219,940 204,300
262,786 240,088
EEARBANEBESA Financial asset designated at FVTPL:
BalNTHEE .
MEEPFEH Interest rate swap contract - 1,154
TRERE Financial liabilities
REHMASTEZ Financial liabilities measured at
TRAad amortised cost:
B 5 AR Trade payables 37,540 15,582
FE St FIE K (T BR Accruals and other payables 55,207 42 236
FE(T AR R Dividend payables 35,172 -
EANEA=NETIEEN Amounts due to associates 2,323 20
FIERNBENR Loans from a related company 182,741 313,918
ERIT AR Bank borrowings 313,009 365,366
HEaE Lease liabilities 48,465 40,998
674,457 778,120
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39.

MEEBFIEEREZHER

TR AEERETHAELEEEEFH

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

39. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities

EEL arising from financing activities:
RITIER HEBE mER BN
Bank Lease Loans from a
borrowings liabilities related party
(Htz£25) (Hiz£15) (H15£35(b))
(note 25) (note 15) (note 35(b))
FHET FHET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
®2022F181H At 1 January 2022 420,118 47,902 272,874
RERSNESEEE . Changes from financing cash flows:
b eI Advance from a related company - - 30,000
RITERFTISIIE Proceeds from bank borrowings 2,000 = -
BRIRTTER Repayments of bank borrowings (7,185) = =
ENHEERENAEH S Principal element of lease rental paid - (16,624) -
BNHEERENMEHD Interest element of lease rental paid = (1,307) =
BAF 2 Interest paid (3,395) = (5,958)
MEBERERESEENEEE Total changes from financing cash flows (8,580) (17,931) 24,042
R R Exchange adjustments (50,029) - -
HE s . Other changes:
FIERX Interest expense 4,086 1,307 17,002
BEIERNMZFE Effect on modification of loan payment (229) -
NE Addition - 4,440 -
KIFHE Termination of lease - (4,567) -
HEEBIIZE Effect of lease modification = 11,691 =
HEE R E Gain on rental concession - (1,844) -
HAn 54228 Total other changes 3,857 11,027 17,002
®2022F12831H At 31 December 2022 365,366 40,998 313,918

216 m=FEEERARAT  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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39. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities

15 - arising from financing activities:
RITE™ HEAR MERER
Bank Lease Loans from a
borrowings liabilities related party
(Hiz225) (Hiz£15) (Wiz235b))
(note 25) (note 15) (note 35(b))
FTET FTET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
12023F1H1H At 1 January 2023 365,366 40,998 313,918
MERSREEHE Changes from financing cash flows:
BRRBTER Repayments of bank borrowings (27,638) - -
BEMEREMN Repayments of related party loans = = (150,000)
BENHERENEEH D Principal element of lease rental paid - (16,886) -
ENHEERENF S Interest element of lease rental paid - (1,384) -
BAHE Interest paid (3,262) - (7,287)
RMERERELE R Total changes from financing cash flows (30,900) (18,270) (157,287)
fE R AR Exchange adjustments (25,021) - -
Hth&snzs Other changes:
FEMX Interest expense 3,614 1,384 17,988
BEIRITERZFE Effect on modification of bank borrowing (50) - -
BIIMERERZFE Effect on modification of related party loans = = 8,122
"B Addition - 16,234 -
RIS Termination of lease - (2,542) -
HEBIIZFE Effect of lease modification = 10,661 =
Hith& 38R Total other changes 3,564 25,737 26,110
72023%E12831H At 31 December 2023 313,009 48,465 182,741
2023%4# Annual Report 2023 217
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P024ERFEERS
2024 AGM

A EIE4mE]
Articles of Association
BEE

Board

RBEERRHS
BVI

¥ EATA
CG Code

QB B R B E R

Company or EGL Holdings

COVID-19
COVID-19

=

Director(s)
RREIRITH

EGL Tours

12 B8
Evergloss

BT
FIT

BHTE®
FIT Products

Great Port

AABBERRBFEANG

the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company

RABINERESTNKET REFAESZAEA
the amended and restated articles of association of the Company, as amended from
time to time

Exg

the board of Directors

RBEBRES
British Virgin Islands

R ERCI P E I R E AT Al
Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules

REEZERBRRAE (BRMHRSE 0 6882)
EGL Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 6882)

2019 IR ImH R
coronavirus disease 2019

KNABIEE
the director(s) of the Company

REERITHBERAS AREIZEREERE AR
EGL Tours Company Limited, being an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company

REEEERFRAR ARRZEKEE (TEREFRBERG)
Evergloss Management Group Company Limited, being an associated corporation
(as defined under the SFO) of the Company

B BHKRE
free independent travellers

BHRTEZERERKE TR

FIT packages and individual travel elements

REITBERRB Y1TES AIRXEAEE - HEE2 AL - ZHSEERFTESTX
T) 2B A

Great Port Limited, being an associate of the Executive Directors (namely Mr. Yuen

Man Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms. Lee Po Fun)
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KER
Group
BT
HKD/HK$

ERMBRSER]
HKFRSs

=]
JPY

BE
Kwok Lai

I BR
Likang

LERA
Listing Rules

fEEpa

Model Code

BT
MOP

HEBEOR B REREE

Okinawa Hinode Resort & Hot

Spring Hotel

KR DF BIE
Osaka Hinode Hotel

KRB REWBAE
the Company and its subsidiaries

BT BBEEE

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BEARGSHIRAEEMN(EBMBRSER)

TH ANNIVERSARY
OF LISTING

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants

BHE HERZEEE
Japanese yen, the lawful currency of Japan

BEIREIERAERAS  BEEERRZ—

Kwok Lai Holdings Limited, being one of the shareholders of Evergloss

NMEARRAR BREEERRZ —

Likang Limited, being one of the shareholders of Evergloss

B a2 P8 25 L AR AY

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

EHRAIMERCIFAEH I E T AEFETE S 5 IR %ESTH]
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in

Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules

BFITT RFTNEER
Macau Pataca, the lawful currency of Macau

Okinawa Hinode Resort & Hot Spring Hotel CH4E:2D¥ B RERAIS) » ZNEE

BEEAEZS _FAE

Okinawa Hinode Resort & Hot Spring Hotel CH#B1D ¥ 8 R EBHESE) , the Group’s

second-owned hotel in Japan

Osaka Hinode Hotel (KIREDFAE) » AEBR A EAEES 2 EHXBIS

Osaka Hinode Hotel (KFr3EDFAEIE), the Group’s first-owned hotel in Japan
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FREY
PRC

55 M EIE IR A
SFO

&

Share(s)

FER ST 3
Share Option Scheme

e
Shareholder(s)

TR
sq.ft.

75K
sg.m.

B2 PR
Stock Exchange

REE

Year

thE A R F1E
the People’s Republic of China

&5 R BRG] (BA LB HEE71E)
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

PN/NSIL )
the share(s) of the Company

AT B2014F 11 BEERMBI B IR 5T 8

share option scheme adopted by the Company since November 2014

e SEST= PN
the holder(s) of the Share(s)

FHR
square feet

7K
square meter(s)

BEMERXBMBERAF
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

HE2023F12831HIEEFE
the year ended 31 December 2023
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EGL Holdings Company Limited

(REEHETMMARZNERAE)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AP X5E Stock Code : 6882

RREEERAER AT EGL Holdings Company Limited
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